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P R O C E E D I N G S  

(Transcript continues in sequence from Volume 2 5 )  

CHAIRMAN CLARK: We are ready to go back on the 

record. I do expect Commissioners Garcia and Deason to be 

here just momentarily, so we can, I think, go through some 

of the preliminaries. First of all, Ms. James and Mr. 

MacColeman, I need to swear you in. So if you would please 

stand and raise your right hand. Ms. James, if you would 

also stand, I will do it both of you at the same time. 

PHYLLIS JAMES 

was called as a witness on behalf of the Staff of the 

Florida Public Service Commission and, having been duly 

sworn, testified as follows via teleconference: 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: You may be seated. I think we 

will start with you, Ms. James, is that correct? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: That’s correct. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: All right. Our staff counsel 

will go through the preliminaries on getting your testimony 

into the record, Ms. James. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Can you hear me okay, Ms. James? 

WITNESS JAMES: Uh-huh. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Thank you very much for being 

patient with us this afternoon. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. SUMMERLIN: 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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2843 
Q Could you please state your name and business 

address for the record? 

A My name is Phyllis James, the business address is 

3804 Coconut Palm Drive, Tampa, Florida, 33619. 

Q 
A I'm employed by the Department of Environmental 

And how are you employed, who are you employed by? 

Protection. 

Q Have you prefiled direct testimony in this docket 

consisting of ten pages? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q Do you have any changes or corrections to your 

testimony? 

A No, not at this time. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Chairman Clark, may we have Ms. 

James' testimony inserted into the record as though read? 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: The prefiled direct testimony of 

Ms. Phyllis James will be inserted in the record as though 

read. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Thank you. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF PHYLLIS JAMES 

, 

, 

eive, Tampa, Florida 33619. 

. Please state a brief description of your educational background and 

Icperience. 

. 
I the public sector for a period of 5 1/2 years. 

2alth Specialist with Health, Rehabilitative Services prior to FDEP. 

. 

. I am employed by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 

FDEP). 

. 

. I worked in the dredge 

nd fill program for two years, the remaining year was spent working in the 

omestic waste program. 

. What are your general responsibilities at the FDEP? 

. I perform compliance inspections at permitted domestic wastewater 

reatment plants. 

. Are you familiar with the Southern States Utilities, Inc. wastewater 

ystems located in Southwest District? 

Please state your name and business address. 

Phyllis James, Department of Environmental Protection, 3804 Coconut Palm 

I have a Bachelor of Science degree in Natural Sciences. I have worked 

I was an Environmental 

By whom are you presently employed? 

How long have you been employed with the FDEP and in what capacity? 

I have been employed with FDEP for three years. 

Yes. 

. Were these systems inspected by you, or by FDEP staff under your 

upervision? 

. I am responsible for the inspections of these wastewater systems. 
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Citrus Springs Wastewater System 

Does the utility have current operating or construction permits fromthe 

)EP for Citrus Springs Wastewater System (Citrus Springs)? 

Yes. 

, Please state the issuance dates and the expiration dates of the 

Ierating or construction permits. 

. 
398. 

. 

The operating permit was issued February 24, 1994; and expires May 24, 

Is the plant in compliance with FDEP issued permits? 

Yes. The utility is currently drilling a new background monitoring 

211, since the original well became a dry well. 

. Are the wastewater collection, treatment and disposal facilities 

iequate to serve present customers based on permitted capacity? 

Yes. 

Are the treatment and disposal facilities for Citrus Springs located in . 
xordance with Rule 62-600, Florida Administrative Code? 

Yes. 

. Has the FDEP required the utility to take any action so as to minimize 

xsible adverse effects resulting from odors, noise, aerosol drift or 

ight i ng? 

No.  

. Do the pump stations and lift stations meet FDEP requirements with 

2spect to location, reliability and safety? 

Yes. 

. Does the utility have certified operators as required by 61E12-41, 

- 2 -  
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Florida Administrative Code? 

A. Yes. 

Q. 

facilities satisfactory? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does the facility meet the effluent disposal requirements of Rules 

62-600 and 62-610, Florida Administrative Code? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are the collection, treatment and disposal facilities in compliance with 

all the other provisions of Chapter 62, Florida Administrative Code, not 

previously mentioned? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Has Citrus Springs wastewater system been the subject of any FDEP 

enforcement action within the past two years? 

A. No. 

Is  the overall maintenance of the treatment, collection, and disposal 

Apache Shores Wastewater System 

Q. 
FDEP for Apache Shores Wastewater System (Apache Shores)? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Please state the issuance dates and the expiration dates of the 

operating or construction permits. 

A. The operating permit was issued June 1, 1992 and expires June 7, 1997. 

Q. 
A. Yes. 

Q. Are the wastewater collection, treatment and disposal facilities 

Does the utility have current operating or construction permits from the 

Is the plant in compliance with FDEP issued permits? 

- 3 -  
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adequate to serve present customers based on permitted capacity? 

A .  Yes. 

9. 
Rule 62-600, Florida Administrative Code? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Has the FDEP required the utility to take any action so as to minimize 

possible adverse effects resulting from odors, noise, aerosol drift or 

lighting? 

A. No. 

Q. 

respect to location, reliability and safety? 

A. Yes. 

Q. 
Florida Administrative Code? 

A. Yes. 

4. Is the overall maintenance of the treatment, collection, and disposal 

facilities satisfactory? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does the facility meet the effluent disposal requirements of Rules 

62-600 and 62-610, Florida Administrative Code? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are the collection, treatment and disposal facilities in compliance with 

all the other provisions of Chapter 62, Florida Administrative Code, not 

previously mentioned? 

A. Yes. 

Are the treatment and disposal facilities located in accordance with 

Do the pump stations and lift stations for meet FDEP requirements with 

Does the utility have certified operators as required by Rule 61E12-41, 

- 4 -  
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1. 
:nforcement action within the past two years? 

4 .  

consent order contained in Exhibit PJ-1. 

Has Apache Shores wastewater system been the subject of any FDEP 

Yes. That information is detailed in the Warning Letter and executed 

Point O’Woods Wastewater System 

Q. 

FDEP for Point 0’ Woods Wastewater System (Point O’Woods)? 

A .  Yes. 

Q. Please state the issuance dates and the expiration dates of the 

operating or construction permits. 

A. Operating permit was issued April 28, 1995. Expiration - October 30, 

1999. Construction permit - April 11, 1995 issuance, December 31, 1995 

expi ration. 

Q. 

A. The plant has been operating out of compliance for several years 

prior to SSU taking responsibility over its operation. SSU has brought the 

facility into compliance without FDEP taking enforcement measures. There have 

been a few minor deficiencies on the MORS due to construction activities. 

9. Are the wastewater collection, treatment and disposal facilities 

adequate to serve present customers based on permitted capacity? 

A. Yes. 

9. Are the treatment and disposal facilities located in accordance with 

Rule 62-600, Florida Administrative Code? 

A. Yes. 

9. 

Does the utility have current operating or construction permits from the 

Is the plant in compliance with FDEP issued permits? 

Yes. 

Has the FDEP required the utility to take any action so as to minimize 

- 5 -  
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possible adverse effects resulting from odors, noise, aerosol drift or 

lighting? 

A. No. 

Q. Do the pump stations and lift stations meet FDEP requirements with 

respect to location, reliability and safety? 

A. Yes. 

Q. 
Florida Administrative Code? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Is the overall maintenance of the treatment, collection, and disposal 

facilities satisfactory? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does the facility meet the effluent disposal requirements of Rules 

62-600 and 62-610, Florida Administrative Code? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are the collection, treatment and disposal facilities in compliance with 

all the other provisions of Chapter 62, Florida Administrative Code, not 

previously mentioned? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Has Point O'Woods wastewater system been the subject of any FDEP 

enforcement action within the past two years? 

A. No. 

Does the utility have certified operators as required by Rule 61E12-41, 

Spring Gardens Wastewater System 

Q. 
FDEP for Spring Gardens Wastewater System (Spring Gardens)? 

Does the utility have current operating or  construction permits from the 

- 6 -  
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A. Yes. 

Q. Please state the issuance dates and the expiration dates of the 

operating or construction permits. 

A. 

Q. Are the wastewater collection, treatment and disposal facilities 

adequate to serve present customers based on permitted capacity? 

A. Yes. Currently, the service area has a building moratorium. 

Q. Are the treatment and disposal facilities located in accordance with 

Rule 62-600, Florida Administrative Code? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Has the FDEP required the utility to take any action so as to minimize 

possible adverse effects resulting from odors, noise, aerosol drift or 

1 ighting? 

SSU is in the process of obtaining a wastewater permit. 

A. No. 

Q. Do the pump stations and lift stations meet FDEP requirements with 

respect to location, reliability and safety? 

A. No. One of the lift stations located within a residential area does not 

meet the 10 year storm event. The electrical panel box does not meet the 25 

year storm event. 

Q. 

Florida Administrative Code? 

A. Yes. 

9. Is the overall maintenance of the treatment, collection, and disposal 

facilities satisfactory? 

A. 

Does the utility have certified operators as required by Rule 61E12-41, 

No. SSU needs to sod or seed the pond berms to offset erosion problems. 

- 7 -  
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Q. Does the facility meet the effluent disposal requirements of Rules 

62-600 and 62-610, Florida Administrative Code? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are the collection, treatment and disposal facilities in compliance with 

all the other provisions of Chapter 62, Florida Administrative Code, not 

previously mentioned? 

A. No.  SSU needs to remove old sludge from all three of their ponds. I 

suggest the aildition of fresh sand and rototilling bottom of ponds to enhance 

percol ati on. 

Q. Has Spring Gardens wastewater system been the subject of any FDEP 

enforcement action within the past two years? 

A. This system has been hydraulically overloaded over several years. 

SSU, as the new owner, has completed repairs on the infiltration problems with 

the collection system. In the past, the ponds were always discharging 

effluent. After the recent repairs, the ponds appear to be functioning fine. 

Q. 

A. I would like to see the installation of a secondary blower to ensure 

100% viability of the plant and its treatment. I would like records kept at 

the plant regarding rotation of the disposal ponds. This will ensure a proper 

rest and load in order to prevent ground water mounding. 

Sugar Mill Woods Wastewater System 

Yes. 

Do you have anything further to add? 

Does the utility have current operating or construction permits from the 
~ Q -  

FDEP for Sugar Mill Woods Wastewater System (Sugar Mill Woods)? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Please state the issuance dates and the expiration dates of the 

- 8 -  
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operating or construction permits. 

A. 

permit is in house. 

Q. Is the plant in compliance with FDEP issued permits? 

A. No. The flow meter and composite sampler were hit by lightning and have 

been down since August. Repairs were delayed due to construction on the 

influent structure where flow is measured. The only problem the Department 

has that it was not notified of this occurrence nor was it reflected that 

flows were being estimated on monthly operating reports. Therefore all 

sampling should have been represented as grab samples. Their permit requires 

8 hour flow proportionate composite samples be done weekly. 

Q. Are the wastewater collection, treatment and disposal facilities 

adequate to serve present customers based on permitted capacity? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are the treatment and disposal facilities located in accordance with 

Rule 62-600, Florida Administrative Code? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Has the FDEP required the utility to take any action so as to minimize 

possible adverse effects resulting from odors, noise, aerosol drift or 

lighting? 

A. No. 

Q. Do the pump stations and lift stations meet FDEP requirements with 

respect to location, reliability and safety? 

A. Yes. 

4. 

Both expire on December 31, 1995. Application for renewal of wastewater 

Does the utility have certified operators as required by Rule 61E12-41, 

- 9 -  
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lorida Administrative Code? 

Yes. 

. Is the overall maintenance of the treatment, collection, and disposal 

acilities satisfactory? 

. Yes. 

. Does the facility meet the effluent disposal requirements of Rules 

2-600 and 62-610, Florida Administrative Code? 

Yes. 

. Are the collection, treatment and disposal facilities in compliance with 

11 the other provisions of Chapter 62, Florida Administrative Code, not 

reviously mentioned? 

Yes. 

. Has Sugar Mill Woods wastewater system been the subject of any FDEP 

nforcement action within the past two years? 

No.  

Do you have anything further to add? 

No, I do not. 

. 

- 10 - 



P 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

2904 

BY MS. SUMMERLIN: 

Q Ms. James, did you also file Exhibit Number PJ-1 

consisting of 8 pages with your testimony? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Thank you. 

MS. sUMMERLIN: Chairman 

exhibit identified? 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: That wi 

Exhibit 181. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Thank you. 

Clark, can we have that 

1 be identified as 

We tender this witnes 

for cross. 

(Exhibit Number 181 marked for identification.) 

MR. McLEAN: The Citizens have no questions. 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Twomey. 

MR. TWOMEY: Yes, ma'am. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. TWOMEY: 

Q Good afternoon, Ms. James. 

A Good afternoon. 

Q My name is Mike Twomey, I'm representing a number 

of civic associations and homeowners groups who are 

customers of SSU, including several, or one in Citrus 

County, Sugarmill Woods. 

I would ask you to look at Page 5 of your 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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testimony, please. 

ssu's Apache Shores wastewater system has been the subject 

of a warning letter, and that it had executed a consent 

order, which is shown in your exhibit, correct? 

At the top you discuss the fact that 

A That's correct. 

Q Now, as shown on Page I of 8 of your exhibit, the 

utility is required to pay the Department $3,500 in civil 

penalties, right? 

A Yes. 

Q Along with the costs. Have they taken the 

corrective actions yet, SSU, to -- 
A Yes, they have. 

Q They have corrected all of these matters that are 

shown? 

A Yes, they have. They are in compliance. 

Q Pardon me? 

A They are in compliance at this time. 

Q Okay. Let me ask you to turn to Page I of your 

testimony, please. In reference to the Spring Gardens 

system, you indicate on Page I that there is currently a 

building moratorium, is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Is that still in effect? 

A Yes, sir, it is. 

Q Okay. And that that moratorium is based on the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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fact that there is no more permitted capacity remaining in 

that system, is that correct? 

A The past history of this facility -- we're getting 

an echo, excuse me. 

Q If you could speak closer into that microphone or 

whatever you have you would be a little louder, I think. 

A The past history of the facility, it has been, you 

know, basically overloaded, overloaded the designed capacity 

of the plant. But SSU has taken measures to eliminate the 

infiltration going into the plant. 

Q Okay. Now, you said they have taken measures, do 

you have -- when did they start taking those measures? 
A I'm not really sure. I know that they -- well, I 

don't want to get a wrong answer, but I guess around January 

they did another smoke test and they were able to find two 

areas in January of infiltration coming into the plant. 

Q Okay. 

A But they had started previously to January. 

Q I see. But there is still currently a building 

moratorium, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Now, do they have any -- does SSU currently have 
any construction permits open with you to increase capacity 

there? 

A No, sir, they don't. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q So who puts the building moratorium in place, is 

that your agency or a county operation? 

A The county does. 

Q I‘m sorry, the county does? 

A Uh-huh, yes, sir. 

Q Okay. What does SSU have to do in orur to get 

out from under the building moratorium? 

A They just have to provide the department empirical 

data showing that during seasonal highs that they are below 

design capacity. 

Q I see. Let me ask you, when was this plant last 

inspected, if you know? 

A The last inspection on this plant was done in 

November ‘ 9 5 .  

Q Okay. On Page 7, you also state at the bottom 

that the overall maintenance of the facilities are not 

satisfactory, and you refer to the need to sod or seed the 

pond berms. Have they corrected that deficiency? 

A I spoke to SSU today, and they said they have 

reseeded the berms and have laid hay to hold the seed in on 

top of the berms. 

Q I see. How about on the next page, Page 8, you 

indicate that SSU needs to remove old sludge from all three 

of their ponds, and you suggest some other addition of fresh 

sand and rototilling pond bottoms to enhance percolation. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Have they corrected those deficiencies yet? 

A Not yet. 

Q If they are not in compliance with those 

provisions of Chapter 62 of the Florida Administrative Code, 

do you find them in violation for that, or what is the 

status of that? 

A Can you rephrase that, again, I'm sorry. 

Q Yes. My question essentially is, have you found 

them in violation for not being in compliance with Chapter 

62 for not removing the sludge and so forth? 

A We usually give them time to allow the pond to dry 

up, and what they have done is they have diverted the flow 

from the pond that has the solids in it, and they are 

allowing it to dry up so they can get equipment in there to 

take out the solids. 

Q I see. Do you know why they hadn't done this 

before? 

A No, sir, I can't answer that. 

Q Let me just say it this way. They have certified 

operators at this plant, right? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Okay. Shouldn't this be the type of thing that 

SSU should accomplish as the normal practice of a utility of 

their size? 

A Yes, sir, but the solids that were lost in this 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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plant were due to a previous utility that was handling the 

plant. 

Q You're saying a previous owner? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. So SSU presumably bought it in this 

condition, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. On Page 8, you begin a discussion of the 

Sugarmill Woods wastewater system, and you say that the 

plant is not in compliance with FDEP issued permits in part 

because the flow meter and composite sampler were hit by 

lightning and have been down since August. And I want to 

ask you, are those repairs accomplished yet, do you know? 

A We asked in a letter to find out when they were 

repaired, and we never receive a response. We got another 

letter from SSU stating that they had another lightning 

strike and it hit the flow meter again. 

Q I'm sorry, so are you saying that they said that 

it was fixed but that it got hit by lightning again? 

A Well, we never got a response indicating when it 

was repaired. 

Q I see. 

A Then we got another letter stating that the flow 

meter evidently was hit again by lightning and that it was 

going to be repaired again. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q Is that flow meter important from your regulatory 

perspective of measuring anything of significance? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q And what does it measure? 

A It measures the flow coming to the plant 

basically, so that we know that the plant is not receiving 

beyond the designed capacity of the plant. The flow is not 

going over the design capacity of the plant. 

Q So it's critical in determining whether the design 

capacity is being exceeded, is it not? 

A That's correct. 

Q Because there is no other way to ascertain what 

the in-flows to the system are, right? 

A They could possibly with time clocks on the lift 

station, but it would be very labor intensive. 

Q Are you aware that they are doing that? 

A We were made aware of that, I guess, February 10th 

that the flow meter has been repaired. 

Q I'm sorry, say that again? 

A On February 10th we were notified that the flow 

meter had been repaired. 

Q Oh, you mean that it has been repaired after the 

second lightning hit? 

A Right. 

Q Okay. So it's working now, presumably? 
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A Yes, sir. 

Q Are you a correct witness to ask about SSU's 

construction permits vis-a-vis the wastewater treatment 

plant at Sugarmill Woods? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Okay. Before I do that, let me ask you when did 

you say your last inspection was at Sugarmill Woods, or did 

I ask you that? 

A It was in November ' 9 5 .  

Q MS. James, what is the current permitted capacity 

of the wastewater treatment plant at Sugarmill Woods, is it 

.4 million gallons per day or .5? 

A It is .5. 

Q Okay. The utility had a construction permit to 

increase the capacity of that plant to .I million gallons 

per day, is that correct? 

A They may have had a construction permit, but they 

are not asking for an increase at this time. 

Q I'm sorry, did you say they are not asking for an 

increase at this time? 

A That's correct. 

Q So they are staying at .5? 

A That's correct. 

Q Do you know how much, if any, of the construction 

they had indicated pursuant to the .I expansion that they 
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actually completed? 

A They have installed a new chlorine contact 

chamber, they have repaired where the effluent comes in from 

the lift station, they have installed a back-up generator, 

and that is all at this time. 

Q 

A No, sir. 

Q Okay. Do you think the plant is currently 

adequate for -- has adequate capacity to treat the flows 

from Sugarmill Woods? 

Do you know when they intend to expand that plant? 

A Let me have a few minutes. Well, based on the 

most recent monthly operating report that we have received 

from Sugarmill Woods, it does exceed the design capacity of 

the plant in the February monthly operating report, okay. 

From August to January, the design flow did not exceed the 

capacity of the plant, but they may be estimated flows. I 

don't know if they actually came from a flow meter, because 

we don't have any record of them repairing the flow meter 

during that time. 

Q Okay. If they have apparently exceeded their 

capacity -- let me ask you first, are you aware of whether 

there have been any building moratoriums in the geographic 

area served by the utility's service area? 

A No, sir. 

Q Okay. If the plant has in the last year 
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apparently exceeded its capacity at one point, isn't the 

utility obliged pursuant to your rules for planning new 

construction to be in a position to start that construction 

soon? 

A Yes. They have to do a capacity analysis report. 

Q Right. And have they done that? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Okay. And help me understand your rules in this 

regard. Does the DEP in addition to having them do the 

capacity analysis, require them to begin new construction, 

or do you merely put them -- do they merely run up against 

building moratoriums if they don't have adequate capacity? 

I'm sorry, how does the DEP deal with a utility that is 

pushing up close against its capacity? 

A Can we hold for a second? 

Q Sure. 

A I'm going to refer that to Mr. MacColeman, okay? 

Q Sure. 

A Because he wants to make a statement. 

WITNESS MacCOLEMAN: Please repeat the question. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Let me make a suggestion. Why 

don't we stay with Ms. James, and then you just simply 

re-ask that question for Mr. MacColeman, okay? Would that 

be all right? 

MR. TWOMEY: That's fine. And that's all I have 
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for you, MS. James. 

we can traverse back to the gentleman- 

Thank you very much for your time. Now 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: NO, no. 

MR. TWOMEY: I'm sorry, the company. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Ms. James, now we will have cross 

examination by Mr. Armstrong with SSU. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. ARMSTRONG: 

Q Hi, Ms. James. 

A How are you doing? 

Q First, as I did with the witnesses this morning, 

it wasn't the company who wanted to make sure that you were 

testifying today. We appreciate you have a work load, and 

since we have to work with you constantly, know that we 

weren't the ones that wanted you to testify, okay? I just 

have a couple of questions for you. I would like to refer 

you to Page 5 ,  with regard to Point '0 Woods. 

MR. TWOMEY: While she is looking for that 

document, Madam Chairman, will you consider instructing Mr. 

Armstrong not to testify about the fact that it is me making 

these witnesses come here. 

MR. ARMSTRONG: I don't mean to suggest that. 

These witnesses, we have to work with them on a daily basis, 

and some of them aren't comfortable having to testify, Madam 

Chair. I don't mean to infer that he is doing something 
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inappropriate. 

mean that at all. I don't mean that in the 

least. These guys are sitting here saying, "I hope they 

won't get mad," because they are being forced to testify. 

If that is what he infers from that, I don't 

Okay, Mike? 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Ms. James and Mr. MacColeman, I 

hope you understand that the Commission finds your testimony 

valuable in determining whether or not these facilities are 

in compliance with state regulations in how they are 

operating, and we know we have subpoenaed a lot of you to be 

here and we appreciate your testifying. 

WITNESS MacCOLEMAN: Thank YOU. 

WITNESS JAMES: Thank you. 

BY MR. ARMSTRONG: 

Q MS. James, are you on Page 51  

A Yes, sir. 

Q Thank you. At Line 15 you refer to the fact that 

the plant had been operating out of compliance for several 

years prior to SSU taking responsibility over the plant 

operation. Could you describe what the noncompliance was in 

that instance? 

A No, sir. 

Q Okay. 

A Not at this time. 

Q Okay. But you are familiar with the fact that 

since Southern States took that facility, they made the 
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corrective measures to bring it within compliance, correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Thank you. If I may refer to your Page I of your 

exhibit, and that is a letter dated May 5th, 1995 -- 
A Okay. The consent order, the short form consent 

order. 

Q Right. And five lines down in the first paragraph 

of the body of that letter you refer to the fact that the 

corrective actions that were required had been completed, 

right? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. On Page 7 of your testimony, you refer to 

Spring Gardens. Mr. Twomey asked you several questions 

about that. Is it true that Southern States recently 

acquired the Spring Gardens facility? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Are you aware of the reductions, the actual 

reductions in the levels of I&I that have occurred since 

Southern States has made the improvements you referred to? 

A Yes, sir. I have seen the monthly operating 

reports go down, the flow. 

Q Do you have any quantification of just how far 

they did go down? 

A I would say maybe about 50 percent. 

Q I'm sorry, I couldn't hear that. 
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A Roughly about 50 percent. 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Thank you, Ms. James. I don't 

have any further questions. Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Any questions, Commissioners? 

Redirect. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Staff has no redirect. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Thank you, MS. James. We will 

now go to Mr. MacColeman, and we need to go through the same 

procedures we went through with MS. James. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Thank you. Before we begin, we 

have passed out to the parties and the Commissioners an 

exhibit for Mr. MacColeman identified as DGM-1. We would 

like to have that marked for identification. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: DGM-1 will be marked as Exhibit 

182. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Thank you. 

(Exhibit Number 182 marked for identification.) 

DAVID MaCCOLEMAN 

was called as a witness on behalf of the Staff of the 

Florida Public Service Commission and, having been duly 

sworn, testified as follows via teleconference: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. SUMMERLIN: 

Q Mr. MacColeman, please state your name and 

business address. 
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A 11m David MacColeman, I work at the Department of 

Environmental Protection, Southwest District, 3804 Coconut 

Palm Drive, Tampa, Florida. 

Q Could you move the microphone a bit closer to you 

or speak closer to the microphone. 

A How is that? 

Q That's a bit better. Thank you. Have you 

prefiled direct testimony in this docket consisting of three 

pages? 

A I have. 

Q Do you have any changes or corrections to your 

testimony? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q What would that change or correction be? 

A Regarding Palm Terrace Gardens, on April 17th, 

1996, I made an inspection of the facility and further 

evaluated the records. I reconfirmed my earlier statement 

that the facility has exceeded its quarterly seasonal flows. 

In addition to that, I also found that there were some 

anomalies at the facility which put it significantly out of 

compliance at this time. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Thank you. Chairman Clark, can we 

have Mr. MacColeman's testimony inserted into the record as 

though read? 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: The prefiled direct testimony of 
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Mr. David MacColeman will be inserted to the record as 

though read with the changes he just noted. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Thank YOU. 
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DIRECT TESTIMONY OF DAVID G. MACCOLEMAN 

Q. 

A. David G. MacColeman, 3804 Coconut Palm Drive, Tampa, Florida 33619. 

Q. 

experience. 

A. I hold a B.S. degree in Biology and Chemistry, and an expired wastewater 

"C" certificate. I have three years experience as an operator of a Class I 

wastewater treatment plant and four and a half years inspecting wastewater 

treatment plants. I am currently employed as an Environmental Supervisor. 

Q. 

A. I am employed by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 

(FDEP) . 
Q. 

A. 

Domestic wastewater compliance enforcement section. 

Q. What are your general responsibilities at the FDEP? 

A. I am responsible for Pasco, Hernando, and Citrus Counties wastewater 

treatment plants to make sure they are in compliance with Florida Statutes and 

Florida Administrative Code. 

9. Are you familiar with the Southern States Utilities, Inc. wastewater 

systems located in Southwest District? 

A. Only those facilities in Pasco, Hernando, and Citrus Counties. 

Q. Were these systems inspected by you, or by FDEP staff under your 

supervision? 

A. Yes. However, Phyllis Jones will file testimony about plants in Citrus 

Please state your name and business address. 

Please state a brief description of your educational background and 

By whom are you presently employed? 

How long have you been employed with the FDEP and in what capacity? 

Four and a half years, currently as a Environmental Supervisor I1  in the 
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County and Pete Burghardt will file testimony as to selected facilities in 

Pasco County. 

Palm Terrace Wastewater System 

Q. 

FDEP for Palm Terrace Wastewater System (Palm Terrace)? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Please state the issuance dates and the expiration dates of the 

operating or construction permits. 

A. Permit No. DO 511234067, was issued September 27, 1993, and expires 

August 18, 1998. 

Q. 

A .  Yes, however, on occasion it does exceed its permitted capacity. 

Q. Are the wastewater collection, treatment and disposal facilities 

adequate to serve present customers based on permitted capacity? 

A. No. The seasonal flows exceeds plant permitted capacity. 

Q. 

accordance with Rule 62-600, Florida Administrative Code? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Has the FDEP required the utility to take any action so as to minimize 

possible adverse effects resulting from odors, noise, aerosol drift or 

lighting? 

A. No. 

Q. Do the pump stations and lift stations meet FDEP requirements with 

respect to location, reliability and safety? 

A. Yes. 

Does the utility have current operating or construction permits fromthe 

Are the plants in compliance with FDEP issued permits? 

Are the treatment and disposal facilities for Palm Terrace located in 

- 2 -  
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Q. Does the utility have certified operators as required by Rule 61E12-41, 

Florida Administrative Code? 

A. Yes. 

Q. 

facilities satisfactory? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does the facility meet the effluent disposal requirements of Rules 

62-600 and 62-610, Florida Administrative Code? 

A. A capacity Analysis Report is due and the result of that study may 

require improvements. 

Q. Are the collection, treatment and disposal facilities in compliance with 

all the other provisions of Chapter 62, Florida Administrative Code, not 

previously mentioned? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Has Palm Terrace wastewater system been the subject of any FDEP 

enforcement action within the past two years? 

A. No. 

Q. 

A. Yes. The seasonal regulated flows exceed plant capacity although a 

review of the monthly operating reports do not reveal any excedences of the 

permit limits. Ground water exhibits radial flows that may or may not be 

associated with this flow. SSU should submit a Capacity Analysis Report and 

note plans to expand the plant or convert this facility to a regional public 

owned treatment works (POTW). 

Is the overall maintenance of the treatment, collection, and disposal 

Do you have anything further to add? 

- 3 -  
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BY MS. SUMMERLIN: 

Q Mr. Maccoleman, the document dated April 25th, 

1996, identified as DGM-1, does that relate to your change 

to your testimony? 

A Yes, it does. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Thank you very much. The witness 

is tendered for cross. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Twomey. 

MR. TWOMEY: Yes, ma'am. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. TWOMEY: 

Let me ask you, sir, first going back to the -- Q 
can you hear me okay? 

A Yes. 

Q Let me say good afternoon, first. 

A Hello. 

Q Going back to the Sugarmill Woods system, the flow 

meter at the Sugarmill Woods water/wastewater treatment 

plant that went out apparently twice by lightning strikes, 

is that a device that you are familiar with? 

A I'm not familiar with the device itself, but I am 

familiar with those types of circumstances. 

Q I'm sorry? 

A I'm not familiar with that particular device, but 

I am familiar with those types of circumstances. 
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Q Well, let me ask you this, are you familiar enough 

with the flow meter to know whether they can be replaced 

readily if one were to have a spare? 

A In most cases they are, but most utilities don't 

There are so many different carry that type of equipment. 

types of flow meters, it's difficult to keep that type of 

inventory available. 

Q I see. 

A With time they are replaced, though. 

Q Okay. Would you expect that one of the advantages 

of a utility that is statewide in nature and has many 

systems, that they would be able to keep one spare on hand 

for ready replacement? 

A I wouldn't have an opinion on that. 

Q I think the question that was referred to you is 

in the case of a plant such as the wastewater treatment 

plant at Sugarmill Woods, which apparently has exceeded its 

design capacity on at least one occasion in the last 12 

months, what action -- do you know that to be true? Do you 

know about it? 

A Phyllis is supervisor, and if she states that's 

true, it's true. 

Q Now, the question then is, given that that is 

true, what action does your department take, if any, to see 

that a utility begins construction of new capacity? 
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A In cases where a utility has exceeded its flow for 

one month, we would look at the permit and the Permit 

limits. The flow is just one element of the Plant's 

functionality. We are concerned with flow, truly, but if 

the plant is meeting its monthly operating toward limits, it 

is of less consequences. If they should happen to fail to 

meet their limits, then it would be more important, and we 

would take steps to ask them to expand their facility. 

Q How much of a planning -- let me make sure I 
understood what you said already. You're saying that the 

plant flows can exceed its design capacity and the utility 

can still be okay with the DEP if it meets other operating 

conditions? 

A Yes. 

Q Sir, to be clear, are you saying that a plant can 

have flows that exceed its design capacity, but the effluent 

can still ultimately meet acceptable levels? 

A It happens, yes. 

Q I don't mean to quibble with you, but does it 

happen on rare occasions or is it common that plants can 

exceed their design capacities and still meet your technical 

requirements for compliance? 

A The design capacity of a plant very often is below 

its limit that allows it to treat the enfluent. The test of 

the plants compliance is not only flow, but also the quality 
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of the effluent produced. 

facilities have the ability to have flows which periodically 

occur that exceed their design capacities, but they are 

still able to produce an effluent which meets the 

requirements of the monthly operating report. 

Small facilities and large 

Q Okay. Let me ask you this, if you're in a 

position to know, as Ms. James' supervisor. My 

understanding is that SSU has had -- SSU had the 
construction permit and then had the -- for expansion to .7 
million gallons per day, and then had that extended, I 

think, until the end of the year. Are you aware of that? 

A No, I'm not. 

Q Okay. Well, let me ask you this, if you're aware. 

When should SSU start construction on the necessary physical 

facilities to expand the capacity of this wastewater 

treatment plant? 

A I don't have access to the records. We would look 

at the flows for several months, look at seasonality, and 

the quality of the effluent. If they are consistently above 

the 50 percent level, then there is a schedule within the 

rules that require them to begin the planning structure so 

they don't consistently exceed the flows and affect the 

effluent quality. 

Q Okay, sir. Let me go to the Exhibit 182 that was 

just handed Out a few moments ago, it deals with the Palm 
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Terrace Gardens wastewater treatment plant. 

page of that document, in Paragraph 3 ,  that is the numbered 

Paragraph 3, the report says that the monthly operating 

reports indicate three months average daily flows exceeding 

or the capacity of the disposal system to such an extent -- 

On the second 

extinct -- I guess it's supposed to be extent, that 
seasonality s exhibited. Is that a serious problem? 

A It is if that continues to be a pattern over a 

period of time. The question at this point is whether or 

not it is a matter of flow from the households or if it is a 

problem with the I&I. 

Q From infiltration? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Their recordkeeping is inadequate. Do you 

follow up on that later to see if they have corrected those? 

A Yes. The recordkeeping I found there doesn't 

allow me to have the confidence that the reporting on the 

MORS is accurate. 

Q Okay. So even without that confidence you had 

enough information to tell that they had exceeded their 

capacity, though, is that correct? 

A The recordkeeping was regarding the total chlorine 

residual. The flow was a result of the MORS filed over the 

last few months. 

Q I see. Let me ask you very quickly, when the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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capacity of the disposal system is exceeded even on a 

seasonal basis, does that mean that the effluent that leaves 

the system exceeds requirements? 

A please restate the question. 

Q Yes, sir. When the plant exceeds its daily flows, 

as you indicated in Paragraph 3 ,  does that mean the effluent 

that's leaving the plant exceeds acceptable quality 

standards? 

A No. 

Q Okay. Sir, if the sludge carries over into the 

chlorine contact chamber, is that an indication that the 

flow through the clarifier exceeds its capacity? 

A It may well. 

Q Okay. Well, would it typically -- I mean, would 

there be conditions where sludge would go through and not 

indicate exceeding capacity? 

A The capacity, the reference to the subject in the 

clarifier occurs in many different conditions. One may be 

hydraulic, the other maybe the failure of the operator to 

maintain an adequate DO in the aerators, it could be a 

problem with the lift pumps in the clarifier, the design of 

the clarifiers, there are a lot of reasons for the sludge to 

carry through into the contact chamber. If this would occur 

continually, yes, it would cause a problem with the effluent 

quality . 
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MR. TWOMEY: Okay. Thank you very much both for 

your time. That's all I have. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Armstrong. 

MR. ARMSTRONG: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Redirect. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Mr. McLean advised me he had no 

questions. 

let you know. We have no redirect. 

He is out of the room right, but he wanted me to 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Okay. Ms. James and Mr. 

MacColeman, I want to thank you very much for taking the 

time to participate in this proceeding. I also want to say 

I appreciate your persistence in getting to the right 

location, and please convey to your supervisors and to the 

Secretary that your testimony has been very valuable to us 

and we appreciate your taking the time to participate in 

this proceeding. Thank you very much. 

WITNESS MacCOLEMAN: Thank you. 

WITNESS JAMES: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: And we will take a break until 

6:30. Well, did you have -- 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Just 

two witnesses. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Yes 

move in exhibits for those 

I'm sorry. Go ahead. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Staff would move 181 and 182, 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: All right. They will be entered 
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in the record without objection. 

until 6:30 to allow everybody to get something to eat, or 

order out, or whatever. And then we will reconvene with Ms. 

Dismukes, and then after MS. Dismukes, we will take up those 

witnesses who have been subpoenaed by Public Counsel. Thank 

you. 

And we will take a break 

(Exhibit Number 181 and 182 received into 

evidence.) 

(Dinner recess.) 

KIMBERLY H. DISMUKES 

resumed the stand on behalf of the Office of Public Counsel, 

and having previously been duly sworn, testified as follows: 

CONTINUED CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. JAEGER: 

Q Ms. Dismukes, do you remember the last question I 

asked you? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. And you were going to look at it and try to 

figure out -- are you ready to respond now? 

A Yes, I am. 

COMMISSIONER GARCIA: Let me hear the question 

again. 

MR. JAEGER: Okay. 

BY MR. JAEGER: 

Q What I asked, I said if a stand-alone rate 
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structure or a modified stand-alone rate structure is 

approved, in your opinion, how should 1996 consumption be 

determined for each individual plant? 

A I'm going to answer this question in the context 

of the gallons per month from Doctor Whitcomb's study, 

because I think that was the context in which you asked the 

question. 

take the difference between the billing units projected by 

Southern States and those resulting from the Whitcomb study, 

in other words, the 9,476 gallons, and then prorate those 

gallons back to the individual systems in accordance with 

the consumption that has been projected by Southern States 

in 1996. And that would allow you to account for the 

difference in consumption patterns between the different 

systems. 

Essentially, all you would need to do would be to 

Q Thank you. I've still got a few more. As stat d 

in your direct testimony on Page 51, Lines 9 through 11, if 

the Commission accepts your alternate recommendation to use 

1992 and 1993 billing units to project 1996 billing units, 

this will increase consumption by $318,515,813, which will 

increase the test year revenues by $428,398, is that 

correct? 

A The thrust of the question is essentially correct, 

but you said dollars when you meant to say gallons. 

Q Yes, I meant gallons. Would the same methodology 
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to increase test year variable expenses to account for the 

increased consumption in related costs, as you did with your 

primary recommendation be used for your alternate 

recommendation? 

A Yes. 

Q And would that number, subject to check, be around 

$130,000? 

A 

Q 

I’ll accept that and check it. 

I think in your testimony you said it would not be 

prudent nor reasonable to include actual 1995 consumption 

data into projecting 1996 consumption, is that correct? 

A That is my position, yes. 

Q And the reason you believe this is true is because 

in your opinion there was a lot of rainfall in 1995 and 

rainfall tends to understate consumption? 

A Yes. In 1995 there was more rainfall than in 

1994. It was one of the wettest years of the five-year 

period. 

Q Since rainfall does not affect the number of 

bills, would you agree that projecting 1996 bills from 

actual 1995 bills may be more appropriate and accurate than 

projecting from 19941 

A Yes. 

Q At the beginning of this, I passed out an exhibit 

consisting of two pages, and it comes from Mr. Terrero’s 
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rebuttal, but also is the first to pages of a permit? 

A Yes, I have that. 

Q Are you familiar with this current domestic 

wastewater facility permit issued in October of 1995 by DEP 

for the Buenaventura Lakes wastewater treatment plant? 

A No, I'm not. I did look it over at the break, 

though. 

Q Okay. Could you turn to Page 2 of that document, 

2 of 51, and look under the -- right at the top it says 

reuse? 

A Yes. 

Q Could you read the first sentence sense of that 

paragraph? 

A Sure. "Surface water discharge and existing .1 

MGD AAFD -- AADF permitted capacity nonjurisdictional 3-cell 
169 acre treatment wetland reuse system (R001) required to 

hold emergency discharge from the REB storage during wet 

weather and reuse water f o r  wetlands enhancement to maintain 

a productive wildlife habit (sic)." 

Q Habitat. 

A Habitat, thank you. 

Q According to this permit, would you agree that the 

169 acre wetlands system is permitted at .1 MGD? 

A Could you repeat the question. 

Q According to this permit, would you agree that the 
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169 acre wetland system is permitted at .1 MGD? 

A Yes. 

Q And is part of the overall effluent disposal 

capacity of the 1.93 MGD? 

A Yes. 

Q Also attached to that exhibit are a couple of 

schedules. 1'11 be asking you about those schedules now. 

Please refer to Schedule 32 of your exhibit, that's KHD-1. 

Is it true that the purchased power, purchased water, and 

chemical expense information in your exhibit comes from 

Schedule B-5 of MFR Volume 12, Books 1 through 27,  and 

Volume 3, Books 1 through 6 1  

A I will accept that subject to check. 

Q Okay. And does this expense information come from 

Column 5 of these MFR volumes? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, isn't true that Column 5 represents per book 

expense and Column 7 represents adjusted expense? 

A Yes. 

Q Shouldn't you use Column 7 instead of Column 5 to 

make the expense adjustments for excessive unaccounted for 

water? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. I'm done with those schedules, then. 

A Okay. 
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Q The next questions have to do with public 

relations and the conservation program. Do you agree that 

public relations advertising is an integral part of an 

effective conservation program? 

A I don't know that I would characterize it as 

public relations advertising. I do believe that advertising 

with respect to the conservation program is an integral part 

of that. It does not necessarily have to be image 

enhancement, that's what I call PR. 

Q So conservation programs cannot be successful 

without public participation and support? 

A Oh, I agree with that. 

Q Do you agree that a utility can educate the public 

on conservation without public relations? 

A I think they can do it without necessarily -- they 

have to have somebody to get the message out. They have to 

advertise, they have to send out the brochures to the 

customers. It does not necessarily have to be done through 

a public relations firm, it can be done through an 

advertising firm or whatever. And my whole bone of 

contention with the company's conservation program and many 

of the costs that they have incurred in the past, is that 

it's clear that those expenses were incurred for the purpose 

of enhancing the company's image, and if there was 

conservation associated with it, it was secondary. 
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Q So you're saying that a utility can educate the 

public on conservation without public relations or without 

blatantly going overboard on public relations? 

A Without blatantly going overboard, yes. I guess 

that's a better way to characterize it. 

Q Do you agree that the public relations and image 

building advertising in SSU's conservation program can be 

separated? 

A I think if you look at the historical information, 

yes, it can be separated. But in this particular instance, 

we are looking at a projected test year, and so it is very 

difficult to determine in the future what is going to be 

public relations and/or image enhancement versus 

conservation. 

Q So, in lieu of going through each invoice, what 

have you recommended? 

A Essentially with respect to the company's 

conservation program, I have several different 

recommendations depending upon what program it is, what 

expense was incurred. With respect to the advertising 

costs, for example, I disallowed half of those costs. They 

increased substantially from prior years, and I had looked 

at on a historical basis, the information that Southern 

States had supplied, and I felt that it was more image 

enhancement than conservation related. I've got numerous 
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recommendations concerning the other conservation programs. 

Their six targeted communities, I don't believe that the 

company has shown that those conservation programs are 

cost-effective. 

and I am recommending that those expenses be disallowed 

because the company has not proven them to be reasonable nor 

adequately addressed them, nor have they considered whether 

or not rate structure would be a more appropriate 

alternative to their proposed program. I could go on for 

days, and I don't think you want to listen to me. 

They have done no cost/benefit analysis, 

Q I'm sorry I asked the question now. Are you aware 

that Mr. Broverman's rebuttal testimony was stricken at the 

beginning of this hearing? 

A I'm aware that it has been stricken, yes. 

Q I'm going back to rate case expense, again, for 

just a couple of questions. Since Mr. Broverman's rebuttal 

testimony regarding SSU's FAS 106 expenses was stricken, 

would you agree that any costs associated with his testimony 

should be removed from rate base expense? 

A Yes. 

Q Thank you. The next questions go to Docket Number 

930880-WS, the uniform rate docket. I think you recommended 

that the Commission disallow 80 percent of the cost SSU 

budgeted/incurred, I think it came to about $345,671, is 

that correct? 
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A Yes. 

Q And you are aware that the company would incur 

certain minimum costs in order to participate in this 

investigation, such as legal fees and costs related to 

sending the Commission required notices, is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q In your deposition in April, you mentioned that 

you may change your recommendation regarding the amount of 

costs which the Commission should allow in recovery related 

to this docket. I didn't hear that change. 

A I didn't make it. I can elaborate if you would 

like or you can continue. 

Q Well, has your position changed from your 

deposition? 

A My position has not changed from the deposition. 

I recall that one of the items that we addressed in the 

deposition was the expenses associated with noticing the 

customers, and that that would be a prudent expense that the 

company should be allowed to recover. I attempted to look 

at that further to see if I could determine what portion of 

the expenses that were incurred in that case was associated 

with that function, and I simply could not do it. It was 

not laid out in a fashion that I could isolate precisely the 

dollars associated with that. 

Q Would you agree that the expense associated with 
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this docket does not relate to a rate case proceeding and 

should be removed from current rate case expense? 

A I missed your second word. 

Q Would you agree that expense associated with this 

docket, the uniform rate investigation docket, does not 

relate to a rate case proceeding and should be removed from 

current rate case expense? 

A Well, I will agree with you, it is not a rate case 

expense. 

Q Would you also agree if the Commission allows the 

recovery of prudently incurred costs associated with this 

docket, these amounts should be considered regulatory 

Commission expense other, and amortized over five years? 

A I can agree with that, yes. 

Q And do you believe it would be appropriate to 

amortize those costs in Docket Number 930880-WS, to only th 

facilities included in that docket, not the facilities 

included in this rate case? 

A Yes. 

MR. JAEGER: Could I have a minute to confer? No 

further questions, Chairman Clark. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Commissioners? Redirect. 

MR. McLEAN: No redirect, Chairman Clark. I move 

Exhibits 175, 176, and 171. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Without objection, Exhibits 175, 
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176, and 177 will be admitted in the record without 

objection 

evidence. 

and 179. 

(Exhibit Number 175, 176, and 177 received into 

MR. HOFFMAN: The company would move Exhibits 178 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Exhibits 178 and 179 will be 

admitted in the reported without objection. 

(Exhibit Number 178 and 179 received into 

evidence.) 

MR. JAEGER: Staff, I believe, would just wait 

until Terrero puts the whole -- I think he is going to put 
the whole thing in, so we won't clutter up the record with 

our exhibit. Also, Ms. Clark, I have 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Well, wait a minute. I already 

marked it as an exhibit. 

MR. JAEGER: Well, it's an exhibit, I just wasn't 

going to move it in. You can have it numbered and not 

moved. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: All right. That's fine. 

MR. JAEGER: I have three auditors standing by in 

the wings. Is there any chance we are going to get to them 

tonight or can they be sent home? 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: No, it would be -- I think what 

we need to do is go to Mr. Sweat and Mr. Armstrong. I 
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after we do those we will conclude for the evening. 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Madam Chair, I know we spoke 

briefly about the possibility of Mr. Sweat going before me, 

but I have some meetings with people tomorrow that I have to 

attend. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Well, I should point out that 

tomorrow is agenda, and we will reconvene this proceeding at 

1:00 o'clock or as soon thereafter that we are done with the 

agenda. 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Right. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: It's immaterial to me who goes 

first . 
MR. ARMSTRONG: Okay. Could I go first then, 

please? 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Beck. 

MR. BECK: Madam Chairman, the questions I would 

ask Brian Armstrong are dependent on what Tracy Smith's 

answers are, so I am not prepared to call Mr. Armstrong 

until Mr. Smith has testified. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Well, what about Mr. Sweat, can 

we call him? 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Fine with Mr. Sweat, and I also 

have the deposition of Stephanie Smith to move in, as well. 

MR. ARMSTRONG: We do have four other 
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stipulations, as well. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: All right. Is that by way Of 

atoning for not having Mr. Smith here? 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Sorry. We really didn't expect it 

to go this quickly today. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Well, let me be clear. Why don't 

we go ahead and move Mr. Rothschild's testimony into the 

record, is that what we need to do, Mr. Beck? 

MR. BECK: Yes. We will move his testimony and 

exhibits into the record. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Beck, could you walk me 

through Mr. Rothschild's testimony and exhibits, I can't 

seem to find my copy. 

MR. BECK: We will probably need a minute to get 

that together. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: While he is doing that, Mr. 

Armstrong, are there other witnesses we can identify a8 

witnesses we will be stipulating testimony into the record? 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Yes, Madam Chair, Mr. Dilg, his 

rebuttal; Ms. Lock, her rebuttal; Mr. Johnson's rebuttal; 

and then Mike Woelffer, I believe, as well. He was a Marco 

Island witness. 

MR. TWOMEY: That's correct. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: All right. Go through that list 

again. Mr. Dilg -- 
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MR. ARMSTRONG: Robert Dilg, Dale Lock, Frank 

Johnson, those are all company witnesses, and then Mike 

Woelf fer. 

MR. BECK: Madam Chairman, with respect to Dale 

Lock, I believe we had an agreement to strike Page 34, Line 

16 through Page 36 of Line 16 of her testimony, since that 

was based on Broverman's -- 

MR. ARMSTRONG: That's right. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Okay. Make sure we do that when 

we get to actually moving that testimony into the record. 

Are we ready to do Mr. Rothschild? 

MR. McLEAN: Commissioner Clark, I don't have Mr. 

Rothschild's testimony with me. I can produce it tomorrow 

first thing. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: That sounds good. 

MR. McLEAN: Thank you, ma'am. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. McLean, Commissioner Kiesling 

has hers, can you work from that and we can get that done? 

MR. McLEAN: Thank you, Chairman Clark. Mr. 

Rothschild has 46 pages of direct testimony in the form of 

question and answers. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Go ahead. 

MR. McLEAN: Appendices A and B, and I believe 

that's it. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Okay. 
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COMMISSIONER KIESLING: I'm sorry, since I don't 

have mine anymore, is it Appendix A and then what did you 

say following? 

MR. McLEAN: B, Bravo. 

COMMISSIONER KIESLING: Oh, okay. And what about 

JAR-1 through 12, that's on rebuttal? I don't think so. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: No rebuttal. 

MR. McLEAN: No, Mr. Rothschild would not be 

filing rebuttal. 

COMMISSIONER KIESLING: Well, then what happened 

to JAR-1 through 121 

MR. McLEAN: JAR-1 through 12 are exhibits affixed 

to his testimony. There are 12 exhibits affixed to his 

testimony in addition to the appendices. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Okay. The profiled direct 

testimony of Mr. James A. Rothschild will be inserted in the 

record as though read, and the Appendix A and E, plus 

Exhibits JAR-1 through 12 will be identified as Exhibit 183 

and admitted in the record without objection. 

MR. McLEAN: Thank you, Chairman Clark. 

(Exhibit Number 183 marked for identification and 

received into evidence.) 
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I. STATEMENT OF OUALIFICATIONS OF JAMES A. ROTHSCHILD 

Q. PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS. 

A. My name is James A. Rothschild and my address is 115 Scarlet Oak Drive, Wilton, 

Connecticut 06897. 

Q. WHAT IS YOUR OCCUPATION? 

A. I am a financial consultant specializing in utility regulation. I have experience in the 

regulation of electric, gas, telephone, sewer, and water utilities throughout the United 

States. 

Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR UTILITY REGULATORY EXPERIENCE. 

A. I am President of Rothschild Financial Consulting and have been a consultant since 

1972. From 1979 through January 1985, I was President of Georgetown Consulting 

Group, Inc. From 1976 to 1979, I was the President of J. Rothschild Associates. Both of 

these f m s  specialized in utility regulation. From 1972 through 1976, Touche Ross & 

Co., a major international accounting firm, employed me as a management consultant. 

Touche Ross & Co. later merged to form Deloitte Touche. Much of my consulting work 

done while at Touche Ross was in utility regulation. While associated with the above 

firms, I worked for various state utility commissions, attorneys general, and public 

advocates on regulatory matters relating to regulatory and financial issues. These have 

included rate of return, financial issues, and accounting issues. (See Appendix B.) 
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Q. WHAT IS YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND? 

A. I received an MBA in Banking and Finance from Case Western University (1971) and 

a BS in Chemical Engineering from the University of Pittsburgh (1967). 
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Q. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF THIS TESTIMONY. 

A. The purpose of this testimony is to derive a fair and reasonable cost of equity that 

should be allowed by the Commission to Southern States Utilities Co. (SSU). This 

testimony includes an evaluation of the applicability of the current leverage formula 

result to determine the cost of equity to SSU. Furthermore, the testimony provides a 

response to the many comments made by Dr. Morin in the testimony he has filed on 

behalf of SSU. 

In formulating the recommendations I have made in this testimony, I have 

recognized that the cost of capital approved by the Commission should balance the 

interests of investors and ratepayers. If the allowed cost of capital is excessive, rates will 

be above the level they need to be for the provision of safe and adequate utility service. If 

the allowed cost of capital is too low, investors would be denied the profits to which they 

are entitled, and eventually, the company would not be able to provide the safe and 

adequate utility service that is critically important to ratepayers. 
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111. SUMMARY OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR RECOMMENDATIONS: 

F 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

A. Based upon the analyses contained in this testimony, I conclude that the cost of equity 

the Commission should allow to SSU is 10.10%. In arriving at this result, I have 

followed the Commission’s practice of giving equal weight to the cost of equity results 

indicated for water utilities and for gas distribution utilities. See Sch. JAR-1. If I had 

based my recommendation solely on the cost of  equity indicated for water utilities, my 

recommendation would have been lower. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

The leverage formula result that was approved by the Commission in its August 

10, 1995 decision is that the cost of equity to a Florida water utility should be equal to 

9.05 percent+ 1.113llEquityRatio,withamaximumcostofequity of 11.88%, andacost 

of equity to the average water utility in Florida of 10.18%1 By applying this formula to 

the capital structure requested by SSU, the leverage formula indicated cost of equity is 

r 

,-. 

- 

. *. 

14 

15 

11.78% based upon a common equity ratio of 40.7%. However, since this formula was 

developed, capital cost rates have dropped materially. As a result, the 11.78% leverage 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

graph indicated result is considerably higher than the current cost of equity to SSU. 

Company Witness Morin has expressed his opinion that the 11.78% cost of equity 

produced by the leverage formula result produces a cost of equity below that which the 

company would like to receive. He has recommended that the company be allowed a cost 

of equity of 12.25%. The evidence I present later in this testimony shows that irrespective 

of the relative weighting given to the result for gas distribution utilities or to water utility 
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companies, the cost of equity to SSU is now materially below 11.78%, not above 1 1.78%. 

Therefore, if any variation is to be made to the results of the leverage graph, the cost of 

equity to allow to SSU should be materially lowered rather than increased to 12.25% as 

requested by the company. 

Q. HAVE YOU USED ANY METHODS OTHER THAN THE DCF METHOD TO 

QUANTIFY THE COST OF EQUITY? 

A. Yes. As a check to the DCF results, I have also nresented a risk premium method. 

The risk premium result is 9.76% to 10.17% based upon interest rates as of 12/31/95. 

Additionally, because Dr. Morin presented a CAPM method, and because the 

Commission expressed a desire to consider the results of a CAPM method, I have also 

derived a CAPM determined equity cost rate. My CAPM method indicates a cost of 

equity of 7.67% to 8.12%. However, even though the CAPM method that I have 

presented does not contain the known serious flaws in Dr. Morin’s implementation of 

CAPM, it still is not as accurate a method as either the DCF method or the risk premium 

method that I have presented. As I result, my recommendation was formulated based 

upon the DCF result. The risk premium method was only reviewed as a check. 

Q. WHAT ARE THE PROBLEMS WITH DR. MORIN’S CAPM METHOD? 

A. There were substantial mathematical and theoretical errors in Dr. Morin‘s 

presentation of the CAPM method. For example, to arrive at his CAPM result, he had to 

violate important principles established by both the U S .  Securities and Exchange 

Commission (SEC), and improperly use a long-term treasury bond interest rate as a proxy 
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for a risk-free security, i.e. a security with a zero beta. The only difference in my 

implementation of the CAF’M and Dr. Morin’s implementation of the CAPM is that 1 

used the SEC method for quantifying historic actual returns, and used the interest rate on 

a 30 year U.S. treasury bond in a mathematically correct manner. A more complete 

discussion of the CAPM method, including the problems with Dr. Morin’s 

implementation of the method, are contained later in this testimony. 

Q. OTHER THAN DR. MORN’S IMPROPER USE OF THE CAPM METHOD, 

WHAT OTHER PROBLEMS DO YOU HAVE WITH WHAT HE HAS SAID IN HIS 

TESTIMONY? 

A. Following is a summary of the significant problems that I have with the comments 

made by Dr. Morin in his testimony. A detailed explanation of why these are all valid 

criticisms of Dr. Morin’s testimony will follow later in this testimony: 

1. Hope Decision. On page 7 of his testimony, Dr. Morin mis-states the 
findings of the US Supreme Court in its Hope Natural Gus decision. 
Specifically, the Hope decision rejects Dr. Morin’s desire to allow a return 
on equity high enough to maintain inflated market to book ratios. 

2. Water Company Risks in Florida. Dr. Morin has improperly 
concluded that there are higher relative risks for water utilities in Florida 
which cause these companies to need a higher allowed return on equity. 
The critical point missed by Dr. Morin is that the only risk which impacts 
the cost of equity is non-diversifiable risk. Factors such as size, large 
construction programs, regulatory risk are not only shared by water 
utilities throughout the country, but they are all diversifiable risks anyhow. 
Furthermore, even if Dr. Morin were correct that size causes an increase in 
the cost of equity, then his comment on page 10 of his testimony that the 
source of capital has no bearing on the cost of capital must be wrong. To 
the extent that size is relevant, it would be the size of the entity raising the 
capital that should be considered. 
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3. Direction of Change in Water Company Risk. Dr. Morin speculates 
on page 15 of his testimony that the risks of water utilities is increasing. 
Facts show that the opposite is true. If anything, the risk of an investment 
in water utilities has been declining in recent years. 

4. Relative Risk of Gas Companies and Water Companies. Dr. Morin 
claims that the risk in a water utility is higher than for a gas utility. Facts 
show that this is not true. In the last several years, the risk of water 
utilities has been below that of gas distribution utilities. This is confirmed 
by the DCF results which indicate a higher cost of equity for gas 
distribution utilities than for water utilities. 

5. Exclusive use of DCF method. Dr. Morin claims that it is improper to 
use only the DCF method to quantify the cost of equity. While aproperly 
applied risk premium method can be of some additional value, all too 
often the risk premium method is mis-applied. The CAPM method, 
especially as applied by Dr. Morin, is a very inaccurate method for 
quantifying the cost of equity. Furthermore, as applied by Dr. Morin, the 
CAPM method contains an unacceptably large upward bias. 
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AND GAS UTILITIES. 

DETERMINATION OF THE CURRENT COST OF EQUITY FOR WATER 

A. Summary 

Q. HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE COST OF EQUITY FOR WATER UTILITIES 

AND FOR GAS UTILITIES? 

A. My primary method for determining the cost of equity was to apply the constant 

growth, or D/P + g version of the DCF method. In order to properly apply the constant 

growth version of the method, I recognized that it is essential to quantify growth in a 

manner that is consistent with the constant growth rate expectations necessary for the 

constant growth version of the DCF model to have any mathematical validity. In addition 

to using a consistently applied simplified version of the DCF model, I confirmed the 

result of the constant growth version of the DCF model by presenting a non-constant, or 

two stage, growth rate to water utilities and also checked the result of the constant growth 

DCF method by implementing a risk premium method and a CAPM method. Of the 

three methods, the DCF model should be considered the most accurate, and the risk 

premium next most accurate. While I was careful to present a version of the CAPM 

model that has corrected the mathematical errors contained in Dr. Morin’s application of 

the CAPM, even after repairing Dr. Morin’s errors, the CAPM, the method is still 

inferior to the accuracy obtainable by either the DCF model or the risk premium model. 

B. Constant Growth DCF Model 

Q. HOW DID YOU IMPLEMENT THE CONSTANT GROWTH DCF MODEL? 

9 
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A. I implemented the constant growth DCF model by quantifying future sustainable 

growth based on “b x r” + “sv”, where “b” is the retention rate that is consistent with the 

dividend rate used to evaluate the dividend yield, and “r” is equal to the future return on 

book equity expected by investors. “sv” is added to this “b x r” growth in order to 

recognize that in addition to growth caused by “b x r”, growth is also caused by the sale 

of new common stock above book value. 

Q. DOES THE DCF METHOD BASED UPON THE “ b x r” GROWTH METHOD 

COMPUTE THE COST OF EQUITY WITH ABSOLUTE PRECISION? 

A. No. No equity costing approach, DCF or otherwise, is capable of computing the cost 

of equity with absolute precision. However, a major advantage of the “b x r” approach is 

that if the method is applied properly, the majority of the inputs required to implement 

the model, such as stock price, dividend rate, and book value are subject to precise 

quantification. For most utility companies, the only critical input number that could have 

a material impact on the DCF computed cost of equity is the value chosen for “r”, or the 

future expected return on equity. If the DCF method is properly applied, the retention 

rate “b” is directly derived from the value chosen for “r” and the dividend rate used to 

compute the dividend yield. 

Q. ARE THERE RESTRICTIONS ON THE USE OF THE SIMPLlFIED VERSION OF 

THE DCF METHOD? 

A. Yes. The simplified version of the DCF model should only be used when investors 

expect: 

10 
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the same future growth rate estimate in stock price, earnings per share, dividends 
per share, and book value per share, 

and 

that future growth rate is best expressed as a constant. Note that this does 
necessarily mean that future growth is expected to be constant. It means that no 
reason exists to expect future growth to be higher or lower than average in any 
one specific future year. 

Q. 

REASONABLE TO EXPECT THE ABOVE CONDITIONS TO BE MET? 

A. Yes. The complex version of the DCF does not require the above simplifying 

expectations. This is because the complex version separately discounts each expected 

future cash flow. Recently, FERC has begun to prefer a two-stage DCF model to a 

single-stage DCF. 

CAN THE DCF MODEL BE USED IN A SITUATION WHERE IT IS NOT 

I have been presenting a complex form of the DCF model for years. This 

complex form of the DCF is readily adaptable to the two-stage approach. In order to 

allow this Commission to be able to also consider a properly applied two-stage DCF, my 

testimony in this case supplements the results of the single-stage, or constant growth DCF 

model with a two-stage DCF model. 

Q. HOW SHOULD GROWTH FOR USE IN A CONSTANT GROWTH DCF MODEL 

BE DETERMINED? 

A. The most important characteristic of any approach to determining a growth rate 

for use in the DCF method is that it incorporate the kind of growth that can 

11 
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reasonably be expected to occur for many years into the future. Textbooks generally 

explain that the appropriate method to quantify the future sustainable growth required for 
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the simplified DCF model is to use the “b x r” method. The advantage of a properly 

applied “b x r” is that it computes a sustainable growth rate. Therefore, when applying 

the “b x r” method, the result will be accurate as long as the future return on book equity, 

“r” that is expected by investors and the retention rate “b” that is both consistent with the 

value used for “r” and the dividend rate, “D’, is used to compute growth. With other 

methods to estimate future expected growth, extremp care must be taken to be sure that 

they are in a form that is applicable to the simplified, or constant growth version of the 

DCF model, In order to be at all useful, these alternative methods usually have to be 

11 
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adjusted so that the indicated growth rates are consistent with the financial realities 

necessary to develop a growth rate that has any realistic chance of being sustainable. 
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15 A. Yes. In the textbook, Investments, by Bodie, Kane and Marcus (Irwin, 1989) at 

Q. DO STOCK ANALYSTS USE THE “b x r” METHOD? 

16 page 478, expected growth rate of dividends is described as follows: 
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How do stock analysts derive forecasts of g, the expected growth rate 
of dividends? Usually, they first assume a constant dividend payout ratio 
(that is, ratio of dividends to earnings), which implies that dividends will 
grow at the same rate as earnings. Then they try to relate the expected 
growth rate of earnings to the expected profitability of the firm’s future 
investment opportunities. 

The exact relationship is 

g= b X ROE 

where b is the proportion of the firm’s earnings that is reinvested in 
the business, called the plowback ratio or the earnings retention ratio, and 

12 
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ROE is the rate of return (return on equity) on new investments. If all of the 
variables are specified correctly, [the] equation . . . is true by definition, . . . 

4 

5 

6 ANALYSTS DETERMINE “g”? 

Q. ARE YOU AWARE OF ANY RECENT REPORT FROM AN INVESTMENT 

BANKING FIRM THAT SUPPORTS THE TEXTBOOK EXPLANATION OF HOW 

7 A. Yes. In a report entitled “U.S. Investment Research. Electric Utilities. Five-year 

8 Financial Projections” issued by Morgan Stanley on October 24, 1995,32 electric utilities 

9 

10 

are evaluated. In all cases, the “Total Retum” is quantified by adding the “Internal 

Growth” rate to the dividend yield. The internal growth rate is quantified by subtracting 

11 the dividendhook ratio from the future expected return on book equity. This is 

12 

13 

algebraically identical to the “b x r” method in which “r” is equal to the future expected 

return on book equity and “b” is computed in a manner consistent with the inputs for “r” 
-, 

.- 
e 

P 

14 

15 

16 

and for the dividend rate “D’ used to compute dividend yield. 

Q. HOW DID YOU COMPUTE “g”? 
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A. As previously stated, I used the “b x roe” method specified in the above textbook 

quote, although I refer to it in this testimony as the “b x r” method. In the above 

equation, ROE has the same meaning as “r”. I computed the growth rate, “g,” by using a 

future expected return on book equity value, or “r,” of 11.25% for the Value Line water 

companies. The specific inputs, and the evaluation of those inputs, is discussed in the 

22 

23 

24 

next section of this testimony. 
I 

My method differs from the method used in the above-referenced Morgan 

Stanley report only in that I have reflected additional growth for the sale of common 
r‘. 
I 
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stock in my recommended growth rate. This is consistent with the Morgan Stanley 

report, because Morgan Stanley specifically noted that its growth rate they have obtained 
;c. 

I 

c 3 is applicable “ ... in the absence of new equity issuances ...” (P. 4). 

4 

5 

The Morgan Stanley report also notes that “(i)f the ROE were to remain constant, 

this [the growth rate obtained using the equivalent of “b x r”] would be the same as the 

6 growth in earnings.” 

7 

8 Q. DOES THE MORGAN STANLEY REPORT ADD ANY GROWTH RATES 

9 OTHER THAN THE “ b x r”, OR INTERNAL GROWTH RATE, TO THE DIVIDEND 

10 YIELD TO OBTAIN A “TOTAL RETURN” NUMBER? 

11 

12 

A. Within Morgan Stanley’s write-up on each individual electric company, the only 

growth rate added to the dividend yield is the “b x r” or “Internal Growth” rate. 
- 
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However, in a summary table on page 9 of the report, Morgan Stanley does also show a 

total return number using both the “Yield + Int. Growth” and the “Yield + Est. 5-Year 

Growth” in dividends per share. Page 4 of the report explains that Morgan Stanley is 

concerned that the “Yield + Int. Growth” rate number might overstate long-term 

sustainable growth because the reinvestment assumption that earnings can be re-invested 

to earn the expected return on book equity might be optimistic given slow growth in the 

industry and increasing competitive pressures. 

20 

21 Q. WHAT COST OF EQUITY DOES THE MORGAN STANLEY REPORT 

22 INDICATE FOR ELECTRIC UTILITIES? 

~~- 

P - 
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A. The average total return for electric utilities based upon the Yield + Internal Growth 

method is shown by Morgan Stanley to have a median value of 9.1% on page 9 of the 

report.. 

Q. WHAT DOES MORGAN STANLEY SHOW AS THE COST OF EQUITY BASED 

UPON THE YIELD PLUS ESTIMATED FIVE YEAR DIVIDEND GROWTH RATE? 

A. The median value for the cost of equity based upon projected dividends per share 

growth is 8.1%, also on page 9 of the report. 

Q. SOME WITNESSES CLAIM THAT THE ‘b x r” APPROACH TO THE DCF 

METHOD IS SOMEHOW CIRCULAR BECAUSE THE FUTURE EARNED RETURN 

ON BOOK EQUITY THAT YOU USE TO QUANTIFY GROWTH IS USED TO 

DETERMINE THE COST OF EQUITY, AND THE COST OF EQUITY IS THEN 

USED TO DETERMINE THE FUTURE RETURN ON EQUITY THAT WILL BE 

EARNED. IS THIS CIRCULAR? 

A. No. Those who erroneously claim that the method is circular confuse the definition of 

“r” and the definition of “k”. While “r” is defined as the future return on book equity 

anticipated by investors, “k” is the cost of equity, or the return investors expect on the 

market price investment. Since the market price is determined based upon what 

investors are willing to pay for a stock, and the book value is based upon the net 

stockholders’ investment in the company, ‘ t”  usually has a different value than “k”. In 

fact, the proper application of the DCF method relates a specific stock market price to a 

specific expectation of future cash flows that is created by future earned return ((‘r”) 

15 
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levels. For example, if investors are willing to pay $10 a share for a company when the 

expectations are that the company will be able to earn 12% on its book equity in the 

future, if events were to occur which would cause investors to reevaluate the 12% return 

expectation, the stock price should be expected to change. If investors’ expectations of 

the future return on hook equity change from 12% to IO%, and there is no corresponding 

change in the cost of equity, the stock price would decline. The cost of equity, however, 

would not decline simply because an event might occur that would cause investors to 

lower their estimate for “r”. The cost of equity is equal to the sum of both the dividend 

yield and growth. Investors’ estimate of “r” influences the investors estimate for growth. 

Changes in growth expectations cause investors to change the price they are willing to 

pay for stock. A change in the stock price can cause a change in the dividend yield that 

offsets the change in expected growth. In this way, a higher dividend yield would offset 

by the lower expected growth rate and leave the cost of equity, “k”, unchanged. 

a. Determination of Future ExDected Return on Book Eauitv. “r” 

Q. HOW DID YOU DETERMINE THE VALUE OF “r” THAT YOU USED IN YOUR 

RETAINED EARNINGS GROWTH COMPUTATIONS FOR THE VALUE LINE 

WATER COMPANIES? 

A. I determined the 11.25% investors’ expectation of the future value for “r” for the 

Value Line water companies and the 12.00% value for “r” for the gas distribution utilities 

by evaluating :2 

2Note that the value of “r” is the investors’ expected return on book equity, not the cost of equity. The 
cost of equity, “k” requires consideration of not only the return investors expect on book, but a 

16 
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the future returns on book equity expected by Value Line, 

the return on book equity consistent with the Zacks' consensus 5-year 

growth estimate? 

absolute levels of, and trends in, allowed returns on equity to utility 

companies, and 

historic actual earned returns on equity. 

Q. 

DIRECTLY IN THE SIMPLIFIED DCF FORMULA? 

A. The growth rates reported by Zucks are five-year growth rates beginning from the 

most recent historic actual reported earnings per share. It would be improper to merely 

plug these growth rates into the D/P + g simplified version of the DCF formula because 

they are not sustainable growth rates. For example, if a company had an atypically good 

or atypically bad year in 1994, or if the earned returns on equity were, for any other 

reason, expected to increase (or decrease), the five-year growth rate as reported by Zucks 

would be atypically low (or high). Since the perceived abnormal nature of the earnings 

might be industry-wide, use of an average growth rate for the entire group would likely 

WHY DON'T YOU USE THE GROWTH RATES AS COMPILED BY ZACKS 

determination of whether or not the return rate investors expect on book is higher or lower than the return 
level required to attract capital on reasonable terms. In order to determine the adequacy of the return on 
book, the market price investors are willing to pay for that return on book must also be considered. 

3 Zacks Research is a service that surveys professional securities analysts to determine the consensus 
earnings per share forecast that is expected for a company. 1 obtain the consensus growth rates by 
accessing the results for the companies of interest to me via the Dow Jones .News Retrieval computer 
database service. && is a similar service to one compiled by IIBEIS. 1 use &&because it is the one 
chosen by Dow Jones for use in its database. 

17 
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7 Q. HOW HAVE YOU DETERMINED THE VALUE OF THE FUTURE EXPECTED 

8 RETENTION RATE, "b", THAT YOU USFD IN YOUR SIMPLIFIED DCF 

9 ANALYSIS? 

not solve the problem. Thus, in order to be able to use these growth rates in the D/P + g 

version of the DCF formula, it is necessary to compute what retum on book equity will 

achieve the analysts' consensus growth rate. In this way, it is possible to estimate 

analysts' anticipated future return on book equity. 

b. Determination of Retention Rate. "b" 

10 A. I have recognized that the retention rate, "b", is merely the residual of the dividend 

11 rate, "D", and the future expected return on book equity, "r," Since, by definition, "b" is 

12 the fraction of earnings not paid out as a dividend, the only correct value to use for "b" is 

13 the one that is consistent with the quantification of the other variables when 

14 
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implementing the DCF method. The formula to determine "b" is: 

However, "E" is equal to "r" times the book value per share. Book value per 

share is a known amount, as is "E", consistent with the future expected value for "r", and 

the "D" used to compute dividend yield. Therefore, to maximize the accuracy of the DCF 

b= 1- (DE), where 

b = retention rate 

D = Dividend rate 

E = Earnings rate 

18 
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method, quantification of the value of "b" should be done in a manner that recognizes the 

interdependency between the value of "b" and the values for "r" and "D". I directly 

computed the value of "b" based upon the values of "D", and "r". 

C. Implementation of the Two-Stage or Complex Version of DCF Method 

Q. WHY DO YOU ALSO PRESENT THE TWO-STAGE OR COMPLEX VERSION 

OF THE DCF METHOD? 

A. When consfant growth is expected to be the best estimate offuture anticipated growth, 

the two-stage or complex version of the DCF model is essentially the same as the 

simpllfed version. 1) 

FERC has recently begun relying upon a two-stage DCF model in recent cost of capital 

decisions''; 2) a two-stage or even more complex than two-stage version of the DCF 

method is helpful because it provides a framework that will work even in special 

situations when future payout ratios, earned returns on equity, or market-to-book ratios 

change; 3) a two-stage or complex version of the DCF model serves as a check to show 

that the growth rate used in the simplified version is credible. For example, if an analyst 

forecasts an unrealistically high growth rate, the complex DCF method may show that the 

growth rate is improper. 

I have presented a two-stage DCF model for several reasons: 

Q. HOW WOULD THE COMPLEX VERSION OF THE DCF METHOD SHOW 

WHETHER A GROWTH RATE IS CREDIBLE? 

19 
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A. Computing for each year the anticipated dividends, earnings, return on book equity 

and market-to-book ratios permits a separate study of each of the key causes of future 

cash flow. If, for example, the complex DCF analysis shows that the chosen growth rate 

could only occur if market-to-book ratios grow to unrealistic levels, or the payout ratio 

goes to more than loo%, or the earned return on book equity grows to excessive levels, 

then the chosen growth rate must be too high. Conversely, if a detailed projection shows 

that payout ratios, or market-to-book ratios, or the earned return on book equity would 

have to decline to unrealistic levels, then the growth rate selected must be too low. 

Q. HOW DID YOU IMPLEMENT THE TWO-STAGE DCF MODEL? 

A. The first stage of the model is based upon Value Line’s estimates of dividends per 

share, earnings per share , and book value per share for 1995 through 19995. Value Line 

does not show a specific earnings and dividend projection for every year from 1995 to 

1999. Projections for years skipped by Value Line were made by extrapolation from the 

available data. 

I determined future earnings in the second stage of the coniplex DCF model by 

multiplying the future book value per share by the future expected earned return on book 

equity. For the purposes of this case, I used the same future expected return on book 

equity that I used in the simplified version of the DCF model.6 Projected book value 

Ozark Gas Transmission System, Docket Nos. RP94-105-002 and RP-94-105-003 decision issued July 7, 
1994, and Wyoming Interstate Co., Docket No. RP85-39-009, decision issued November 30, 1994. 

The estimate for 1999 is shown by Volue Line as its estimate from 1998-2000. 
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equals the beginning book value plus the current year's earnings minus the current year's 

dividends. Book value growth projections also include the effect of sales of new 

common stock. The projections in the second stage of the DCF model were made up 

until 40 years into the future. Events longer than 40 years into the future have a minimal 

present value. 7 

My projections have relied on a constant dividend payout ratio.8 

I derived the estimated future stock price from the projected book value 

estimating that the same market-to-book ratio wwld exist at the lime of sale as exists 

today. The only cash outflow is the price paid for the stock. The complex version of the 

model uses both the spot stock price as of December 31, 1995, and the average stock 

price for the year ended December 3 I ,  1995 to be representative of the price paid. 

As summarized on Sch. JAR 2, P. 1 and 2, the two-stage complex version of the 

DCF model indicates a cost of equity between 10.21% and 10.59% for the Value Line 

water companies and between 10.29% and 10.72% for the gas distribution utilities. 

6 For reasons explained in the discussion of the simplified version of the DCF method, this is because I 
believe that is the best estimate of future earnings. However, if the use of a varying array of future 
expected returns on book equity were supported by the facts, rather than a constant return, the same 
mathematical model would still be proper to use in determining the cost of equity. 

7 For example, a change in an assumption that the selling market-to-book ratio would be 0.1 lower or 
higher than as of the time of purchase would introduce a potential inaccuracy in the indicated cost of equity 
of plus or minus about 25 basis points in a 30 year analysis, but a similar change in the market-to-book 
ratio expectation would introduce only plus or minus about 15 basis points in a 40 year analysis. If longer 
than 40 years were used, the result would he even less sensitive to the future market-to-book ratio 
expectation. 

8 As in the case of the future expected earned return on equity assumption, if there were evidence to 
support the use of varying payout ratios instead of a constant payout ratio, the same model could still be 
used to accurately quantify the cost of equity. Unlike the simplified DCF model, this model specifically 
accounts for the fact that a change in the payout ratio has an impact on the book value, and therefore has an 
impact on the earnings rate achieved in the future. 
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Q. YOUR EQUITY COST RATE FINDINGS FOR BOTH WATER COMPANIES 

AND FOR GAS DISTRIBUTION COMPANIES IS HIGHER THAN THE COST OF 

EQUITY YOU EXPLAINED WAS DETERMINED BY MORGAN STANLEY FOR 

ELECTRIC UTILITIES. IS THIS BECAUSE THE COST OF EQUITY TO ELECTRIC 

UTILITIES IS LESS THAN FOR WATER OR GAS DISTRIBUTION UTILITIES? 

A. No. I believe that Morgan Stanley’s result is too low because Morgan Stanley did not 

add anything for growth caused by additional sales of common stock above book value. 

Furthermore, I believe that the DCF based upon retention growth is more reflective of 

investors’ long-term expectations than a DCF using a five-year dividends per share 

growth rate forecast. Nevertheless, the Morgan Stanley report is valuable because it 

confirms that my equity cost rate finding is conservatively high. It adds yet additional 
c 

13 

14 

15 

confirmation to the fact that Dr. Morin’s 12.25% equity cost recommendation is based 

upon seriously flawed approaches to determining the cost of equity. 

16 D. Risk Premium Method 

17 

18 
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Q. WHY DID YOU CONDUCT A RISK PREMIUM STUDY? 

A. A properly applied DCF method has a greater accuracy than is possible to obtain from 

the best available risk premium method. This i s  primarily because the risk premium 

method is limited by the invalid assumption that risk premiums remain constant. 

Furthermore, the risk premium method requires the quantification of the cost difference 

between debt and equity. In order to determine this cost difference, the cost of equity has - 
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to first be computed in order to be able to implement the risk premium in the first place. 

Nevertheless, a properly applied risk premium method is better than an improperly 

applied risk premium. Therefore, since risk premium methods frequently appear in utility 

ratemaking proceedings and there are some people who would prefer to consider the 

results of a risk premium analysis, I have presented an approach to the risk premium 

method which maximizes the accuracy obtainable from that method. 

fl. - 
- 
- 

L 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

A 

Q. WHAT COST OF EQUITY IS INDICATED BY THE RISK PREMIUM METHOD? 

A. Because there are many more electric utilities covered by Vulue Line than water 

utilities, I determined a risk premium based upon an analysis of the difference between 

the cost of debt and the cost of equity of electric companies. As shown on Sch. JAR 8, P. 

1 and 2, the risk premium method based heavily on the data for electric utilities indicates 

a cost of equity of 9.76% to 10.17% on December 31, 1995. There is some variation 

between the cost of equity for an average electric company and an average water or gas 

distribution company. The difference between my recommended cost of equity in this 

case and the cost of equity indicated by the risk premium method could be explained by 

the industry-risk differential, or could be explained by the lower accuracy associated with 

a risk premium method than a properly applied DCF method. 
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Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN THE RISK PREMIUM METHOD. 

A. The risk premium method is based upon the concept that the cost of equity is related 

to, but more expensive than the cost of debt. Since the cost of debt can be readily 

quantified. if it were possible to accurately quantify the "risk premium" demanded by 
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investors to invest in the common stock of a particular company instead of debt, it would 

then be possible to determine the cost of equity merely by adding this premium to the 

cost of debt. However, in order to compute the difference between the cost of equity and 

the cost of debt. it is necessary to quantify the cost of equity in the first place. It is also 

necessary to assume that the risk premium today is the same as the risk premium that 

existed during the historic period used to quantify the risk premium. 

My cost of equity recommendation in this case is based totally on the DCF 

method. The risk premium method was presei ed to show that a properly applied risk 

premium approach does produce a cost of equity result that is consistent with the result 

obtained from a properly applied DCF method. 

Q. IS THE RISK PREMIUM CONSTANT? 

A. No. The risk premium over the cost of US treasury debt that is demanded by 

investors to invest in common stock is, at a minimum, influenced by federal income tax 

laws. The return on stocks and the return on bonds is taxed differently, and in ways that 

have varied substantially over the years. When the tax law changes, the risk premium 

may change. 

Q. YOU HAVE MENTIONED THE RISK PREMIUM IN EXCESS OF THE COST OF 

30 YEAR TREASURY BONDS. COULD YOU HAVE USED UTILITY DEBT 

INSTEAD OF 30 YEAR TREASURY BONDS IN YOUR ANALYSIS? 

A. Yes. Utility bonds are in a higher risk category than treasury bonds of the same 

maturity. Therefore, unless the utility bonds being studied are tax free bonds, they will 
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have a higher interest rate than treasury bonds of the same maturity and same basic terms. 

Because the interest cost on utility bonds is higher, then the risk premium difference 

between the cost of equity and the cost of utility bonds is lower than the risk premium 

difference between the cost of treasury bonds and the cost of equity. If I had added a 

lower risk premium to a higher interest cost: it should be expected that I would have 

obtained the same result for the cost of equity that I have obtained by starting with 

treasury bonds. 

Q. WHY WOULD A CHANGE IN THE INCOME TAX LAW CHANGE THE RISK 

PREMIUM? 

A. Typically, the total return received by a bondholder is dominated by the interest 

income received. The return received by a 

stockholder typically contains a capital appreciation component and a dividend 

component. The capital appreciation component receives favorable tax treatment in two 

ways. First, the capital gain is not taxable at all until the stock is sold. Second, the 

income tax rate charged on capital gains has often been substantially lower than the 

income tax rate charged on dividend and interest income. Since the 1986 tax law change, 

the income tax rate on capital gains and on regular income has been similar. Third, 

dividend income paid to stockholders is partially tax free if the stockholder is another 

corporation. No such exclusion exists for interest income. This means that every time 

there is a significant change in the federal income tax law, the "risk premium" demanded 

by investors to be willing to buy common stock instead of bonds could undergo a 

corresponding change. 

Interest income is taxable every year. 
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Q. IS A CHANGE IN THE TAX LAW THE ONLY FACTOR THAT CAN 

INFLUENCE THE RISK PREMIUM? 

A. No. Another important factor that could influence the "risk premium" demanded by 

investors is the perceived interest rate volatility. Investors who buy long-term bonds with 

a fixed interest rate are exposed to the risk of being locked into that bond's interest rate 

even if interest rates rise substantially over the life of the bond. Stockholders, especially 

utility company stockholders, do not share this interest rate risk. The allowed returns on 

equity are usually reevaluated in a rate case. When the cost of equity goes up, the 

allowed returns go up. When the cost of equity goes down, the allowed returns go down. 

Therefore, in times when investors are concerned about interest rate volatility, the "risk 

premium" required to buy common stock instead of a long-term bond goes down. 

Conversely, in times when investors are less concerned about interest rate volatility, the 

"risk premium" goes up. 

Q. DID YOU DO ANYTHING TO MINIMIZE INACCURACIES IN THE RISK 

PREMIUM METHOD CAUSED BY VARIATIONS IN THE RISK PREMIUM OVER 

TIME? 

A. Yes. I quantified the risk premium demanded by investors to invest in common stock 

by comparing the cost of debt and the cost of equity over the five years ended in 1993. 

There have been only relatively small changes in the federal. income tax rates over that 

time period. Yet, five years is sufficient time to make it possible to examine a substantial 

amount of data. I am unaware of any abnormal factors which would have caused 
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investors' perceptions about future interest rate volatility to have changed over the last 

five years. To the extent that there are reasons, of which I or any other analyst could be 

unaware, this renders the "risk premium'' approach an ever weaker method. 

Q. HOW DID YOU QUANTIFY THE RISK PREMIUM? 

A. I compared the cost of equity to the cost of debt for each of the electric utilities 

covered by Value Line. I used the first edition of Value Line issued in each calendar year 

for the five years ended 1993. The cost of e,,& in each of the last five years was 

quantified using the DCF method. The DCF method I used to quantify the cost of equity 

was essentially the same as the DCF approach I use in this case. except that instead of 

using my own analysis to determine what return on book equity is expected by investors 

in the future, I simply used Value Line's future return on book equity expectation as a 

proxy for what investors expected. The cost of equity so computed was separately 

compared to the interest rate on 30-year US treasury bonds, 5-year US treasury bonds, 

and 1-year US treasury bonds. Based upon that analysis, three separate risk premiums 

were quantified. 

Q. ARE CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES, INCOME TAX RATES, AND 

INVESTORS' PERCEPTIONS ABOUT THE VOLATILITY OF FUTURE INTEREST 

RATES THE ONLY THINGS THAT IMPACT CHANGES IN THE COST OF EQUITY 

OVER TIME? 

A. No. Factors such as capital structure ratios, uncertainties associated with construction 

projects, and the portion of earnings being paid out as dividends also impact the relative 
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desirability of investing in the common stock of a water utility as compared to a treasury 

bond. As these change over time, even if other things remain equal, the risk premium 

will change. 

E. CAPM Method 

Q. WHAT COST OF EQUITY IS INDICATED BY THE CAPM METHOD? 

A. As shown on Sch. JAR 9, P. 1 and 2, the CAPM method is indicating a cost of equity 

of 8.12% for water utilities, and 7.67% for gas distribution utilities. 

Q. HOW DID YOU IMPLEMENT THE CAPM METHOD? 

A. I implemented the CAPM method by using the differential between the actual earned 

retums on common stocks and the actual earned returns on 30-year treasury bonds from 

1926 through 1994. The difference between the actual returns was then first adjusted for 

the risk difference between the group of common stocks and the risk of an investment in 

30 year treasury bonds. 

Q. IS THIS METHOD AS ACCURATE AS A PROPERLY APPLIED DCF METHOD? 

A. While my approach to CAPM is substantially more accurate than the approach to the 

CAPM method presented by Dr. Morin, even my approach to the CAPM method is 

materially less accurate than a properly applied DCF method. I have presented the 

CAPM method because the Commission has expressed a desire to consider the results 

from this method. Therefore, I did not want the Commission to be left only with Dr. 
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Morin’s highly flawed approach to the CAPM from which to make its evaluation. 

However, I believe it is preferable to rely on the DCF method in preference to the CAPM 

method. 

Q. 

APPLIED DCF METHOD? 

A. The CAPM method is highly dependent upon whether or not the earned differential 

between common stocks and long-term bonds is consistent with the spread difference that 

investors expect for the future. Additionally, the CAPM method shares ail of the other 

problems that cause uncertainty in the “risk premium” method that are discussed in the 

previous section of this testimony. 

WHY IS THE CAPM METHOD NOT AS ACCURATE AS A PROPERLY 

Q. YOUR APPROACH TO CAPM SOUNDS THE SAME AS THAT USED BY DR. 

MORIN, YET YOU HAVE OBTAINED A VERY DIFFERENT ANSWER. PLEASE 

EXPLAIN WHY. 

A. Dr. Morin has made two very serious errors in his implementation of the CAPM 

method. First, he has incorrectly used an arithmetic averaging technique to measure 

historic actual returns. Second, he has reached the invalid conclusion that the risk of a 

30-year treasury bond is zero. Both of these errors cannot be responsibly refuted, and 

both serve to materially increase the cost of equity that is indicated by the CAPM model. 

Another reason my result is lower than his is that he used a 7.60% interest rate for long- 

term treasury bonds, while I have used a rate of 6.30%. My rate is reflective of current 

financial conditions, and is because my testimony is able to consider more current 
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information than was available to Dr. Morin at the time he prepared his testimony. Since 

he prepared his testimony, there has been a very substantial rally in the bond markets, 

causing the interest rate on long-term utility bonds to decline materially. 

Q. YOU SAID THAT LONG-TERM TREASURY BONDS DO NOT HAVE A ZERO 

6 BETA. WHAT IS THE BETA OF LONG-TERM U.S. TREASURY BONDS? 

7 A. The beta of long-term US. treasury bonds is about 0.40. This makes long-term 

8 treasury bonds in a lower risk category than an equity investment in the common stock of 

9 

10 

a gas utility, but a beta of 0.40 indicates that there is still a considerable amount of risk in 

a long-term treasury bond investment. 
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Q. CAN IT BE REASONABLE TO EXAMINE THE RISK PREMIUM DIFFERENCE 

BETWEEN LONG-TERM TREASURY BONDS AND COMMON STOCK EVEN 

THOUGH LONG-TERM TREASURY BONDS DO CONTAIN INTEREST RATE 

RISK? 

A. Yes, but not if it is used in a CAPM model in the way that Dr. Morin has done. One 

of the elements of Dr. Morin's CAPM computation is that he uses the risk premium 

between the cost of long-term bonds and common stock as the amount he multiplies by 

beta. This is wrong. In order to properly quantify the risk differential that is measured by 

beta, it is essential to use a risk premium factor that is fully reflective of the difference 

between the two securities being compared. 
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1 Q. YOU SAID THAT DR. MORIN IMPROPERLY USED THE ARITHMETIC 

2 AVERAGE OF ACTUAL ANNUAL RETURNS EARNED BY COMMON STOCKS 
P- 
I 

- 3 FROM 1926-1993 INSTEAD OF THE GEOMETRIC AVERAGE APPROACH. 

4 PLEASE EXPLAIN. 

5 
- 

A. Arithmetic returns do not properly compensate for year to year volatility and therefore 

- 6 overstate the actual realized returns. The more variable historic growth rates have been, 

the more his method exaggerates actual growth rates. For example. if a company were to 

have a stock price of $10.00 in the beginning of the first year of the measurement period 

and a $5.00 stock price at the end of the first year, an arithmetic average approach would 

conclude that the return earned by the investor would be a loss of 50% [($S-$lO)/(%lO)]. 

If, in the second year, the stock price returned to $10.00, then the arithmetic average 

e. 12 would compute a gain of 100% in the second year [($10-$5)/($5)]. The arithmetic 

average approach would naively average the 50% loss in the first year with the 100% gain 

in the second year to arrive at the conclusion that the total return received by the investor 

over this two year period would be 25% per year [(-50% +100%)/2 years]. In other 

words, the arithmetic average approach is so inaccurate that it would conclude the 

average annual return over this two year period was 25% per year even though the stock 

price started at $10.00 and ended at $10.00. The geometric average would not make such 

an error. It would only consider the compound annual return from the beginning $10.00 

to the ending $10.00, and correctly determine that the annual average of the total returns 

was not 25%, but was zero. 
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In order to protect investors from misleading data, the U.S. Securities and 

Exchange Commission (SEC) requires mutual funds to report historic returns by using 
P - 
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the geometric average only. The arithmetic average is not permitted. The geometric 

average, or SEC method, has the compelling advantage of providing a true representation 

of the performance that would have actually been achieved by an investor who made an 

investment at the beginning of a period and re-invested dividends at market prices 

prevailing at the time the dividends were paid. 

Q. 

AVERAGE FOR COMPUTING HISTORIC ACTUAL RETURNS? 

DO FINANCIAL TEXTBOOKS SUPPORT THE USE OF THE GEOMETRIC 

A. Yes.  For example, the textbook Valuation. Measuring and Managing the Value of 

Companies, by Copeland, Koller, and Murrin of McKinsey & Co. , John Wiley & Sons, 

1994, in a description of how to use the Ibbotson Associates data states the following on 

pages 261-262: 

We use a geometric average of rates of retum because arithmetic 
averages are biased by the measurement period. An arithmetic average 
estimates the rates of return by taking a simple average of the single period 
rates of return. Suppose you buy a share of a nondividend-paying stock 
for $50. After one year the stock is worth $100. After two years the stock 
falls to $50 once again. The first period return is 100 percent; the second 
period return is -50 percent. The arithmetic average return is 25 percent 
[(loo percent - 50 percent)/2]. (The 
geometric average is the compound rate of return that equates the 
beginning and ending value.) We believe that the geometric average 
represents a better estimate of investors' expected returns over long 
periods of time. 

The geometric avenge is zero. 

(Emphasis added) 

Similarly, in another textbook discussion that specifically addresses the use of the 

Ibbotson data, Financial Market Rates & Flows, by James C. Van Home, Prentice Hall, 

1990, states the following on page 80: 
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The geometric mean is a geometric average of annual retums, 

whereas the arithmetic mean is an arithmetic average. For cumulative 
wealth changes over long sweeps of time, the geometric mean is the 
appropriate measure. 

Q. HOW DO INVESTORS VIEW HISTORIC ACTUAL RETURNS? 

A. Every time I have seen an article in popular business magazines about what returns 

stocks have achieved historically, reference is made to a rate that is consistent with the 

geometric return, not the arithmetic return. A recent example I have seen is in an article 

entitled “Saving at Mach Speed’’ on page 79 of the June 12, 1995 issue of US. News and 

World Reporr. This article states that “ ... 10 percent (is) the long-term rate of return of the 

Standard & Poor’s 500.” 

Q. HAVE YOU COMPARED GRAPHICALLY THE CAPITAL APPRECIATION 

GROWTH RATE USING DR. M O W S  METHOD WITH THE CAPITAL 

APPRECIATION GROWTH RATE THAT IS OBTAINED USING THE SEC 

METHOD? 

A. Yes. In the following graph I show the actual movement of the S&P Utility index 

from 1928 through 1993. I also show how the index would have behaved on a year-by- 

year basis using the average growth obtained from the SEC method and using Dr. Morin’s 

historic growth rate methodology. The graph illustrates that Dr. Morin’s calculation of 

historic actual returns deviates at an ever-increasing rate over time from the actual S&P 

Utility Index, overstating the total return from 1928-1993 by almost 400%. By contrast, 

the historic actual returns computed using the SEC method is a dramatically more 
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reasonable track of the growth of the S&P utility over time and thus is a better measure of 

historic actual return rates realized by investors. 
F-- 

4 

5 

6 Q. HOW MUCH HIGHER IS THE RISK PREMIUM DIFFERENCE BASED UPON 

7 AN ARITHMETIC AVERAGE THAN IT IS BASED UPON A GEOMETRIC 

8 AVERAGE? 

9 

10 

11 

12 
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A. From 1928 to 1993, the arithmetic average method produced an indicated risk 

premium that was 1.90% higher for public utility stocks vs. public utility bonds than the 

risk premium indicated by using the SEC, or geometric average method 

For all of the above reasons, to the extent any weight at all is given to the CAPM 

method, its computation must be based upon a geometric average of historic actual 

returns in preference to an arithmetic average of historic actual returns. 
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1 111. HOPE NATURAL GAS DECISION 

2 
r-. - 

3 Q. ON PAGES 6-9 OF HIS DIRECT TESTIMONY, DR. MORIN DISCUSSES THE 

4 

5 

U.S. SUPREME COURT DECISION IN THE HOPE NATURAL GAS CASE. IS HIS 

EQUITY COST RECOMMENDATION CONSISTENT WITH THE REQUIREMENTS 

6 OF THE HOPE CASE? 

7 A. No. His 12.25% equity cost recommendation is substantially higher than the return 

8 

9 

required by the implementation of the principles in the Hope Nururul Gus case. 

Specifically, his recommendation is inconsistent with the following important quote from 

10 the decision: 

11 
- 12 
.c. 13 

14 
- 15 

16 
17 
18 
19 

20 

The fixing of prices, like other applications of the police power, 
may reduce the value of the property which is being regulated. But the 
fact that the value of the property is reduced does not mean that the 
regulation is invalid ... It does, however, indicate that “fair value” is the 
end product of the process of rate-making not the starting point as the 
Circuit Court of Appeals held. The heart of the matter is that rates cannot 
be made to depend upon “fair value” when the value of the going 
enterprise depends on earnings under whatever rates may be anticipated. 

The U. S. Supreme court explains in a footnote to the above paragraph that “ ... the 

21 

22 

23 

word ‘value’ is to be gathered ‘from the purpose for which a valuation is being made. 

Thus the question in a valuation for rate making is how much a utility will be allowed to 

earn.” Therefore, when Dr. Morin says on pages 14 to 15 of his testimony that he 

24 concerned about the “,.. market-to-book (M/B) ratios ...” of the water industry and “ ... 

25 

26 

falling realized returns on equity...”, he has ignored the above-quoted principles. The fact 

is that the market-to-book ratio of the water utility industry was, on average, above 1.4 as 
- 

P 
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of December 31, 1995. When the market-to-book ratio is this high, it is consistent for 

realized returns on equity to be allowed to drift down. 

Dr. Morin again ignored the above-quoted principles from the Hope decision 

when he arrived at his erroneous conclusion on page 28 of his testimony that there is “ ... 

questionable applicability of the [DCF] model when M/B ratios deviates substantially 

from 1.00 ...”. Actually, the DCF model is specifically designed to determine the proper 

cost of equity irrespective of the market-to-book ratio because it determines the return 

investors demand on market price. Then, when other regulatory principles are properly 

applied, the return on the original cost rate base is set equal to the return demanded by 

investors on book value. In this way, the principles of the Hope case are specifically met 

Q. HAVE REGULATORY AGENCIES RELIED UPON THE ABOVE PORTION OF 

THE HOPE NATURAL GAS DECISION THAT YOU HAVE QUOTED? 

A. Yes. For example, FERC has stated the following: 

Specifically, they claim that when a utility’s market-to-book ratio is 
above one, applying a DCF-based allowed rate of return to a book value 
rate base results in earnings that are too low. Conversely, when a 
utility’s market-to-book ratio is below one, applying a DCF-based 
allowed rate of return to a book value rate base results in earnings that 
are too high. Both commenters argue that the allowed rate of return 
should be applied to a market value rate based rather than to book 
value. 

The following example demonstrates the circularity of their 
claim. Equity capital costs generally rise as interest rates rise. 
Conversely, equity capital cost rates generally fall as interest rates fall. 
During periods of risking equity costs, utilities generally file for rate 
increases to cover these higher costs. This action protects utility 
shareholders from declines in the value of the stock. The result is a 
tendency to maintain a utility’s existing market-to-book ratio during 
periods of risking equity costs. 
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During periods of falling capital costs, the revenue required to 
meet shareholder capital costs requirements also declines. Until a 
utility files for new rates at the lower capital cost, it continues to charge 
rates based on the higher equity capital costs that existed when the 
current rates were set. The result is a tendency for the utility to earn 
more than its shareholders currently require and a concomitant increase 
in the price of the utility’s common stock and market-to-book ratio. 

When capital costs are below those of the previous filing, 
applying the allowed rate of return to a market value rate base would 
perpetuate the unnecessarily high revenues that the expense of utility’s 
customers. Applying the allowed rate of return to a book value rate 
base would reduce revenue to the level required by shareholders a t  
the new lower cost of equity. These revenues will provide the 
utility with an opportunity to recover all costs including the cost of 
capital. 

The argument over the application of an allowed rate of return 
to a market value rate base is an old one and the problem of circularity 
inherent in that approach has been long and widely recognized. The 
Supreme Court’s statement in Federal Power Commission v. Hope 
Natural Gas Co. that “rates cannot be dependent upon ‘fair value’ 
when the value of the going enterprise depends on earnings under 
whatever rates may be anticipated” reflects its recognition of that 
problem. The market value of an enterprise or  its common stock 
depends upon its earnings or  anticipated earnings, which in turn 
depends upon the rates allowed. Thus, market value is a result of 
the ratemaking process and may not properly be the beginning of 
the process as well. 

Docket Rh487-35-000, P. 3348 of the Federal Register/ Vol. 53, No. 24, Friday Feb. 5, 
1988. Emphasis added. 

Similarly, the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) responded to an 

argument made by Ameritech which suggested that the FCC was “ ... obligated to 

prescribe a rate of return that will ensure continuation of the carriers’ current market-to- 

book ratios.”g The FCC rejected Ameritecb’s argument for several reasons. The reasons 

36 stated were: 

9Page 15 of decision FCC 90-315 dated September 19, 1990, in CC Docket No. 89-624. 

37 



2981 - 
1 

.-, 2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 

- 19 
20 
21 

- 22 
.c 23 

24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 than its required return. 
34 

36 
37 (FCC-90-315, P. 15.) 

- 

- 

Moreover, market-to-book ratios greater than one have been viewed 
traditionally as possible indicators that the company’s return is greater 

’ 35 (Emphasisadded) 

... market-to-book ratios greater than one have been viewed 
traditionally as possible indicators that the company’s return is greater 
than its required return. 

... Ameritech places great reliance on its perception that unless this 
Commission applies the market-derived rate of return to its equity base, 
stockholders will see a massive decline in the value of their stock. It is 
true that prescription of a rate of return based on market data could lead 
to a decrease in the value of the stock if investors have been expecting 
continuation of a previously-authorized higher rate of return. On the 
other hand, a reduced rate of return might have no impact on stock 
price if, as often happens, the reduction had already been anticipated 
and discounted by the market. In any case, the requirement that we 
balance ratepayer and investor interests does not allow us to insulate 
investors from a diminution in the value of their stock (if in fact we 
could do so). In any event, if we prescribed a rate of return above 
that which market data showed to be reasonable, investors would 
increase their expectations as to the carrier’s rate of return, market 
value would increase, and the carrier would seek a higher rate of 
return authorization so that these higher expectations are not 
thwarted. We would be remiss in our responsibilities to balance 
ratepayers’ and investors’ interests if we implemented procedures 
that effectively insulated a carrier from experiencing a decrease in 
its authorized return. Thus, our current market-based rate of 
return procedures meet the Bluefield/Hope criteria 
notwithstanding that their application herein may adversely 
impact carriers’ high market-to-book stock ratios. 
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IV. WATER COMPANY RISKS IN FLORIDA 

Q. DR. MORN CLAIMS, ON PAGE 40 OF HIS TESTIMONY, THAT THE WATER 

UTILITIES IN FLORIDA ARE MORE RISKY THAN WATER UTILITIES 

ELSEWHERE BECAUSE OF THEIR SMALLER SIZE AND BECAUSE OF USED 

AND USEFUL ADJUSTMENTS. PLEASE COMMENT. 

A. The kind of risk that impacts the cost of equity is the non-diversifiable risk. Neither of 

these factors impact non-diversifiable risk and therefore do not impact the cost of equity. 

Q. WHY DO DIVERSIFIABLE RISKS NOT IMPACT THE COST OF EQUITY? 

A. Investors have the opportunity to purchase securities as part of an overall portfolio. 

Unexpectedly bad results at one company whose stock is owned in the portfolio will 

likely be impacted by unexpectedly good results at another company so long as the 

portfolio is appropriately diversified. Therefore, as long as the portfolio is diversified, the 

predictability of the income from a portfolio is much higher and therefore the risk is 

much lower than if only one company were owned. Conceptually, from the perspective 

of divrsifiable risk, a large water company is no different than a large portfolio of small 

water companies. 

An analogy that is helpful could be made to gambling on whether either "red" or 

"black" will come up on a roulette wheel at a casino in Las Vegas. If the "investor" goes 

to the casino with $1,000 to bet and places all $1,000 on the roulette wheel all at once, the 

bet would be highly risky. There is a 50% chance (before consideration of the "house" 

take) that the "investor" would loose the entire investment. However, if the same 

investor made 1,000 bets of $1 .OO each, the outcome is highly predictable. Within a very 
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narrow range, this investor would have close to $1,000 (absent considerations of the 

“house” take). It could be a little more, or a little less, but because the number of 

diversifiable bets would be very large (1,000) instead of very small (l), risk is 

significantly minimized. 

Q. DO USED AND USEFUL ADJUSTMENTS INCREASE THE RISK OF 

INVESTING IN FLORIDA UTILITIES? 

A. No. While a used and useful adjustment is a factor that must be considered, because 

the water company receives both a return of and a return on the plant that is disallowed 

on used and useful grounds as customers are added in the future, investors eventually 

receive much of the compensation associated with what was initially disallowed used and 

useful plant. Furthermore, the predictability of adding customers in future years is 

materially increased if the investor purchases the equity in the water utility as part of a 

diversified portfolio. 
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VII. DIRECTION OF CHANGE IN WATER COMPANY RISKS 

Q. ON PAGE 3 OF HIS TESTIMONY, DR. MORIN CONCLUDES THAT THE RISK 

OF WATER BUSINESS HAS INCREASED SUBSTANTIALLY IN RECENT YEARS. 

DO YOU AGREE? 

A. No. My experience has shown that most company cost of capital witnesses argue that 

the company or industry for which they are testifying happens to have extraordinarily 

high risks. It is always possible to identify factors associated with any one business or 

any one industry which seem to cause that entity to have risk. However, risk is inherent 

in all businesses. This is specifically why the cost of equity for all investor owned 

companies is higher than the risk free interest rate. Because a simple listing of risks can 

make any company appear to be risky, when evaluating risks it is important to 

concentrate only on analytical analysis. Subjective comments relating to risk should be 

given minimal weight. 

Q. DOES AN ANALYTICAL ANALYSIS SHOW A DIRECTION OF CHANGE IN 

THE RISK EXPERIENCED BY THE STOCKHOLDERS OF WATER UTILITIES? 

A. Yes. One analytical method to determine how the risk of an industry is changing over 

time is to examine the range over which stock prices have traded. The common stock 

price at any one point in time is reflective of investors’ expectations for the future. Risk 

is related to the difficulty with which future events relating to the value of a specific 

investment can be forecast. Therefore, the larger the range over which stock prices trade, 

the more significant the changes in investor expectations that were experienced over the 

time period that the stock price volatility was quantified. 
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In order to examine how investors’ perceptions of risk have been changing for 

water utilities, I examined the difference between the high and low stock price that was 

3 achieved by the water utilities covered by Value Line for each year from 1994 to 1995. 

c 

L 

4 

5 following graph: 

The results of this analysis are shown on Sch. JAR 12, P. 2, and are summarized on the 

6 

~ 

! Water Utilities Stock Volatility, 1984-1995 1 j 
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9 As shown in the above graph, the risk as indicated by stock volatility has been in a 

10 basic doiuntrend since 1985, and four of the five lowest volatility years since 1983 

11 occurred in the most recent four-year period. 
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VI. RELATIVE RISK OF GAS COMPANIES AND WATER COMPANIES 

Q. 

UTILITIES ARE MORE RISKY THAN GAS UTILITIES. PLEASE COMMENT. 

A. Dr. Morin is wrong. Water utilities are in a lower risk category than gas utilities. 

Other than air, water is the most basic commodity there is. As contrasted to natural gas, 

there are no substitute products available. 

ON PAGE 39 OF HIS TESTIMONY, DR. MORIN CLAIMS THAT WATER 

Standard & Poors has made it clear that it recognizes water utilities are in a lower 

risk category than gas utilities. This can be seen by comparing the benchmarks Standard 

& Poors has stated are required for a water utility to obtain an “A” bond rating and the 

benchmarks required for a natural gas distribution utility to obtain the same “A” rating. 

For example, the pre-tax interest courage required for a water utility to be within the 

benchmark for an “A” rating are 2.25-3.75, whereas the benchmark for a gas distribution 

utility to achieve an “A” rating is 3.0-4.25. Similarly, for a “BBB’ bond rating, the 

benchmark range for water utilities is 1.25-2.75, while the benchmark range for gas 

distribution utilities is 2.0 to 3.25. Similarly, water utilities can use more debt in the 

capital structure than gas distribution companies with the same bond rating. The 

benchmark level of debt in the capital structure for an “A” rated water utility is 48-56%, 

while the benchmark level of debt in the capital structure of a gas distribution utility is 

42-50% debt. A water utility can use between 54-62% debt and still be within the 

benchmark guidelines for a “BBB rating, while a gas distribution utility must stay within 

47-60% debt to be consistent with the guidelines for a “BBB” bond rating. 
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Q. DOES MARKET PRICE DATA OF COMMON STOCK MOVEMENTS SUPPORT 

THE FACT THAT WATER UTILITIES HAVE A LOWER RISK THAN GAS 

DISTFUBUTION UTILITIES? 

A. Yes. As previously explained, one analytical indicator of risk is the magnitude of 

stock price movement within a year. As shown on Sch. JAR 12, P. 1, the difference 

between the high and low stock price of water utilities has been smaller than the similar 

movement of the stock price movement of gas distribution utilities in every year since 

1991. 
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VII. LIQUIDITY PREMIUM 

Q. ON PAGE 46 OF HIS TESTIMONY, DR. MORIN RECOMMENDS ADDING A 

0.2% LIQUIDITY PREMIUM TO THE COST OF EQUITY OF SSU. PLEASE 

COMMENT. 

A. Not only is such an addition 

speculative, equity capital is raised by SSU’s parent, Minnesota Power and Light. 

Therefore, the liquidity of the investment is related to the cost of raising equity that is 

incurred by Minnesota Power and Light. The common stock of Minnesota Power and 

Light is traded on the New York Stock Exchange and does not command any liquidity 

premium. 

It is inappropriate to add this liquidity premium. 

Q. IS THERE ANY FACTOR WHICH SHOULD LEAD TO A DISCOUNT RATHER 

THAN A PREMIUM FOR SMALL WATER UTILITIES? 

A. Yes. While I do not recommend adding such a premium because quantifying it would 

be speculative, a smaller water company is more likely to be purchased by another water 

utility than is a large water utility. Frequently when such acquisitions take place, they are 

for a price in excess of book value. The potential for the sale of assets in excess of book 

value is a reason why investors might find small water company investments especially 

attractive and therefore might actually pay a premium to own these companies rather than 

require the liquidity premium penalty as recommended by Dr. Morin. 
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VIII. IMPACT OF WEATHER NORMALIZATION CLAUSE 

Q. IF A WEATHER NORMALIZATION CLAUSE IS IMPLEMENTED FOR SSU, 

WHAT IMPACT SHOULD THIS HAVE ON THE OVERALL COST OF CAPITAL? 

A. A weather normalization clause would increase the predictability of revenues and 

earnings for a water utility. An increase in revenue predictability reduces the amount of 

common equity and increases the amount of debt in the capital structure that a water 

utility can safely use. This is because a weather normalization clause increases the 

amount of annual interest expense that a water company can count on being able to pay 

each year. Therefore, if a water company does respond to the existence of a weather 

normalization clause by increasing the amount of debt and the result of the debt increase 

is to lower the overall cost of capital, then there is a net cost of capital benefit from 

implementing a weather normalization clause. 

Other than in response to a change in the capital structure, it is unlikely that the 

implementation of a weather normalization clause would lower the cost of equity. This is 

because variation from weather is a diversifiable risk. As explained earlier in this 

testimony, the cost of equity is only influenced by changes in non-diversifiable risks, not 

diversifiable risks. 

Q. DOES THIS COMPLETE YOUR TESTIMONY? 

A. Yes. 

46 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

2 9 9 0  

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Thank you. Mr. Beck. 

MR. BECK: Yes. I have handed out a copy of the 

I think we have all agreed deposition of Stephanie Smith. 

to accept the deposition in lieu of calling her as a live 

witness, so I would ask that it be marked for identification 

and move it into the record. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Okay. We will mark Ms. Stephanie 

Smith's deposition as Exhibit 184 and it will be admitted in 

the record without objection. 

(Exhibit Number 184 marked for identification and 

received into evidence.) 

MR. BECK: And next we call Charles Sweat to the 

stand. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Sweat. Mr. Sweat, have you 

been sworn in? 

WITNESS SWEAT: No, ma'am. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Would you please stand and raise 

your right hand. 

CHARLES L. SWEAT 

was called as a witness on behalf of the Office of Public 

Counsel, and having been duly sworn, testified as follows: 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: You may be seated. Mr. Beck. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BECK: 

Q Mr. Sweat, would you please state your full name? 
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A My name is Charles L. Sweat. 

Q Are you employed by Southern States Utilities, 

Incorporated? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q What position do you hold with the company? 

A My title is Vice President of Corporate 

Development. 

Q Have you held other positions with the company 

previously? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q Could you just briefly describe your last few 

positions with the company? 

A Prior to the present title of Vice President of 

Corporate Development, I was Vice President of Operations. 

Prior to that I was President of Southern States Utilities 

Prior to that I was Vice President of Operations. 

Q Thank you. And how long have you been Vice 

President of Corporate Development? 

A I believe since 1992. 

Q Could you describe for us a little bit of what 

your job responsibilities are? 

A Generally, I’m responsible for acquisitions. 

Q And would you also have responsibilities with 

respect to sales, as well? 

A Yes, sir, occasionally. 
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Q Are you the primary author of a document entitled 

Southern States Utilities, Incorporated, Strategic Growth? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Could you describe what that document is? 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Objection. Madam Chairman, I 

would like an identification of what issue this document 

would be addressing in the case. 

MR. BECK: On the gains on sale, what we intend to 

do is show the big picture with Southern States on the 

acquisitions and divestitures that the company anticipates. 

The document that I'm about to ask Mr. Sweat about is their 

strategic plan for both acquiring facilities and companies 

as well as divesting facilities and companies. We will show 

that we can expect that they will be selling companies as a 

routine matter in the future, and that goes to the issue on 

recognizing the gains on sale of systems. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Beck, do I have a document in 

front of me? 

MR. BECK: No, you do not. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Oh, okay. Mr. Armstrong. 

MR. ARMSTRONG: It's total speculation, and we 

have just heard what the counselor says he expects and wha 

the company anticipates. I don't think that it's relevant 

to any issue in this proceeding. I still didn't hear him 

identify what issue it relates to. 
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MR. BECK: It's the issue regarding recognizing 

the gains on sale of systems. Ms. Dismukes had some 

reference to this herself in her testimony, this will 

expanded on it. 

issue. 

And it's in her system with respect to that 

MR. ARMSTRONG: My objection stands, Madam 

Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: All right. I will allow the 

question. 

BY MR. BECK: 

Q Mr. Sweat, are you the author of that document, 

among others? 

A Yes. 

Q Could you describe generally what that document 

does? 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Objection. Madam Chair, can the 

witness be provided a copy of the document that we are 

referring to? 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Yes, I would like a copy of it, 

too, Mr. Beck. 

MR. BECK: It has been claimed confidential by the 

company. I did not anticipate offering it. I'm using this 

to start him talking about the company's plans for acquiring 

and divesting companies. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Well, even if it is confidential, 
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I think we need to have the document for the witness to 

examine, as well as his attorneys. 

MR. BECK: Well, if he is familiar with what it 

is, I'm sure he can tell us. I had not planned to offer the 

document into evidence. It goes over much more than what 

I'm going to ask, and it was really in deference to the 

company. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: You don't have it with you? 

MR. BECK: I have the original. I don't have 

copies. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Armstrong, would you please 

go take a look at that document, and we will take five 

minutes and let you look at the document with the witness. 

(Brief recess.) 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Madam Chair, Mr. Hoffman raised an 

interesting issue, and that is that the document has been 

claimed as confidential, and I know this isn't a situation 

where we are dealing with dollars and cents, how do we 

handle asking questions about a document that's confidential 

in a public hearing with everybody here? 

MR. BECK: I do not intend to ask him anything 

that would be confidential. I'm just using this as a basis 

for starting to discuss the company's plans for acquiring 

and divesting companies. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: We will take five minutes and you 
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can get together with Mr. Beck and with the witness and 

discuss how you're going to handle this document. 

(Brief recess.) 

MR. BECK: Madam Chairman, I'm going to try to not 

discuss this document at all, and I will try the questions 

that way. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Thank you, Mr. Beck. 

BY MR. BECK: 

Q Mr. Sweat, in your capacity as Vice President of 

Corporate Development, have you had occasion to consider the 

criteria the company would apply both with respect to 

purchasing facilities or systems and selling facilities and 

systems? 

A Yes. Generally, when we are looking at a utility 

for acquisition, I want to try to make sure that it is 

geographically located near other SSU facilities, that it 

has got growth in it, it has got -- generally it would not 

require any additional operating staff because of its 

geographic location. 

Q And with respect to selling systems that Southern 

States currently owns, do you have certain criteria that you 

would apply to consider whether to divest the company of 

those systems? 

A The President of Minnesota Power has stated that 

Southern States has no facilities for sale. 
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Q Well, that really doesn't -- let me try this. 
Have you had occasion to consider criteria that you believe 

the company should apply when looking at selling systems 

that it currently owns? 

If I was to suggest that we sell a particular 

system, it would probably be because it's not geographically 

located in a region that has other facilities, it is high 

cost operation, it may be high cost capital intense. 

A 

Q And have you had occasion to consider applying 

those criteria to any of the systems Southern States 

currently owns? 

A Not yet. 

Q Well, you have considered the application of those 

criteria to systems they own, have you not? 

A No, I don't believe so. 

Q In the document that we discussed earlier, the 

Southern States Utilities Strategic Growth Plan, did you not 

consider application of certain criteria to systems the 

company owns to whether they should be sold? 

A In that regard, yes, I have documented my opinion 

in a draft document. 

Q And did you pass that draft document amongst the 

officers of Southern States for their consideration? 

A I have distributed that document to all the 

officers of Southern States, yes. 
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Q And did the president and the executive Committee 

agree with your analysis that you performed? 

A No. 

Q Do you recall your deposition, Mr. Sweat? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you recall the question, "Have you discussed 

that matter specifically with the president of the company," 

discussing what we have just now. And your answer was, "I 

have discussed this matter with the president of the 

company, as well as the executive committee, which is 

basically made up of the management team of Southern States, 

for the most part vice presidents, and I think there is a 

buy-in into that theory. There has been no official 

approval of that, however." Do you recall that? 

A Yes. 

Q And were you telling me the truth when you told me 

that in the deposition? 

A Mr. Beck, I always tell the truth. If I may, I 

had had individual meetings with each of the executives, and 

I did feel like there was buy-in. And if you also recall, 

and obviously you're looking at the deposition, the comment 

from the president, as I stated in the deposition was, "It 

was a well-written document." That was his only comment. I 

don't consider that a buy-in. 

Q Without naming the specific systems, did you 
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recommend that certain systems be sold, or certain systems 

Southern States owns be sold? 

A That document provides my opinion of systems that 

should be considered. 

Q Has there been any further review of your proposal 

since the time of your deposition, last November? 

A I don't believe anybody has looked at or discussed 

my proposal, no. 

Q And without naming the specific systems, could you 

tell us how many systems you had proposed in your document 

be sold by Southern States? 

A I don't recall the number, no. 

Q Can you give me a ballpark or would you like to 

see the document to actually count them? 

A Ballpark is probably double digit, somewhere less 

than 20. 

MR. BECK: Thank you. That's all I have. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Jacobs. 

MR. JACOBS: Thank you, Madam Chairman. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. JACOBS: 

Q Mr. Sweat, I know you have been here throughout 

the day and so you perhaps know that I'm representing the 

consumers and users and ratepayers in Nassau County who do 

business with Amelia Island Utility Company. You're aware 
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of that prior discussion, is that not correct? 

A No, sir. 

Q Well, that's who I am, and that's why I'm here. 

A I didn't hear who you are and who you represent. 

Q I'm Buddy Jacobs, and I represent the Amelia 

Island Utility Company users, which are part -- that is the 
Nassau County branch of your company, okay. 

Now, Mr. Sweat, you have been with the company how 

long? 

A 32 years. 

Q So you have been involved in the build up of SSU 

prior to its sale to Minnesota Power, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q When Minnesota Power bought it, what was the year, 

1987/'88? 

A 1984. 

Q 1984? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q At the time that they purchased it, were you the 

president of the company? 

A No, sir. 

Q What was your position? 

A I was Vice President of Operations. 

Q All right, sir. 

A Correction. To correct the record, I was 
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Executive Vice President. 

Q You then participated in the sale discussions with 

Minnesota Power, is that Correct? 

A The sale of SSU to Minnesota Power? 

Q Yes. 

A No, sir, I did not. 

Q You were not at all privy to those conversations? 

A No, sir. 

Q You did not help prepare any of the documentation 

for the sale of SSU to Minnesota Power? 

A No, sir. 

Q At the time, do you have any reason to doubt that 

the declarations made by SSU to Minnesota Power were not 

true and correct? 

A No, sir. 

Q You have now been involved in purchasing utility 

companies for SSU, is that not correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q All right. Whenever you do that, don't you look 

at the rate of return you can receive on your investment, 

such as the rates that are being charged? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Don't you consider how old the facility might be, 

its condition in which you find it for purchase? 

A Yes, sir. 
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Q Don't you consider, as well, the need for Capital 

improvements, infrastructure, and things of that nature as 

you go through that purchasing process? 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Objection. Madam Chair, Mr. 

Jacobs never participated in the question of what issue the 

witness was here to refer to, but I think we are going far 

afield of what the representation was made as to why this 

witness has been produced. 

MR. JACOBS: Nobody asked me to participate, and I 

think these questions are certainly relevant to the direct 

as to the gentleman's position with the company, and I think 

I'm entitled to follow this trail of inquiry. 

MR. ARMSTRONG: The company is also entitled to 

have due process notice for  a witness to get up on the 

stand. To think that any witness who gets up there is 

subject to being asked any question out of 160 issues, and I 

think at the prehearing statement we identified that several 

times, Madam Chair. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Jacobs, I had understood that 

he was called as Public Counsel's witness to discuss the 

policy on relative -- or to discuss the issue of gain on 
sale. YOU are now inquiring as to prior to the time it was 

sold to Minnesota Power. I think that is beyond the scope 

of the direct examination of him. 

MR. JACOBS: Madam Chairman, I then -- the 
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question that led to this line of questioning was have you 

then since its acquisition by Minnesota Power, have you been 

involved in the acquisition of other companies, and he said 

yes. 

this involved in your process of thinking for that 

acquisition, and that's when I got into these particular 

questions. So this is subsequent to the purchase by 

Minnesota Power that this line of questioning is going 

towards. 

Then I asked him as you go through that process is 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Armstrong. 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Madam Chair, I think what we heard 

from OPC, who was the only one who participated at all in 

the discussion of what this witness would be required to 

testify about, told you just a little while ago that they 

wanted to get into the issue of what kind of companies 

Southern States would be in the future. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Okay. Mr. Jacobs, I had 

understood that the purpose of having Mr. Sweat here was to 

talk about potential sales of systems, and you seem to be 

covering the issue of how they decide to acquire those 

systems. 

MR. JACOBS: Madam Chairman, the purpose of his 

testimony here, as I understand it, is to talk about they 

are in the buying and selling business of utilities. In 

other words, it's not -- they are certainly a utility 
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company, but they have a history of buying and selling 

companies. It goes towards the return that they receive on 

their investment, whether or not these things are rehabbed 

by them and then moved forward for sale. I just want to 

understand their philosophy. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: But I don't think that goes to 

the issue of gain on sale. Mr. Twomey. 

MR. TWOMEY: I'm sorry. 

MR. JACOBS: When you look at a company like this, 

I think you have to look at it in a global fashion. You 

can't just take one segment of what they do as far as their 

ability to have a return on their investment. I think it's 

important to know the philosophies that they have utilized 

in the past for the acquisition of companies, and then you 

talk about the sale, and I wanted to get into the fact of 

how do they -- I know that the statements you have heard 

here from others, the letters that have been presented, this 

company is in the business of taking rural utility companies 

and making them a viable company. I think it's certainly a 

necessary inquiry that I'm making. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Well, here is my problem. This 

is a witness called by Public Counsel, he questioned him on 

a limited area. You had the opportunity to call him as your 

own witness to ask these questions. I'm going to allow you 

to follow up just briefly, but then I will call a halt to 
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further questions in this area. 

MR. JACOBS: All right. Thank you. I think 

that's fair. I appreciate it. 

BY MR. JACOBS: 

Q My question, again, and I asked you this series, 

in other words, you take all of these things into 

consideration whenever you purchase a utility company, is 

that not correct? The rates, the condition you find it, the 

capital improvements, their environmental compliance and 

noncompliance, these are all considerations, is that not 

correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q And the amount that you pay for that company is 

based upon how you find each one of these conditions and 

that's how you evaluate that purchase, is that not correct? 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Objection. Madam Chair, this is 

far beyond -- 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: I think it is, Mr. Jacobs. 

MR. TWOMEY: May I comment? 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: That to me goes to the issue of 

an acquisition adjustment, and we were talking about the 

gain on sale. That's the ssue that he has been subpoenaed 

here for today. As I said you had the opportunity to call 

him as your witness if you wanted to have him testify on 

other issues. 
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MR. JACOBS: I will drop that line and go to 

another one. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Okay. 

BY MR. JACOBS: 

Q You stated on direct that the reason that you 

would sell a company is that it was not geographically 

located and that it had high cost operations; do you 

remember making that statement? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And you said that of the 140 or 150 companies that 

you own today that you think that only applies to 20 

companies, is that correct? You said double digits, less 

than 20? 

A I don't think I said that. That scenario only 

applied to those numbers somewhere in the neighborhood of 

less than 20. I believe that I recommended approximately 20 

utilities that we should consider for divestiture, that was 

my statement. 

Q All right. Out of the 20, how much -- what 
percentage of that is of your inventory of companies? 

A It's a small percentage. 

Q And did you recommend that those be sold within 

one year? 

A Would you ask the question again. 

Q In other words, you recommended they be sold -- is 
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it part of your recommendation that they be sold within a 

one year time frame? 

A I don't recall recommending that. 

Q Do you recall over what period of time they should 

be sold? 

A I don't think I addressed a period of time that 

those systems should be sold. 

Q Would it be your philosophy that they be sold 

within five years? 

A I don't think I have a particular philosophy on 

It was merely a recommendation when they should be sold. 

that they should be considered. 

Q I think you have answered the question, but I just 

want to ask you again. But how long in your philosophy that 

these should be sold because they are not geographically 

proper within your locale framework of the company and they 

have high cost operations, how long can those things exist 

before they should be sold? 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Objection. I believe it was asked 

and answered. In the response just before he said he didn't 

recommend -- he recommended they be considered for being 
sold. He also has stated that he didn't make any 

recommendation as to when they would be sold. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Jacobs, that is what I heard. 

MR. JACOBS: All right. Thank you, Madam 
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Chairman. 

BY MR. JACOBS: 

Q If those companies are sold, do you have any 

recommendation that other companies should be purchased? 

A I didn't hear the end of your question. 

Q Do you have any recommendation for the purchasing 

of other companies? 

A 

Q 

Yes, sir. 

And you are looking at those as Vice President of 

Development since 1992, your looking at buying companies all 

the time, is that not correct? 

A That's part of my job, yes, sir. 

Q And that's basically a strong philosophy of your 

company, is to seek an aggressive purchase of other 

companies, is that not correct? 

A That has been, yes, sir. 

Q And whenever you're looking at those companies, as 

you move forward in this aggressive way, you are looking to 

purchase companies based upon the conditions we stated 

earlier, and so you would want them to be economically 

viable based upon the purchase price for which you seek to 

buy those companies, is that not correct? 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Madam Chair, I am going to object. 

This is pie in the sky. I have never heard this come into 

any rate case in a career of doing this. It's speculation 
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do with an issue in this Case. 

That has nothing to 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Jacobs. 

MR. JACOBS: I think it does go to the very heart 

of the case. They purchase companies. They've purchased a 

lot of them in Florida. He recommends they sell 20, and yet 

in his full-time job as Vice President of Development, it is 

to seek to buying other companies. Whenever they look at 

each one of these companies based upon these conditions, 

they should have some viability on their own and should not 

seek and need to seek to have a rate applied to other 

members of that company for the purchase so that this 

becomes an economically viable investment, not one that 

requires other ratepayers to bolster up that purchase. And 

I think that's a fair line of questioning that I'm making at 

this time. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Jacobs, I don't think it is 

within the scope of the questions he was asked on direct, 

and it seems to me it is argument with respect to what may 

be your position on the issue of acquisitions. And as I 

said before, you had the opportunity to call witnesses and I 

don't think it's appropriate at this time to allow that line 

of questions. 

MR. JACOBS: I have no further questions, then. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Twomey. 
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MR. TWOMEY: Yes, ma'am. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. TWOMEY: 

Q Mr. Sweat, in response to Mr. Beck's questions, 

you listed a number of factors, did you not, that bring one 

of your utilities, one of your systems into the range as a 

candidate for a sale, a prospective sale, right? Wasn't one 

of them high cost? 

A High cost of operation, I believe, was one of 

them, and high capital intensity was my other comment. 

Q Okay. Let me ask you first, what do you mean by 

high capital intensity? 

A It would require capital dollars to make certain 

improvements, it may be for capacity, it may be for 

compliance issues. That's high capital intensity dollars 

for small systems, in my opinion. 

Q Just so I'm sure I understand what you're saying, 

you are saying that a -- are you saying that a system that 
needs a great deal of capital infusion to bring it into 

compliance, that would be one factor that would make a 

system that you hold now a candidate for sale in your 

analysis, is that correct? 

A In my opinion, yes, sir. 

Q And the second one you mentioned was high 

operations costs, right? 
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A That's correct. 

Q And by high operations costs, I assume you mean on 

a stand-alone basis, is that correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Exclusive of any consideration of common cost 

allocations, correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q Now, why would those two factors make you 

recommend as likely candidates such systems for sale? 

A It's just not those two factors, it is other 

factors. There is no growth, geographically the system may 

be located several miles from existing operations, it may 

take a special operator to maintain the small system that 

has no growth, it maybe needs compliance capital dollars 

invested. All of those things play a role. 

Q Okay, sir, but help me understand why any of those 

factors are a problem for your company that would cause you 

to consider them for sale? I mean, high operating cost 

alone, there is nothing wrong with that, is there? 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Objection. Madam Chair, I think 

we are going far afield still. The issue is acquisition 

adjustments in this case. This has no relevance to this 

case. This could be said about any utility at any time. 

MR. TWOMEY: We are not talking about any utility 

at any time, Madam Chairman, we are talking about Southern 
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States. 

issue in this case. 

they select utilities and so forth. I think it's fair. I'm 

talking about factors that he spoke of in direct response to 

questions by Mr. Beck. NOW, I don't know how much Mr. 

Armstrong would have us imited, although I suspect how much 

he would like to see it imited. This is an important issue 

on how they got a lot of the systems. The gain on sale 

issue goes to -- 

And the acquisition, the gain on sale is a primary 

It goes back to the Venice thing, how 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Twomey, I'm going to allow 

the question, because I do believe it is within the scope of 

what he was asked by Mr. Beck. But as I indicated to Mr. 

Jacobs, you had the opportunity to call him as your witness 

if you wanted to cross examine him on a further subject, but 

so far I think you're within the scope of what was asked. 

MR. TWOMEY: And that's what I'm trying to do, in 

the spirit of trying to do that. 

BY MR. TWOMEY: 

Q So, given that you have responded to Mr. Beck, as 

I think you did, that high operations costs is one of the 

criterion that would cause you to consider this utility as a 

candidate, my question to you is what is wrong inherently, 

if anything, about a system with high operating costs that 

would make you want to get rid of it? 

A Very simply, SSU has been operating at a loss for 
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a number of years, and to carry systems that continue to 

have high burden cost operations, I don't think is fair to 

the shareholders or the ratepayers, and we should look at 

these systems as any other business would look at their 

company, and if you've got an asset that's not producing 

maybe you should consider getting rid of that asset. 

Q What do you mean by "fair to the ratepayers"? 

Isn't it true that the high cost of operation, as well as 

the second factor that you mentioned, the capital intensity 

needs, those needs will follow the customers of that system, 

won't they? 

A Well, they may, but they may be the economies of 

sale for a new owner, possibly a city or a county that has a 

larger customer base. The economies of scale may play a 

major factor there, and the costs may not be the same as it 

would with our company. 

Q Okay. Now, you have been with the company for 

three decades plus, you said, right? 

A That's correct. 

Q Isn't it true that you bought a great many of the 

systems we are talking about here in terms of the candidates 

for sale? 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Objection, Madam Chair. Again, 

what issue are we referring to with regard to this? 

MR. TWOMEY: Gain on sale. 
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MR. ARMSTRONG: Gain on sale? This is impossible 

that it could relate to gain on sale. 

decades ago when the company was buying utilities? 

Were you there 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Armstrong and Mr. Twomey, we 

need to keep it to one person at a time. He is objecting on 

the grounds that it does not relate to what he was asked on 

direct from Mr. Beck. 

MR. TWOMEY: And my response is that it depends, 

it depends on how tightly you want to construe what Mr. Beck 

was questioning about. I would suggest to you, Madam 

Chairman, that the question of how SSU and Mr. Sweat in a 

personal sense probably, if he was allowed to answer the 

questions, bought the systems they hold has a very direct 

relation to the way they go about selling them and 

considering the gain on sale that results. And that's where 

I want to inquire. It won't take long. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Mr. Twomey, I do think it has 

gone beyond the scope of what he has elicited on direct, and 

I would point out, again, that while it may be relevant to 

another issue or some broader issue with respect to this 

utility, you had the opportunity to call him as a witness 

and inquire on your own as to that line of questioning. 

MR. TWOMEY: Okay. 

BY MR. TWOMEY: 

Q With respect to the gain on sale issue, Mr. Sweat, 
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do the high operating costs and the capital intensity 

requirements give you an advantage, do you find those to be 

advantageous as well in finding potential buyers for them? 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Objection. What gain on sale 

issue are we referring to? There is one in this case that 

has to do with past gains on sale, is that what we are 

alleging this question refers to? 

MR. TWOMEY: That's what I thought Mr. Beck said 

his question was on. 

MR. ARMSTRONG: No, I believe he said the future 

plans for the acquisition and divestiture of systems, that 

was of the ruling of the Chair, and it was what was 

represented as being the issue to be discussed by Mr. Sweat. 

MR. TWOMEY: I think it falls within it. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Let me hear your question again. 

MR. TWOMEY: He has testified in response to Mr. 

Beck's questions that the factors that SSU considers or he 

considers in offering up systems for sale are their high 

operating costs and their capital intensity, meaning that 

they need repairs. And my question to him is, are those 

factors that you find, the high cost and the high intensity, 

that lead you to be able to sell them easier than perhaps 

other systems. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: I think that is a fair question. 

WITNESS SWEAT: Since I haven't sold any yet, I 
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don't know if it's going to be easy or hard. 

difficult to sell these small systems. 

real buyer out there. I really don't know yet. 

BY MR. TWOMEY: 

It may be 

There may not be a 

Q Is your current plan to -- you testified that Mr. 
Sandbulte -- I assume you meant Mr. Sandbulte, or did you 

mean -- you said the president of the parent corporation? 

A I said the President of Minnesota Power, which is 

Mr. Edmund Russell. 

Q Mr. Russell said that you had no systems for sale 

now, right? 

A That's correct. 

Q Do you expect that to change as soon as you get a 

rate order out of this Commission? 

A I can't speculate on Mr. Edmund's future 

Q 
A 

BY MS. 

Q 

decisionmaking. 

Mr. Russell's? 

Mr. Russell, excuse me, yes. 

MR. TWOMEY: That's all I have. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Staff. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BER : 

Mr. Sweat, if the Commission approved a rate 

structure for SSU that is other than the uniform rate 

structure, do you know if SSU will petition the court to 
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have a substitute receiver appointed for the Enterprise 

system? 

A I don't know. 

Q Has any member of SSU had those discussions in 

front of you about the possibility of the acquisition or 

receivership of Enterprise? 

A There has been discussion as to trying to get the 

receivership resolved either by ownership or giving it up. 

I don't know exactly. 

Q If I wanted to ask that question of someone else 

testifying, Mr. Sweat, who would I ask? 

A I believe that Ms. Teasley was working on that 

system. 

MS. JABER: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: I'm sorry, I probably should have 

gone to you, Mr. Armstrong or Mr. Hoffman. 

MR. ARMSTRONG: That's okay, I just have a little 

bit. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Go ahead. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. ARMSTRONG: 

Q Mr. Beck had referred to your deposition, and a 

question and answer in your deposition and, Mr. Sweat, it's 

a little bit more than a page and a half, but I think it's 

the quickest way. If you could just read the questions and 
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answers that begin at Page 18, Line 18, through Page 19, 

Line 19. 

A "Question: Okay. Now, you helped prepare a 

document that's entitled, as I recall, a strategic plan for 

the company? 

"Answer: Yes. 

"Question: Okay. And that was a draft, as I 

understand it, of a strategic plan actually, is that 

correct? 

"Answer: That's correct. 

"Question: Did it pass through the Southern 

States executive offices, has it been approved at the 

Southern States level? 

"Answer: Not yet. 

"Question: Okay. Has it gone up to Minnesota 

Power or the Topeka group for consideration? 

"Answer: Not yet. 

"Question: Okay. What is your plan toward having 

a review of that proposed strategic plan? 

"Answer: I have turned it over to my boss and he 

hasn't made a decision. I don't know where that is going to 

go, quite frankly. 

"Question: Have you had any discussions with the 

president about the content of the draft strategic plan? 

"Answer: Briefly, yes. 
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“Question: And could you briefly describe what 

those conversations were? 

“Answer: He said it was well-written.’’ 

Q And has your draft plan ever been approved to 

date? 

A No, sir. 

MR. ARMSTRONG: Thank you, Mr. Sweat. That‘s it, 

Madam Chair. 

MR. BECK: That‘s my copy of the deposition, I 

need to look at it a moment. I may have him read another 

Page * 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BECK: 

Q Mr. Sweat, could you please continue reading the 

deposition through the end of the next page? 

A “Question: Other than the style in which it was 

written, did he discuss the content? 

“Answer: On two occasions he said it was well 

written. No, he has not. He has not. 

“Question: Okay. In your plan you discuss the 

possibility of selling certain systems that you presently 

own, is that correct? 

“Answer: That’s correct. 

“Question: Now, without naming those systems, can 

you tell me the criteria that you applied or generally used 
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to determine which systems the company might be interested 

in selling? 

"Answer: Yes. In developing this plan, I looked 

at a location of various systems. The size of the systems, 

the capital intensity of the systems, whether they could 

grow or not grow, and determined that it would possibly, 

that it would probably be best if the company looked at 

these systems as a divestiture as opposed to a continued 

ownership of those utilities based on that criteria. 

"Question: Okay. And have you discussed that 

matter specifically with the president of the company? 

"Answer: I have discussed this matter with the 

president of the company, as well as the executive 

committee, which is basically made up of the management team 

of Southern States, for the most part vice presidents. And 

I think there is a buy-in into that theory. There has been 

no official approval of that, however. 

The last question of that page, do you want that 

read? 

MR. BECK: No, I think that's fine. Thank you, 

Mr. Sweat, that's all I have. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: okay. And there are no exhibits 

for Mr. Sweat, is that correct? 

MR. BECK: That's correct. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Thank you, Mr. Sweat, you are 
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excused, 

WITNESS SWEAT: Thank you, Madam Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: I would propose that we conclude 

for the evening. 

what we have to do tomorrow. 

we will reconvene at 1:00 o'clock or as soon thereafter as 

the agenda is concluded. 

thinks we will be done before lunch, but you never know. So 

plan on 1:00 o'clock, and at that time, help me out here, 

And if I may, let's just look briefly at 

I had indicated to staff that 

My aide has indicated to me he 

who should we start with? 

MR. BECK: Tracy Smith. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Tracy Smith and then Brian 

Armstrong? Okay. And then we will go to staff witnesses 

or -- 

MR. TWOMEY: We need to get Mr. Hansen in. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: All right. Why don't we do this, 

why don't we do Tracy Smith, Mr. Armstrong, and then Mr. 

Hansen. And then Judge Mann and Chris Carter are Wednesday, 

right? 

MR. TWOMEY: Judge Mann is Wednesday. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: So then after we conclude Mr. 

Smith, Mr. Armstrong, and Mr. Hansen, then we can move into 

staff testimony. 

MS. JABER: Charleston Winston? 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Yes. All right. Is there 
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anything else we need to take up this evening? 

MR. TWOMEY: Madam Chair. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: Yes, Mr. Twomey. 

MR. TWOMEY: Mr. Free suggested that he didn't 

care since they are calling Mr. Smith, and Mr. Armstrong, 

Mr. Hansen went first. So if you would consider that, an' 

if 

the other parties don't object, it might be we could get him 

first thing in the early afternoon. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: I think that's a good idea. So 

the first person we will take up when we reconvene is Mr. 

Hansen. 

MR. TWOMEY: Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN CLARK: All right. And we are adjourned 

until 1:00 o'clock tomorrow. Thank you very much. 

(Transcript continues in sequence with Volume27) 
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Citrus County DW 

Mr. Rafael A. Terrero, P.E. 

Chief Engineer 

Southern States Utilities 

1000 Color Place 

Apopka, FL 32703 


WARNING LETTER No. 94-0031DW09S.o 

Subject: Apache Shores STP 


Dear Mr. Terrero: 

A field inspection conducted on 4/19/93, 6/10/93, and 
~. 	 3/23/94 and a review of the file of the above referenced 

facility indicates that a violation of Chapter 403, Florida 
statutes, and the rules promulgated thereunder may exist at 
the above described facility. Department personnel observed 
the following. 

1. 	 A sample of the effluent was taken during the 3/23/94 
inspection and analyzed at the Department's laboratory. 
The result was 355 mg/L for TSS which exceeds the 
permitted maximum limitation of 60 mg/L. 

2. 	 A sample of the effluent was taken during the 4/19/93 
inspection and analyzed at the Department's laboratory. 
The results were 2483 mg/L for TSS, and 271 mg/L for 
CBODS· 

3. 	 A review of the file show no record of the capacity
Analysis Report. The three month average daily flow 
reported on the Monthly Operating Reports exceeded 50 
percent of the 0.017 MGD permitted capacity on the months 
below in 1993 and 1994 to date. 

Month 	 Three Month Average 

February 1994 0.011 MGD 
January 1994 0.010 MGD 
April 1993 0.009 .t(GD
March 1993 0.009 MGD 
Fe~ 1993 0.010 MGD 
J a P1aJC SEA'VICe OOIIMISI!IGI010 MGD DDC %;1' ]ER DATE 

NO. !"D'IC7H 	 16/ U2 3 4 9 FEB 26 ifi 
COMPANYI ,., 

WITNESS: -:H~v~~:;;;..:..!....!:5;=w""__ I' ORTING 

DATE: 




Exhibit PJ-l (Page 2 of 8) 

WARNING LETTER No. 94-0031DW09SWD 

Subject: Apache Shores STP 
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4. 	 The file shows the previous sludge analysis was performed 
on 2/4/93. 

5. 	 The Department has no record of flow calibration. 

6. 	 A review of the operator's calibration records indicated 

that the pH meter and colorimeter for chlorine residual 

measurements were last calibrated on 12/20/93. 


7. 	 A review of the on-site operator log indicated that on 
11/26/93 the blower was tripping out, and on 12/10/93 the 
blower was not working. The Department was not notified 
of these abnormal events. 

8. 	 An ex~essive amount of wet and dried sludge was observed 
on the bottom of the percolation pond, which indicated 
frequent plant upsets. The Department was not notified 
of these plant upsets. 

9. 	 The effluent distribution system for the percolation was 
predominantly plugged with solids. The threaded plugs at 
the ends of the distribution pipe were removed to allow 
the effluent to flow into the pond. 

It is a violation of Rule 17-600.740(1) (b)1.d., Florida 
Administrative Code (F.A.C.), to exceed 60 mg/L of CBOD5, and 
TSS on anyone sample of effluent. 

It is a violation of Rule 17-600.405(3), F.A.C., to fail to 
submit to the Department a capacity analysis report when the 
most recent three-month average daily flow exceed 50 percent
of the permitted capacity of the treatment plant. 

It is a violation of Rule 17-640.700(1), F.A.C., to fail to 
perform domestic wastewater residuals analysis every 12 
months for a Type III facility. 

It is a violation of Rule 17-601.200(17) (b), F.A.C., to fail 
to calibrate a flow metering device at least annually. 

It is a violation of Rule 17-601.400, F.A.C., to fail to use 
approved test procedures and established quality control 
procedures for field testing and laboratory testing. 

It is a violation of Rule 17-600.750(1), F.A.C., to fail to 
notify the department within 24 hours of events which result 
in the violation of any condition of a permit. 

-




Exhibit PJ-l (Page 3 of 8) 

\.. -
WARNING LETTER No. 94-0031DW09SWD 
Subject: Apache Shores STP 
Page Four 

by the Department in the Notice of Violation. The Department 
can also resolve any violation through entry into a consent 
Order. 

Richard D. Garrit ,Ph.D. 
Director of Dist 'ct Management 

~ cc: Dawn Shaw, citrus County PHU 

southwest Distri t 

P 079 940 696 

~!(CEiPT FOR CERTIFIED MAIL 

.: .... S' .,:'.l.Jr,I(;t ((l'tl"t~:·...t f'P4:J,-·:tto 


.. ~,. ;,:,~ '1'''E.~~.AY''\t..t. "''-.'L 


NDER: 

amplete ~t8m$ 1 andlor 2 for additional servic... ' 

amplete Items 3. and 4a lie b. 

rint~r neme and addr.ss on the reverse of this form iso'that'we can 
m t card to you, ' 

,tt:t lhi~~~rm to the front of the mailpiece. or' on the back if space 


!rite' eturn Receipt Requested" on the mailpiece below the artlcle number 

"" Re urn Receipt will show 10 whom the article was delivered end the date 


I also wish to receive the 
following services (for an extra .~ 
fee): C! 

1. 	0 AddresSee's Address ~ 

0 . 0. 
2. Restricted Delivery 'i 

~erted~,~~~==~~__________________~~~~.c~o~n~s~ul~t~P~os~t~m~a~~~e~r~fo~r~f~ee~;____ a:g 
Article Addressed to: '4a. Article Number 

P 079 940 696 E,afael A. Terrero, P.E. ~4~b-.~s~erv~ice~T~y~p-e--~------------i
hief Engineer o Registered 0 Insured a: 
outhern States Utilities ~ Certified 	 0 COD ' .~
000 Color Place o Express Mail 	 0 Return Receipt for !!I 

M r andi e ..popka, FL 32703 
7. 	Date of Delivery .e 

_ ?- L,/V g 
)ignature (Addressee I 8. 	Addressee' Address (Only if requested .: ­

and fee is paid) i 
i!: 

If 

...v,s. 0",0: 1ell2-323"- Q0"'1E,STIC.~~TURN RECEIPT 
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PENALTY COMPUTATION WORKSHEET 

Violator's Name: Southern States Utilities 

Identify Violator's Facility: Apache Shores WWTP 

Name of Department Staff Responsible for the Penalty Computations: 

Phyllis James 

Date: April 28, 1995 

PART I - Class B (no penalty) Determination 

Rationale for Class B determination: N/A 

PART II - Class A Penalty Determinations 

Violation Potential Extent Matrix Multi­ Adjustments Total 
Type for Harm of Dev. Amount day 

(600­ 1199) 

l. Poor effluent Minor Mod. ~600.00 (-$300.00) $300.00 

2. Lack of records Mod. Mod. 
(2,000-3199) 
~2,000.00 (-$1,000.00) $1,000.00 

3. Failure 
eguip. 

to main. 
Mod. Minor 

(1200-1999) 

~1200.00 (-600.00) $600.00 

4. Failure to 
Mod. Major 

(3200-4599) 

~3200.00 (-S1600.00) $1600.00 

Total Penalties for all Violations: $3,500.00 
Department Expenses 250.00 
Total Proposed Settlement $3,750.00 

st·· 

http:3,750.00
http:3,500.00
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PENALTY COMPUTATION WORKSHEET 


Part III - Multi-day Penalties and Adjustments 


ADJUSTMENTS Dollar Amount 

Good faith/Lack of good faith prior to discovery: 

Justification: 

Good faith/Lack of good faith after discovery: (-$3,500.00) 


Justification: Good faith after discovery 


History of non-compliance: 


Justification: 


Economic benefit of non-compliance: 

,..:.l-~stification : 

-Jility to pay: 

Justification: 

Total Adjustments: (-$3,500.00) 

MULTI-DAY PENALTIES Dollar Amount 

Number of days adjustment factor(s} 

Justification: 

to be applied: 

Or 


Number of days matrix amount is to be multiplied: 


Justification: 


http:3,500.00
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PENALTY ASSESSMENT MATRIX* 

EXTENT OF DEVIATION FROM REQUIREMENT 

P MAJOR MODERATE MINOR 
0----------------------------------------------------------------------­
T 
E MAJOR $10,000 $ 7,999 $ 5,999 
N to to to 
T $ 8,000 $ 6,000
1------------------------------------------­ ---­

$ 4,600 
------------­ ----­

A 
L MODERATE $ 4,599 $ 3,199 $ 1,999 

to to to 
$ 3,200 $ 2,000 $ 1,200 

R 
MINOR $ .1,199 $599 $199 

H to to to 
A $ 600 $200 $100 
R­
M 

*Reduced by 1/2 all categories for potable water cases. 
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Department of 

Environmental Protection 
Southwest District 

Lawton Chiles 3804 Coconut Palm Drive Virginia B. Wetherell 
Governor Tampa. Florida 33619 Secretary 

May 5,1995 
Citrus County 

Scott Vierma, Interim President 
Southern States Utilities 
1000 Color Place 
Apopka, Florida 32703 

Re: 	 Proposed Settlement by Short Form Consent Order in Case 
of Southern States Utilities dba Apache Shores WWTP, OGC 
File No. 95-0314. 

Dear Mr. Vierma: 

The purpose of this letter is to complete the 
settlement of the violations previously identified by the 
Department of·Environmental Protection ("DEP") in Warning 
Letter No. WL94-0031DW09SWD dated April 20, 1994, which is 
attached. The corrective actions required to bring your
facility into compliance have been performed. However, you 
must pay to the Department the amount of $3,500.00 in civil 
penalties to complete settlement of the violations described 
in the attached Warning Letter along with $250.00 to 
reimburse DEP's costs, for a total of $3,750.00. This 
payment must be made to "The Department of Environmental 
Protection" by certified check or money order and shall 
include thereon the OGC number assigned above and the 
notation "Pollution Recovery Fund". The payment shall be 
sent to the Department of Environmental Protection, 
Southwest District Office, 3804 Coconut Palm Drive, Tampa, 
Florida 33619-8318 within 20 days of your signing this 
letter. 

Your signing of this letter where indicated at the end 
of page two of this letter constitutes your acceptance of 
DEP's offer to settle this case on these terms. If you sign
this letter, please return it to DEP at the address above. 
DEP will then countersign the letter and file it with the 
Clerk of the DEP. When the signed letter is filed with the 
Clerk, the letter shall constitute a Consent Order, which is 
final agency action of the DEP, the terms and conditions of 

"PrOtect, Conserve and t.lcnage Flonda's Environment and Nawrall~esolJrces" 

Prmted on recycled poper. 

http:3,750.00
http:3,500.00
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Southern States Utilities 

Apache Shores WWTP 

OGC File No. 95-0314 

Page 2 


which may be enforced in a court of competent jurisdiction 

pursuant to Sections 120.69 and 403.121, Florida Statutes. 

Failure to comply with the terms of this letter once signed

by you and entered by the DEP Clerk shall constitute a 

violation of Section 403.161(1) (b), Florida Statutes. 


By countersigning this settlement offer, DEP waives its 

right to seek judicial imposition of damages, costs and 

expenses, or civil penalties for the violations described 

above. By accepting this settlement offer, you waive your

right to an administrative hearing to contest this 

settlement pursuant to Section 120.57, Florida Statutes, and 

your right to appeal this settlement pursuant to Section 

120.69, Florida Statutes. This offer to settle is open

until May 26, 1995 or until DEP otherwise withdraws the 

offer. If you do not sign and return this letter to the 

Department at the Southwest District address given above by

this date, the case will be referred to the DEP's Office of 

General Counsel with a recommendation that formal 

enforcement action be taken against you. None of your 

rights or substantial interests are determined by this 

letter unless you sign it and it is filed with the DEP 

Clerk. 


sin~1t;~~ 
Richard D.Garrity, Ph.D. 
Director o~District Management
Southwest DIstrict 

I ACCEPT THE TERMS OF THIS SETTLEMENT OFFER. 

For.(sout'r;erf, ~tates Utilities: 

;:JJU~By: 

the DEP: 

By:~~~~~~~~~~~ 

partment 

sco£t4lfierma, Interim Pres. R1c ar D. Garr1ty,

Southern States Utilities Director of Distri 

1000 Color Place State of Florida 

Apopka, Florida 32703 Environmental Protection 


- f{ 

ENTERED this~r)' day of 
 LING AND AQl\ii@WlEDGEMEfn 
in TAMPA, FLO~ LED, on this date. pursuant to S12ij.S~ 

lorida Statutes, with t11C de:ign;,!cd De~·;.a­
~ 

ment Ch:;rk, receipt of wtlicn is hereby e.o:".c: Cicrus County PHU 
knowledged. 

Attachments 'ii./vn i.<lJ/fa1.tff S"-3~:~9S 

crt 



Souchwosc Dkrrlct 
3804 Coconuc Palm Drlvm 

Tamm, Flarldr 33619 

April asl 1996 
P..OO county 

Southern states Utilities 
1000 color mace 
ApoXa, P t  31703 ! 
A t t :  Mr. Mila Sheahan i Environmental Manager 

Re: Palm Terrace Gardano WWTP 
! Permit NO. DO~l-i~ob78 , Letter dated March 29, 1996 
I 1 Dear Mr. Sheehan: 
G The above-refarmcod sewage treatment lant was ins 8&ed on 

, intormath on ti le with the De rtment, tho following itons 
A p r i l  17 1996. Based on t h i r  inspect '1 on and a rev P rv  of the 

waatowatar agpi P cation to operate the piant, along with 

are being brought to your atten r ion: 
1 PGlmrT: 
1. The permit to o eratm expires Auguat 18 1998. AII 

the proceeeing rea of $1000 ehould ba nubmittad 180 dayo 
prior to expiration of  the permit. [Ref:Rule 62-620.334 
(l),Florida Administrative Cculo, (F.A.C)] 

1-: 
I 
a 2. Monthly Operatin Report. show daily P H ~  rlow and 

chlorine resiaua? reading6 ara  being raportod am 
requirad. 

I 

1 ' d  

- .  . 

9 0 8 1 1  9661'0L'CB 
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Palm T a r r a ~ ~ a  Gardens WTP 

I 

% 3. Monthly Operating Reports indicate throo month average 
daily flow8 oxceedin the capacity oP the dispomal 
eyetam to suah an ex inat that eeaaonalit is 
oxhibitad. Those flowm occurred during a 3 montne 
ending Au ust 1996 February 1998 January 1995, and 
Docembar 5994. hllhouqh you are permittad on an annual 
baois the ernittae is required to eatablimh the daaign 
in flow [Ref:RUle 62-600.400(3 ( f i ) , F . A . C . ] .  During the 

x ! 

riow In a t P me ireme that railrots eeamonal variation. 
nmxt permitting cycle ou shou i d be prepared to domon- 
strata that: reamonal f 1 ow will not exceed the aapacity 

1 o f  your diapwal faystom. 
4. Racord keeping i a  inadequate. Record8 should bo well 

organisad and fatandardired. 
but the dail log for Total chlorine Reddual war in- 
adequate. T e operator wafa not followin the proaodure 
am prororibod in 7 
been calibrated m nco 2/a2/96. Report of daily reeultr 
reported arm invalid until tho propar procodurr i m  in 
placo that will aaaure tha Brpartment 02 aoourato 
refaults and a SOP ia provided to this Dopartrnmt. 
[Raf;RulO 62-601.400(1),P.A;C] 

Bound booka were found, 

. Tho D z! 100 had not f; 

5. Tho Reduced Vrmmauro 5one(RP2) valve' re uiros a I 
certification test annually, by a certi 1 ied backflow 
technioian. P1eara rovide a rooord of this teat being 
completod in M e  pea? 12 months a m  no racord could be 
found. 

6. The etrip chart of the flow metor ie not functional. 
Thio is an abnormal evont which must bo reported within 
a4 hourr. 
had not examinad tho reoording device wlthin the laat 
24 hour.. Pleaoe identify the oporratinp rOCedUr8 to 
be followed by the operator by reierencr ? o your written 
SOP in the oporating manual. [Ref:Rulo 62-600.750(1) 

t 

The operator was unaware of the problem and 

F.A.C.  

' 7 .  

I proPomsiorur1. 

Please provide a aopy of the calhration report Lor iho 
flow motor. Tho mator must be calibrated annually by a 

i 

W O b j  
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p: 

8 .  

9. 

10. 

11. 

la. 

1 The 
I the 

! 

Gua=uli: 
Baeketball aim 

or soma other Cause not idantified. 
copy of the operations manual the mathod or oparational 
procedure to prevent denitrification in the clarifier 
hopper. 

rn emor enoy overflew dwice is not in plaae an 
roquire B . 
the berm at its lOW6iot point. [RoftRule 62-610.516,8.A.C.] 

. The ond 
and a eanmd w R ila rrcaiving off luent ahould be dri~roParlf 

effluent i a  diverted to the other ond. Regular 

axiote for switching ponds. [RefiRule 61-610.5OO(l)(a) 

op u E whare found on the top of 
clarifier indica E P  ing nadequata oxygen in the blankat 

Pleaae indicato by 

DIsPOBAtr 

It ahould ba plaoed on. foot b e l o w  the top of 

The dual pond Ey8t.m is not uaod 

alternate cycles should then be ma E ntalned. No mathod 
F.A.C. 1 
Ploacle indicated the hydraulio rata applied monthly to 
tha rprayfield. On the day of the inoDnction thb 
aprayiields ware 6r 
of the bora. IRef:Rulo 62-610.515,6.A.C]. 
application for a nev permit. you ahould resent 
empiriaal 4ata that supports your permit giapoeal plan 
in accorbance w i t h  the requ&rement. o f  Ruler 
61-610.613(1) and (4 ) ,  B.A.C. 

During the inspection of tho 

action is noceaoary to proteat the well and asnure the 
Department that acaurate samples ara provided. 
a. The new well. were not labeled and we cannot identify 

particular problems with the hseociated well. 
b. All wollo oontained a eampling davioa which could 

contributm to erroneoum data. Please review your 
ground water manitorin 
plan and follow th8 mydance found i n  Chant= 

and the etaff gaube in the pond 
indicated a h drpul 1 c head within threa feat or the top 

Upon 

round water monitoring 
well. several area8 were note x where some corractiva 

plan and quality assurance 

- -  ame+a by amal~ animala 

type inapsction conducted was a Complianae Evaluation and 
ovsrall rating or t h m  facility wan UNSATISFACTORY. 
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’ Aa the permittee, you are hereby requested to rea nd to thin 
letter with the plana you have made to correct fh ‘p s 
situation. YOU ma conoult with the operator on proposal. 
f o r  corrective actran. This responae nhould be in writing 
and within twenty ( 2 0 )  days from recei t of this letter. 
plans a follow-up verifioation inspection. 
Pleare direct ani queationm to the undoreigned at (813) 

Please indiaate a time frame ror compl ‘p anoe am M e  Department 

, 744-6100, extena on 371. 

Environmental Bullervisor 
Compliance and B%orcemant 
Domeetio Wantewater Saction 

CCI Paaco county hlblio Health Unit 
PSC, Tallahamnee 
Bob Crouoh, Eng. 8uq. 

j W w i e  0’- 

i 



TESTIFYING EXPERIENCE OF JAMES A. ROTHSCHILD 
THROUGH DECEMBER 31,1995 

ALABAMA 

Continental Telephone of the South; Docket No. 17968. Rate of Return, January, 1981 

ARIZONA 

Southwest Gas Corporation; Rate of Return. Docket No. U-1551-92-253, March. 1993 

Sun City West Utilities: Accounting. January. 1985 

COh3XCTICUT 

Connecticut American Water Company; Docket No. 800614, Rate of Return, September, 1980 

Connecticut Light 8; Power Company; Docket No. 85-10-22. Accountijgmd- 
February, 1986 

Connecticut Light 8; Power Cornpans Docket No. 88-04-28, Gas Divestiture. August, 1988 

Connecticut Natural Gas: Docket No. 780812. Accounting and Rate of Return, March, 1979 

.* 

Connecticut Natural Gas: Docker No. 830101, Rate ofRetum, March, 3983 

Connecticut Natural Gas: Docket No. 87-03-03, Rate of Return? March. 1987 

Connecticut Natural Gas. Docket No. 95-02-07. Rate of Return, June. 1995 

United Illuminating Company: Docket No. 89-08-1 1 :ES:BBM, Financial Integrity and Financial 
Projections, November. 1989. 

kOI#DA WBUC SERVICE COMMISSW 

DELAWARE w. OOcK& - EXHlBlT NO. -&. 
Artesian Water Company, Inc.; Rate of Return, December, 1986 

Artesian Water Company. Inc.: Docket Eo. 87-3. Rate of Return. August. 1987 

Diamond State Telephone Company: Docket No. 82-32, Rate of Return, November, 1982 

Diamond State Telephone Company; Docket No. 83-12, Rate of Return, October. 1983 



Wilmington Suburban Water Cornpan).; Rate of Return Report, September, 1986 

Wilmington Suburban Water Company; Docket No. 86-25, Rate of Return, February, 1987 

FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMlSSION (FERC) 

Maine Yankee Atomic Power Company. Docket No. EL93-22-000, Cost of Capital. Jul).. 1993 

New England Power Company; CM‘IP. February, 1984. Rate of return. 

New England Power Company; Docket No.ER88-630-000 & Docket No. ER88-63 1-000, Rate of 
Return. April. 1989 

New England Power Company; Docket Nos. ER89-582-000 and ER89-596-000. Rate of Return: 
January, 1990 

New England Power Cornpan),: Docket Nos. ER91-565-000. ER91-566-0011 ~ FASB 106. 
March. 1992. Rate of Return. 

Philadelphia Electric Company - Conowingo; Docket No. EL-80-557i588, July, 3983. Rate of 
Return. 

Ocean States Power Company. Ocean States I1 Power Cornpan)., Docket No. ER94-998-000 and 
ER94-999-000, Rate of Return. July,  1994. 

Ocean States Power Company, Ocean States I1 Power Company. Docket No ER 91-533-001 and 
Docket KO. ER-530-001, Rate of Return, June, 1995 and again in October, 3995. 

Southern Natural Gas. Docket KO. RP93-15-000. Rate of Return. Augusr. 1993, and revised 
testimony December, 1994. 

Transco. Docker No. RP95-197-000. Phase I ,  Augusr. 1995. Rate ofRerurn. 

FLORIDA 

Alltel of Florida: Docket No. 850064-TL, Accounting, September, 1985 

Florida Power & Light Company; Docket No. 8 10002-EU, Rate of Return, July, 198 1 

Florida Power & Light Company: Docket No. 82007-EU. Rate of Return. June. 1982 

Florida Power & Light Company; Docket No. 830465-El. Rate of Return and CWIP; March, 
1984 

Florida Power Corporation; Docket No. 830470-EI, Rate Phase-In, June, 1984 



Florida Power Corp.; Rate of Return, August. 1986 

Florida Power Corp.; Docket No. 870220-E1, Rate of Return, October, I987 

GTE Florida, Inc.; Docket No. 89021 6-TL, Rate of Return, July. 1989 

Gulf Power Company; Docket No. 810136-EU. Rate of Return, October. 1981 

Gulf Power Company: Docket No. 840086-El. Rate of Return, August, 1981 

Gulf Power Company; Docket No. 881 167-El. Rate of Return, I989 

Gulf Power Company: Docket No. 891 345-€I, Rate of Return. 1990 

Rollin_g Oaks Utilities. Inc.: Docket No. 850941-WS, Accounting. Octobe.. '1986 

Southern Bell Telephone Company Docket No. 880069-TL, Rate of Return., January, 1992 

Southern Bell Telephone Cornpan),, Docket No. 910260-TL. Rate of Return. November. 1992 

Southern Bell Telephone Company, Docket No. 90260-TI-. Rate of Return. :November, 1993 

Tampa Electric Company; Docket No. 820007-EU. Rate of Return, June, 1982 

Tampa Electric Company; Docket KO. 830012-EL;. Rare of Return. June, 1983 

United Telephone of Florida: Docket No. 891239-TL. Rate of Return, November. 1989 

United Telephone of Florida; Docket No. 891239-TL. Rate of Return, Aupust, 1990 

Water and Sewer Utilities. Docket KO 880006-WS. Rate of Return, February. 1988. 

GEORGL4 

Georgia Power Company Docket No. 3397-U. Accounting. July. I983 

ILLINOIS 

Central Illinois Public Service Company; ICC Docket No. 86-0256, Financial and Rate of 
Return. October. 1986. 

Central Telephone Company of Illinois. ICC Docket No. 93-0252. Rate of Return. October, 
1993. 

Commonwealth Edison Company; Docket No. 85CH10970. Financial Testimony. Ma?. 1986. 

... 
111 



Commonwealth Edison Cornpan?; Docket KO, 86-0249. Financial Testimony, October. 1986 

Commonwealth Edison Company ICC Docket No. 87-0057, Rate of Return and Income Taxes, 
April 3, 1987. 

Commonwealth Edison Company; ICC Docket No. 87-0043, Financial Testimony, April 27. 
1987. 

Commonwealth Edison Compan?.; ICC Docket Nos. 87-0169, 87-0477,88-01 89,880219,88-0253 
on Remand, Financial Planning Testimony, Aupst ,  1990. 

Commonwealth Edison Company; ICC Docket Nos. 91-747 and 91-748; Financial Affidavit, 
March, 199 1. 

Commonwealth Edison Company Financial Affidavit, December, 1991 

Commonwealth Edison Company, ICC Docket No. 87-0427. Et. AI.? 90-0169 (on Second 
Remand), Financial Testimony. August. 1992. 

GTE North. ICC Docket 93-030 1/94-004 I .  Cost of Capital. April. I994 

Illinois Power Company, Docket No. 92-0404, Creation of Subsidiary, April, 1993 

Illinois Bell Telephone Company, Dockets No. ICC 92-0448 and ICC -_, Rate of Return. 
July, 3993 

Northern lllinois Gas Company; Financial AffidaviS Februap. 1987. 

Northern Illinois Gas Company: Docket No. 87-0032, Cost of Capital and Accounting Issues. 
June. 1987. 

Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company; Docket No. 90-0007, Accounting Issues, May, 1990 

KENTUCKY 

Kentucky Power Company: Case No. 8429, Rate of Return. April, 1982 

Kentucky Power Company: Case No. 8734, Rate of Return and CWIP. June, 1983 

Kentucky Power Company; Case No. 9061, Rate of Return and Rate Base Issues, September, 
1984. 

West Kentucky Gas Company. Case No. 8227. Rate of Return. August, 198 1 

MAINE 

iv 



Bangor Hydro-Electric Company; Docket No. 81-136. Rate of Return. JanuaQ, 1982. 

Banpor Hydro-Electric Company: Docket KO. 93-62, Rate of Return, August, 1993 

Maine Public Service Company; Docket No. 90-281, Accounting and Rate of Return, April, 
1991. 

MARYLAXI 

C gL P Telephone Company Case No. 7591. Fair Value, December, 1981 

MASSACHUSETTS 

Boston Edison Company. Dockc, No. DPU 906. Rate of Return, December. 1981 

Fitchburg Gas gL Electric: Accounting and Finance, October, 1984 

Southbridge Water Company: M.D.P.U.. Rate of Return, September. I982 

MEWTSOTA 

Minnesota Power t3 Light Cornpan),: Docket No. EOIS/GR-80-76. Rate of Return. July. 1980 

%TU' JERSEY 

Atlantic Cit), Sewage: Docket No. 774-3 15: Rate of Return. Ma?.. 1977 

Atlantic City Electric Company. Docket Kos. ER 8809 1053 and ER 8809 1054. Rate of Return, 
April, 1990 

Elizabethtown Gas Company. BRC Docket No. GM93090390. Evaluation of proposed merger 
with Pennsylvania t3 Southern Gas Co. April. 1994 

Elizabethtown Water Company: Docket No. 781-6.Accounting, April. 1978 

Elizabethtown Water Cornpan).; Docket No. 802-76, Rate of Return, January, 1979 

Elizabethtown Water Company; Docket No. PUC 04416-90, BPU Docket No. WR90050497J, 
Rate of Return and Financial Integrity. November, 1990. 

Elizabethtown Vv;ater Company: Docket No.WR 9108 1293J. and PUC 08057-91N. Rate of 
Return and Financial Integrity, January, 1992. 

Elizabethtown Water Company, Docket No. WR 92070774J, and PUC 06173-92N, Rate of 
Return and Financial Integrity, January.: 1993. 
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Elizabethtowm Water Company, Docket No. BRC WR93010007, OAL No. PUC 2905-93, 
Regulator), treatement o f C W P .  Ma?. 1993. 

Essex County Transfer Stations; OAL Docket PUC 031 73-88, BPU Docket Nos. SE 87070552 
and SE 87070566. Rate of Return. October, 1989. 

Hackensack Water Company; Docket No. 776-455. October, 1977 and Accounting, February, 
1979 

Hackensack Water Company: Docket No. 787-847, Accounting and Interim Rate Relief. 
September, 1978 

Hackensack Water Compan!; AFUDC gL CWIP. June, 1979 

Hackensack Water Company: Docket No. 803-275. Rate of Return. Sepl.mber. 1980 

Hackensack Water Company; Docket No. 801 1-870, C W P ,  January, 1981 

Middlesex Water Cornpan!.: Docket No. 793-253. Tariff Design. September. 1978 

Middlesex Water Company; Docket No. 793-269. Rate of Return, June, 1979 

Middlesex Water Company Docket No. WR890302266-J> Accounting and Revenue Forecasting, 
July, 1989 

Middlesex Water Company; Docket No. R'R90080884-J. Accounting, Revenue Foresasting, and 
Rate of Return. February, 199 1 

Middlesex Water Company: Docket No. WR92070774-J, Rate of Return, January, 3993 

Mount Holly b'ater Company; Docket S o .  805-3 14, Rate of Return. August, 1980 

National Association of Water Companies: Tariff Design: 1977 

Kew Jsersy American Water Cornpa!.. BPC Docket KO. M'R9504. Rate of Return, September, 
1995 

New Jersey Bell Telephone; Docket No. 771 1-1047, Tariff Design, September, 1978 

New Jersey Land Title Insurance Companies, Rate of Return and Accounting, August and 
November, 1985 

New Jersey Natural Gas: Docket No. 7811-1681. Rate of Return. April. 19?9 

New Jersey Water Supply Authoritv, Ratemaking Issues, February, 1995 

Nuclear Performance Standards: BPU Docket No. EX89080719. Nuclear Performance Standards 
policy testimony. 
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Rockland Electric Company; Docket No. 795-413. Rate of Return, October, 1979 

South Jersey Gas Company; Docket No. 769-988, Accounting, February, 1977 

South Jersey Gas Company. BRC Docket No. GU94010002, June, 1994 

United Artists Cablevision: Docket No. CTV-9924- 83, Rate of Return. April, 1984 

West Keansburg Water Company: Docket No. 838-737. Rate of Return, December. 1983 

NEW YORK 

Consolidated Edison Compan); Case No.27353, Accounting and Rate of Return, October, 1978 

Consolidated Edison Company; Case No. 27744, Accounting and Rate of Return, August 1980 

Generic Financing Case for Electric & Gas Companies; Case No. 27679. May. 1981 

Long Island Lighting Company; Case No. 27136, Accounting and Rate of Return, June, 1977 

Long Island Lighting Company: Case No. 27774, Rate of Return. November: I980 

Long Island Lighting Compan); Case No. 281 76 and 281 77, Rate of Return and Re\-enue 
Forecasting, June. 19S2 

Long Island Lighting Company, Case No. 78553, Rate of Return and Finance, March? 1984 

Long Island Lighting Company. Case No. 93-E-1 123, Rate of Return and Finance, Ma)., 1994 

Nen York Telephone, Case No. 27469, April, 1979 

New York Telephone, Case No. 27710, Accounting, September, 1981 

OHIO 

Columbia Gas Company of Ohio: Case No. 77-1428-GA-AIR, March, 1979 

Columbia Gas Company of Ohio; Case KO. 78- 1 1  18-GA-AIR Accounting and Rate of Return, 
May, 1979 

Ohio Utilities Company: Case No. 78-14?1-WS-AIR. Rate of Return. September. 1979 

OKLAHOMA 

Oklahoma Natural Gas Company. Case PUD No. 94000047, Rate of Return. May. I995 
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PEhW3’LVAh’lA 

Allied Gas. Et. AI.. Docket No. R-932952, Rate of Return, May. 1994 

ATTCOM - Pennsylvania; Docket No. P-830452, Rate of Return, April, 1984 

Bethel and Mt. Aerna Telephone Company: Docker ?io. LR-770090152, Acc,ounring and Rate of 
Return. January. 1978 

Big Run Telephone Company Docket No. R-79100968, Accounting and Rate of Return. 
November, 1980. 

Bloomsburg Water Company; Docket Nos. R-912064 and R-912064C001-CO03. Rate of Return, 
December, 199 I .  

Citizens Utilities \‘,later Company of Pennsylvania and Citizens Utilities Home Water Company: 
Docker No, R-903663 and R-901663, Rate of Return. September. 1990 

Citizens Utilities Water Company of Pennsylvania, Docket No. R-00953300. Rate of Retum, 
September. 1995 

City of Bethlehem, Bureau of Water, Docket No. R-943124, Rate of Return: October, 1994 

Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania; Docket No. R-78120724. Rate of Return, May, 1979 

Dallas \Vater Co.. Harvey’s Lake Water Co. Noxen Water Co.. Inc. & Shavertown Water Co. 
Inc.. Docket Nos R-922326, R-922327, R-922328- R-922329. Rate of Return. September, 1992 

Dauphin Consolidated Water Company; Docket No, R-780-50616. Rare of Return. August. 1978 

Dauphin Consolidated Water Company; Docket No. R-860350, Rate of Return, July, 1986 

Dauphin Consolidared \Vater Company: Docket No. R-912000. Rate of Return. September. 1991 

Duquesne Light Company: Docket No. RlD-373. Accounting and Rate of Return 

Duquesne Light Compan?; Docket No. R-80011069, Accounting and Rate of Return. June. 1979 

Duquesne Light Company; Docket No. R-821945, Rate of Return, August, 1982 

Duquesne Light Company: Docket No. R-850021. Rate ofReturn. August. 1985 

Equitable Gas Company: Docket No. R-780040598, Rate of Return. September. 1978 

General Telephone Company of Pennsylvania; Docket No. R-8 1 I5 12. Rate of Return 
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Mechanicsburg Water Company; Docket No. R-91 1946; Rate of Return. JUT).. 1991 

Mechanicaburg Water Company. Docket No. R-92502. Rate of Return, Februav. I993 

Metropolitan Edison and Pennsylvania Electric Company; Rate of Return, December, 1980 

National Fuel Gas Company; Docker No. R-771105 14, Rate of Return. September. 1978 

Kational Fuel Gas Company. Docket No. R-953299, Rate of Return. June. 1995 

North Penn Gas Company. Docket No. R-922276, Rate of Return, September, 1992 

North Penn Gas Company. Docket No. R-00943245. Rate of Return, May, 1995 

Pennsylvania American Water Company. Docket R-922428. Rate of Return, October. I992 

Pennsylvania Electric Company Rate of Return, September, 1980 

Pennsylvania Gas & Water Company, Docket KO. R-80071265. Accounting and Rate of Return 

Pennsylvania Gas & Water Company: Docket No. R-78040597, Rate of Return, August. 1978 

Pennsylvania Gas& Water Company Docket KO. R-911966; Rate of Return. August. 1991 

Pennsylvania Gas 8; Water Company, Docket No, R-922404; Rate of Return. October. 1992 

Pennsylvania Gas& Water Company; Docket No. R-922482; Rare of Rerurn. January. 1993 

Pennsylvania Gas& W;ater Company: Docket No. R-952665; Rate of Return: Jul: I 1993 

Pennsylvania Power Company; Docket No. R-78040599. Accounting and Rate of Return, May. 
I978 

Pennsylvania Power Company; Docket No. R-SI 15 10, Accounting, August, 1981 

Pennsylvania P o ~ e r  Cornpan!.: Case KO. 82191 E .  Rate of Return. Jul!. 1982 

Pennsylvania Power gL Light Company: Docket No. R-80031114. Accounting and Rate of 
Return 

Pennsylvania Power & Light Company: Docket KO. R-822 169, Rate of Return, March. 1983 

Peoples Natural Gas Company; Docket No. R-78010545. Rate of Return: August. 1978 

Philadelphia Electric Cornpan).: Docket No. R-850152. Rate of Return. January. 1986 

Philadelphia Suburban Water Company; Docket No. R-79040824, Rate of Return. September. 
1979 
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Philadelphia Suburban Water Cornpan!,: Docket KO. R-842592. Rate of Return. July. 1984 

Philadelphia Suburban Water Company: Docket No. R-911892. Rate of Return. May, 1991 

Philadelphia Suburban Water Company, Docket No. R-00922476, Rate of Return, March, 1993 

Philadelphia Suburban Water Company, Docket No. R-932868, Rate of Return, April, 1994 

Philadelphia Suburban Water Company. Docket No. R-00953343. Rate of Return. August. 1995 

Roaring Creek Water Company, Docket No. R-911963: Rate of Return, August, 1991 

Roaring Creek Water Company, Docket No. R-00932665. Rate of Return, September. 1993 

Sewer Authority of the Cir). of Scranton: Financial Testimony, March. 1991 

UGI Luzerne Electric: Docket KO. R-78030572. Accounting and Rate of Return, October, 1978 

West Penn Power. Docket No. R-78100685, July, 1979 

West Penn Power; Docket No. R-80021082. Accounting and Rate of Return 

Williamsport vs. Borough of S. Williamsport re Sewage Rate Dispute 

York Water Company, Docket No. R-850268, Rate of Return, June, 1986 

York Water Company, Docket No. R-922168, Rate of Return, June, 1992 

RHODE ISLAND 

Blackstone Valley Electric Company; Rate of Return, February, 1980 

Blackstone Valley Electric Company; Docket No. 1605, Rate of Return, February, 1982 

Blackstone Valley Electric Company, Docket No. 2016. Rate of Return. October. 1991 

Block Island Power Company: Docket No. 1998, Interim Relief. Oral testimony only. March. 
1991, Permanent relief accounting testimony, August, 1991 

Bristol Br Warren Gas Company: Docket No. 1395: Rate of Return, February. 1980 

Bristol Br Warren Gas Company; Docket No. 139% Rate of Return, June, 1982 

FAS 106 Generic Hearing: Docket No. 2045. Financial Testimony. July. 1992 

Narragansett Electric Corporation; Docket No. 1591, Accounting, November. 19s 1 

Narragansett Electric Corporation; Docket No. 1719, Rate of Return. December, 1983 
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Narragansett Electric Corporation: Docket No. 1938. Rate of Return, October, 1989. 

Narraganesn Electric Corporation; Docket No. 1976, Rate of Return, October, 1990 

Newport Electric corporation: Docket No. 141 0, Accounting, July, 1979 

Newport Electric Corporation: Docket No. 15 IO. Rate of Return 

Newpon Electric Corporation: Docket No. 1801. Rate of Return. June. 1985 

Newport Electric Corporation; Docket 2036, Rate of Return, April. 1992 

Providence Gas Company: Docket No. 1971. Rate of Return, October. 1990 

Providence Gas Cornpan!,. Lhcket No. 2286. Rate of Return, Ma),, 1995 

South County Gas Company. Docket No. 1854. Rate of Return, December, 1986 

Valley Gas and Bristol gL N'arren Gas Co.. Docket No. 2276, April. 1995 

Wakefield Water Company, Docket No. 1734, Rate of Return, April, 1984 

SOUTH CAROLm'A 

Small Power Producers 6: Cogeneration Facilities: Docket KO. 80-25 1 -E. Cogeneration Rates. 
August. 1984 

South Carolina Electric & Gas Company: Docket No. 79-1 96E. 79-1 97-G. Accounting. 
November, 1979 

VERMONT 

Green Mountain Power Company. Docket KO. 4570. Accounting. July, 1962 

Neu. England Telephone Company; Docket No. 380614033, Accounting, November, 1979 

New England Telephone Cornpans Docket No. 4366, Accounting 

WASHlh'GTON, D.C. 

Bell Atlantic- DC. Formal Case KO. 614. Phase IV. Rate of Return. September. 1995 

Chesapeake and Potomac Telephone Company; Formal Case No. 850; Rate of Return. July, 
1991. 
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Chesapeake and Potomac Telephone Company. Formal Case No. 8 14-Phase 111. Financial Issues. 
October, 1992. 

Chesapeake and Potomac Telephone Company, Formal Case 926, Rate of Return, July, 1993. 

PEPCO; Formal Case No. 889, Rate of Return, January, 1990. 

PEPCO: Formal Case No. 905, Rate of Return, June, 1991. 

PEPC0:Formal Case No. 912, Rate of Return. March. 1992. 

PEPCO: Formal Case No. 929. Rate of Return, October, 1993. 

Washington Gas Light Company. Case No. 922, Rate of Return. April. 1993. 

M'ashington Gas Light Company. Case No. 934, Rate of Return. April, 1994. 

OTHER 

Railroad Cost of Capital. Ex Parte No. 436. Rate of Return. Januar? 17, 19S3 (Submitted to the 
Interstate Commerce Commission) 

Repon on the Valuation of Kernours Corporation. filed on behalf of IRS. October. 1983 
(Submitted to Tax Court) 
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OCOE 

Sch. JAR I 

Overall Summary of Cost of Equity Recommendation 

Water Companies 

Gas Distribution Companies 

Average of Gas and Water 

Cost of Equity 
Recommendation Source 

9.85% Sch. JAR 2. P. 1 

10.35% 

10.10% 

Sch. JAR 2, P. 2 



Occwb 

Sch. JAR 2. P. 1 

Simplified DCF, or DIP + g Results 

Complex DCF. or two-stage DCF results 

Risk Premium 

CAPM 

WaIer Utililies 
COST OF EQUITY SUMMARY 

Based Upon 
Average for Year 

nded12/31//95Stock Prices 

9.52% 

10.59% 

Based Upon 
Stock Prices on 

12/31/95 

9.25% in1 

10.21% ic1 

9.76% [Dl 

8.12% [El 

Recommended Equity Cost Rate 9.75% 

Capital Structure Risk Adjustment [F] O.lOoA 

9.85% Cosl of equity net of tax effect 

Source: 
[A] Sch. JAR 4.P. 1 

[E] Sch JAR 5. P 1 
IC] Sch. JAR 5 .  P 2 

[O] Sch. JAR 8. P. 1 
[E] Sch. JAR 9. P. 1 
[F[ Based upon difference between company requiested capital structure and industry average capital StruCUlIe 

as shown on Sch. JAR 11. P. 1 
Cosl difference due to capital structure change is based upon results of analysis as shown on Sch. JAR 12. 
which indicates a ws t  of equity change of about 0.035% for each 1% change in the level of 



Simplified DCF. or DIP + g Resulls 

Complex DCF. or two-stage DCF resulls 

Risk Premium Resull 

CAPM Resull 

Occg, 

Sch. JAR 2. P. 2 

NATURAL GAS COMPANIES 
COST OF EQUITY SUMMARY 

Based Upon 
Average lor Year 

Ended 12/31/95 Stock Prices 

9.95% IAl 

10.72% IBI 

Based Upon 
Slack Prices on 

1213 1 I95 

9.77% IAl 

10.29% IC1 

10.17% ID1 

7.67% 19 

Equily Cost rale Using Average of Comparalive Group Capilal Slruclure 10.00% 
Eslimaled Adjuslmenl lor Capilal Slruclure Risk Change IF] 0.35'A 
Recommended Eduily Cos1 Rale 10.35% 

Source: 
.\ 

I 
[A] Sch. JAR 4, P 2 
[B] Sch. JAR 5. P. 3 
[C] Scii. JAR 5. P. 4 

[Dl Sch. JAR 8. P. 2 
[FI Based upon difference belween company requiesled capilal slruclure and indusky average capilal slruculre 

as shown on Sch. JAR 1 1 ,  P. 2. 
Cost diflerence due Io capilal slruclure change is based upon resulls of analysis as shown on Sch. JAR 12. 
which indicates a cos1 01 equily change of aboul 0.035% lor each 1% change in Ihe level 01 

common equily in (he capilal slruclure. 



OCCW'. 

FINANCIAL DATA ON 
MINNESOTA POWER & LIGHT GO. 

Sch. JAR 3 

YTD AT 
Ocl-95 OCl-95 

1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 
Market Price- Hlgh $2650 $2760 $2740 $3250 $3500 $3650 $3300 $28 60 
Market Price- Low $21 00 $2290 $2230 $2600 $2960 $3000 $2480 $24 30 

Average $2485 $2925 $3230 $3325 $2890 $2645 $2900 

Book Value, Y E  
Book Value, Avg. 

Earnings Per Share 
Dividends Per Share 

Dividend Yield 

Return on Equity 
Market-to-Book 

$16.86 $17.46 $16.36 $16.02 $16.58 $18.03 $17.98 
$17.16 $16.91 $16.19 $16.30 $17.31 $1801 

$2.35 $2.01 $2.00 $2.19 $2.31 $2.20 $1.64 
$1.72 $1.78 $1.86 $1.90 $1.94 $1.98 $2.02 

$18.35 $18.35 [A] 

$2.04 $2.04 

7.48% 6.50% 6.01% 5.95% 6.99% 7.71% 7.03% 

11.71% 11.83% 13.53% 14.17% 12.71% 9.11% 
1.47 1.81 1.98 1.92 1 6 1  

Source: Value Line. 
Value Line future expected return on book equity = 14.50% 

1.44 1.58 

[A] Value Line Est. for 12/95 



BASED ON AVERAGE 


MARKET PRICE 


FOR 


Velr Ending 12131195 


1 Dividend Yield On Marl<et Price 

2 Retention Ratio' 

a) Marl<et-to-book 

b) Div. Ylo on Book 

c) Return on Equity 

dJ Retention Rate 

3 Reinvestment Growth 

4 New Financing GroW1t1 

5 Total Estimate Of Investor 

Anticipated Growth 

6 	Increment to DiVidend Yield 

for Growth to Next Year 

7 Indicated Cost 01 Equity 

DCF 

\/Ilue Line Wlter Companies Sch. JAR <I.P. 1 

DISCOUNTED CASH FLOW IDCF) INDICATED COST OF EQUITY 

BASED UPON 


MARKET PRICE 


AS OF 


12131195 

5.95% 

1.46 

8.68% 

11.25% 

22.82% 

2.57% 

0.63% 

3.20% 

0.10% 

9.25% 

IB] 

IB] 

IC] 

IA] 

[0] 

6.21% 

1.38 

8.56% 

11.25% 

23.88% 

[E] 

[F] 

(G) 

[H) 

[lJ 

2.69% 

0.52% 

3.21% 

0.10% 

9.52% 

Some 01 the ConSiderations for detennining Future Expected Retum on Equity: 

Source: 

Value Line Expectatior, 	 11.75% Seh. JAR 6. P. 

Expectation Derived from Zaek's Consensus GrOwth Rate 	 11.39% 5th. JAR 6, P. 2 

Earned Return on EQUity in 1995 	 10.15% Sen JAR 6, P 1 

Earned Return on Equity in 1994 	 10.47% Sch. JAR 6. P. 2 

For reCOmmended expectation. see text. 

Other Sources: 

IB] 	 Seh. JAR 6. P 1 and 
Sch. JAR 6. P. 2 

IC] 	 Line 1 x Line 2a 
[OJ 	 1- Line 2b/Line 2c 
IE] 	 Line 2c x Line 2d 
IF] 	 Estimated irnpad of dilution or premium due to sale of equity at other than book value. Computed based upon 

mathematically derived result based upon the histOrical external financing rate. 
IMIB X (Ext. Fin Rate+1J1(M/B + Ext. Fin. Rate-1) Ext. Fin. rate used = 1.<10% IJ] 

[G] Line 3 + Line 4 
[H) Line 1 x one-ha If of Itne 5 
[I; Line 1 .. Line 5 .. LIne 6 
Pl Sch. JAR 10. P. 1 

-~'---_._--------­



Occgas 

Sch. JAR 4, P 2 VALUE LINE GAS COMPANIES 
DISCOUNTED CASH FLOW (OCF) INDICATED COST OF EQUITY 

BASED ON AVERAGE BASED UPON 

MARKET PRICE MARKET PRICE 

FOR AS OF 

DK 1995YTD 12131195 

1 Dividend Yield On Market Pnce [El 5 80% 5 30% 

2 Retention Ratio 

a) Markel-10-MDk I61 150 172 

b) Div Yld on Bmk IC1 9 15% 9 13% 

c )  Return on Euvify IAI 12 00% 12 00% 

d) Relention Rate ID1 23 71% 23 90% 

3 Reinvestment Gmwth IF1 2 85% 2 07% 

4 New Finanong Gmwth IF1 119% 149% 

5 Total Estimate of Inverto’ I(;! 4 04% 4 35% 

Anbclpated Growth 

6 Increment 10 Dtadend Yield It{! 0.12% 

tor Growth to Next Year 

0 12% 

7 Indicated Cos1 01 Equity @ I  9.95% 9.77% 

Some of the Conridanbons for determining Fyture Expected Return on Equity: 

[A] Value Line Expectation 
Expectauon Denved horn Zad‘r Consensus Growth Rate 
Earned Return on Euuiw cn 
Earned Return on Euuw in 

1995 
1994 

Source 

12 23% SCh JAR 7 P 1 
1239% Sch JAR7 P 2 
7057% Sch JAR7 P 2 
11 01% Sch JAR7 P 2 

FOI recommended exwnation see texi 

m e r  source*: 

[E) SCh JAR 7. P 1 and 

[C] Line 1 x Line 28 
(D] 1- Line ZblLine 2c 
[El Line 2c x Line 2d 
IF! Estimated impan of diiutmn or werniurn due 10 sale of equity a1 other than M D X  Value. Computed based uwn 

mmhcmalicalh. dcdved msult based upan the hi610dcaI enema1 finantinp rate. 
[Mls X (Exl Fin Rate*t]l(MlB f En Fin. Rate-I:# 
Line 3 6 Line 4 

Line 1 * Line 5 * Line 6 
Sch JAR 10 P. 2 

Sch. JAR 7, P. 2 

EIt. Fin. rate used = 2.10% [J] 

[GI 

(I! 
IJ] 

(HI Line 1 x Onchalf of lhne 5 2 10% 
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COMPARATIVE WATER COMPANIES 
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

WATER COMPANIES AND DIVERSIFIED WATER COMPANIES COVERED BY VALUE LINE: 

Sch. JAR 6, P. 1 

161 171 I81 191 I l O I  1111 1121 
Dividend Yield Markel Price Market to Book 

131 141 151 
Book Book 

Ill 
Book Book 

Per Sh. Per Sh. Per Sh. Per Sh. AI Hlqh lor Low lor At AV(I. AI Av9. 
Dec. 92 Dec. 93 Dec. 34 Dec. 95 Dec-95 Fear Year Dec-95 lor ~ e c - 9 5  10; Div. 

IN In1 14 IAI IC1 IC1 IC1 ID1 PI  IC1 IEI IEI 
Year Rale Year 

American Waler Works $19.64 $20.97 $22.46 $23.75 E $38.88 $38.13 $26.75 1.64 1.40 $1.28 3.29X 3.95% 
Aquafion Co. $16.28 $16.83 $17.21 $17.25 E $25.50 $26.00 $21.63 1.48 1.38 $1 62 6.35% 6.80% 
California Waler Service $21.02 121.80 $23.12 $23.35 E $32.75 $35.25 $29.63 1.40 1.40 $2.04 6.23% 6.29% 
Consumers Water $11.82 $12.06 $12.22 512.50 E $18.25 $19.00 $14.50 1.46 1.36 $1.20 6.58% 7 16% 
Philadelphia Suburban Corp. 110.88 111.92 512.53 f 1 2 . 3 5 E  $20.75 $21.50 $17.38 1.68 1.56 $1.16 5.59% 597% 
Uniled Waler Resources $9.55 $10.00 $ l i . i i  510.35E S12.3C $14.!3 $11.75 !.IC! !.I7 $092 7~67% 7.11% 

AVERAGE $1487 $1560 $1645 $1669 124fi9 $2567 $2027 I 146  1 3 8 1  $137 I 595% 6 2 l % 1  



COMPARATIVE W A l t R  COMPANIES 
EARWNCS PER S l l l P E 1 ~ 0 R F l O R N O N ~ O U l I Y  

WATER COMPANIES AND DIVERSIFIED WATER COMPANIES COVERED BY VALUE LINE: 
111 121 

EPS EPS 
1994 1995 

IN 1 4  
American Waler Works 
Aquarion Co 
California Waler Service 
Consumers Water 
Philadelphia Suburban COT 
ilniied Water iiesources 

Average 

Sch. JAR 8, P. 2 

131 141 
Return Value Line 
on Eq. Future Exp. 
1995 Return on Eq. 

161 IA1 
11/10/95 

Relurn on 
Equity 
1994 

$2.34 12.50 E 10.82% 10.50% 10.78% 
11.87 $1.70 E 9.87% 14.50% 10.99% 
162.44 $230 E 9.90% I f  00% 10.86% 
$1.17 $1.30 E 10.52% 10.50% 9.64% 
$1.35 $1.45 E 11.66% 12.50% 11.04% 
5:.3: sc.90 E 5.14% ! ! S O %  IlW% 

$1.70 $1.69 I 10.15% 11.75% 10.47% 



-. . . .- . , .. _. . ..'_~_ 
....,*I * . - -  .. 

American Water Works 
Aquarion Co. 
California Waler Service 
Consumers Waler 
Philadelphia Suburban Corp 
United Water Resources 

OCChdt  

RETURN ON EQUIlY IMPLIED IN 
mCKS CONSENSUS GROWTH RATES 

Dec. 94 
Y/E 
Book 

131 

$22.46 
$17.21 
$23.12 
$12.22 
$12.53 
111.:: 

Earnings Dividends Zacks YIE Book 
1994 Consensus in 

5 Year 1998 
Growth Rate a1 Zack's 

11/30/95 Growth 

$2.31 51.28 5.80% 527.35 
$1.87 $1.62 1.00% $18.31 
52.44 $2.04 3.00% $24.84 
$1.17 11.20 4.00% $12.09 
11.35 $1.16 3.60% $13.36 
$:.O: $0.92 2.70% $11.55 

3.85% 

Sch. JAR 6, P. 1 

VIE Book Earnings Relum on 
in 1999 Equity 

a1 loachieve 
alZack's Zadc's Zack's 
Growlh Growth Growth 

$28.76 $3.10 11.06% 
$18.62 $2.28 12.32% 
$25.31 $2.83 11.28% 
$12.05 $1.42 11.79% 
$13.59 $1.61 11.96% 
$11.65 '61.15 9~94% 

11.39% 

1999 



OCC!j“S 

COMPARATIVE GAS COMPANIES 
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

Sch. JAR 7, P. 1 

GAS COMPANIES COVERED BY VALUE LINE 
(11 I21 

Book 
Per Sh 

YIE 1992 

PI 

Allanla Gar Lighl 
A l m ~  Enelgy Corp 
Bay Slate Gar Co 
Brwklyn Union Gar 
Cascade Natural Gar 
Connedb l  Energy 
Conneclicul Nalurai Gar 
Energen Carp 
Indiana Energy, IIX 
Laclede Gas Company 
MCN Corporalion 
NU1 CNP. 
New Jersey Resources 
NICOR 
Nwlhwerl Nal. Gas CO 
ONEOK. Inc 
Pacific Enleiprises Coip 
PmWs Energy Carp 
Piedmont Nalural Gas 
Providence Energy Carp. 
Soulh Jersey Indurlnes. IK. 
Soulhwesl Gas Corp. 
UGI 
Washinglm Energy 
WashingIan Gar 
WICOR. Inc 

19 70 
$9 17 
$14 90 
$14 55 
$9 09 

11760 
$13 2G 
112 75 
110 22 
$11 79 
$7 44 

$14 55 
$14 16 
$12 76 
$16 62 
11326 
$9 44  

$17 72 
$10 27 
$12 02 
$13 90 
$1599 
$12 97 
$1368 
11067 
11591 

AVERAGE 112 76 

131 
Bo& 

Per Sh 
YIE 1993 

PI 

19 90 
$9 64 
115 52 
115 54 
19 96 
113 33 
114 29 
11380 
111 52 
112 19 
$7 97 
$14 92 
114 72 
11305 
11982 
11383 
112 19 
$1602 
$1090 
$13 37 
$1433 
11596 
11300 
51385 
$11 04 
$1647 

$1341 

Book 
Per SI? 

YIE 1994 

14 

$10 19 
$9 78 
$16 20 
116 27 
19 64 
114 45 
S I 4  62 
$1530 
$1203 
$1244 
18 55 
$15 59 
11446 
11326 
$20 44  
113 88 
11474 
118 39 
$11 36 
$1382 
11446 
11531 
$13 13 

111 51 
$17 23 

$1083 

$13 77 

141 

Book YIE 
YIE 1995 

In1 

110 13 

$10 95 
$16 47 
116 85 
$9 85 
$14 64 
$15 I? 

11593 
11244 
11300 
19 65 
11590 
1 1 4  55 
$1365 
$21 70 
114 36 
$1520 
$1840 
11230 
$1385 
114 50 
$15 60 
$11 50 
16 15 

$11 95 
118 80 

11406 

E 

E 
E 

E 
E 
E 

E 
E 

E 

E 
E 
E 
F 
E 
E 

E 
E 
E 

Dec 1995 

PI 

$19 75 
123 00 
$27 75 
129 25 
$1600 
127 25 
$ 7 1  18 
174 13 
123 68 
121 25 
$23 25 
117 50 
130 13 
127 50 
$33 00 
122 88 
128 25 
$31 75 
$23 25 
$17 00 
123 13 
$17 63 
120 75 
118 63 
$20 50 
132 25 

123 77 

1995 

IRI 

$20 00 
$23 00 
$29 50 
$29 63 
117 50 
172 50 
175 25 
125 13 
174 13 
123 13 
$73 50 
11775 
$30 00 
$28 50 
134 25 
$24 61 
$26 63 
132 00 
$24 66 
$I7 50 
$23 50 
$1838 
122 13 
$19 13 
522 36 
132 86 

$24 61 

1995 

IBI 

$14 68 

115 68 
$22 25 
122 w 
113 00 
$18 50 
$21 25 
120 13 
11763 
$18 38 
116 38 
$1400 
121 50 
121 75 
127 50 
117 13 
$20 75 
$24 25 
116 25 
11463 
117 88 
11363 
$1688 
11263 
116 I3 
$26 63 

118 bll 

Oec 1995 for 

IC1 

195 

2 10 
168 
1 7 4  

161 
I M  
I 55 
1 5 1  

192 
163 
235 
110 
107 
201 

I 52 
I 59 
t f f i  
I 7 3  

I 89 
1 23 
I 59 
1 1 1  
1 0 0  

2 29 
1 7 2  

172 

1995 YTD 
IC1 

172 
188 

1 %  

1 5 6  

1 55 
1 40 

1 5 6  
I45  

1 7 1  

163 

2 17 
101 
1 78 
1 87 
1 4 7  
I 48 

165 
1 53 

1 82 
1 I6 
1 4 3  

103 
1 %  
167 

164 
165 

I 172  158 I 

Di“ 
Rale 
PI 

11.08 
$0 96 
$1 50 
11.42 
$0 98 
$1.30 
$1 48 
11.16 
11.10 
$1.26 
$0 93 
10.90 
11.52 
$1.28 
11.80 
11.16 
11.38 
$1.80 
11.10 
11 08 
$1.44 
$0.82 
11.40 
1 l . W  
$1.12 
11.64 

11.25 

Dec 1995 

ID1 

537X 
4I7X 
5.1% 

4 85% 

8 mu 
5 edx 
8 33X 
48lX 
46 lX  

5 93X 
4 00% 
5 14X 

5 05X 

5 45% 
5 07% 
481U 

587X 
4 73u 
6 35U 
6 23% 
4 65U 

6 75X 
537X 
5 46% 
5 09% 

4 65% 

10, 
YTO 
P I  

6 OB% 

4 W”h 
5 BOY 
53x4 

6 30% 
6 34% 
6 3 r ~  
5 1% 

5 27% 
6 07% 
4 65u 
567% 

5 9 o x  
5 m  
5 83% 
5 53% 

551X 

6 40% 

5 10% 

6 72% 
8 nu 
5 13% 
6 83X 

6 30% 
5 82% 
551n 

r 5.30% 30’. 

Sources IAl MOSI CUrlenl Value Line al lime of prep 01 sch. 

[B] Most curlenl Value Line a1 lime of prep 01 sch 

[C] Markel Price Divided by Book Value 

[DI Dividend Rale Divided by Markel Price 



OCLJdS 

GAS COMPANIES COVERED BY VALUE LINE: 

COMPARATIVE GAS COMPANIES 
EARNINGS PER SHARE AND RETURN ON EQUITY 

Average 

111 
EPS 
1994 

IN 

$1 17 

$0 97 
$1 85 
$1 85 
$0 60 
$ 1  58 
$1 65 
$2 01 
$1 53 
$ 1  42 
$1 31 
$1 25 
S I  89 
$2 07 
$2 44 
$1 34 
$I 95 
$2 13 
$1 35 
$1 46 
$127 
$1 22 
$1 17 
($0 16) 
$1 42 
$2 09  

$1.50 

Sch. JAR 7, P. 2 

121 131 141 
EPS Relurn Value Line Return on 
1995 an Eq Fulure Exp E q W  

1995 Return on Eq 1994 
12/29/95 

IAl 101 IN 

$1.33 
$1 22 
$ 1  71 
$ 1  90 
$ 0 8 5  E 
$1 60 
$ 1  52 
$1 7 1  
$1 46 
$1 27 
$I 4 0  
$ 1  11 
$1 93 
$1 95 
$2 35 
$1 58 
$ 2 1 0  E 

$1 4s 
1 1  09 
$160 E 

$1 7s 

$ 0 7 5  E 
$0 52 
so 35 
$1 45 
1 2 2 5  E 

1309% 

11 77% 
1047% 

1147% 

8 63% 
1093% 
1072% 
1, Y X  
11 93% 
9 98% 

1571% 
7 05% 
1331% 
14 49% 
11 15% 
11 18% 

1403% 
9 68% 
1126% 
7 88% 
11 M U  
4 87% 

4 71% 
3 69% 
1136% 
1249% 

1300% 
1 I  00% 
1200% 

11 W% 
11 50% 
11 00% 
1250% 
lirni 
14 50% 
11 W% 

( 3  00% 
9 W h  
1 4 0 0 %  

15 50% 
1200% 

1 1  50% 
13 50% 

I3 00% 
11 W h  
11 00% 
1 2 0 0 %  
8 00% 
12 00% 
15 50% 

11 50% 

11 50% 

1 1 65% 

9 99% 

1166% 
1 163% 

6 C6% 
I 1  38% 

1 2 M X  
1391% 
(169% 
11 53% 
15 85% 
8 19% 
1295% 
15 74% 
17 18% 
9 74% 

14 48% 
11 7m 
12 13% 

1074% 
n 41% 
7 80% 
n 96% 
-I 30% 
1255% 
1240% 

$ 1  47 1 1057"h 12 23% 11 01% I 

(AI Value Line 

181 Earnmgr Per Sliarc divded by average book value Bmk value Shown on 
Sch JAR 7. P 1 



RETURN ON EQUITY IMPLIED IN 
ZACH'S CONSENSUS GROW111 RATES 

Sch. JAR 1. P. 3 

1994 
YIE 

flmk 
141 

Ear"1"gJ 
1994 

I1 I 7  

a097 
SI 85 
S1 65 

so 53 
S I  58 

S I  85 
S Z O I  
11  53 
$I 4 2  

S I  31 

a i  25 
a i  89 

17 07 
17 44 

Sl3.1 

I2 13 

SI 35 
11 4G 

st 21 
11 72 
SI 17 

IS0 16) 

1 2  09 

a i  95 

a i  47 

Dividends 

I1 06 

a096 
a i  50 
a i  42 

a i  XI 
a096 

I1 48 
11 16 
$ 1  I O  

f l  xi 
$0 93 
$0 90 

$I 28 

s18O 
S I  16 

a1 52 

a i  K 
a i  80 
S I  10 
S1 08 
SI 44 

Y) 67 
S I  40 
SI 00 
S l  I 1  

SI 64 

ZaChS 
CWW"*"* 

5 Year 
Giowlh Rale 

1113Ol95 

4 53% 

6 00% 
4 40% 

4 XI% 
5 Bo% 
4 60% 

3 I O U  
5 53% 

5 10% 

3 50% 
8 70% 

4 10% 

4 80% 
4 20% 

4 90% 
6 50% 
4 53% 

3 10% 
5 90% 
4 5 0 %  
4 00% 
1 BO% 
9 50% 

4 50% 
3 70% 
8 70% 

5 14% 

YIF Bwk 

1997 
al Zacks 
Growth 

$1069 

19 83 

I18 18 

an 18 

0" 

a i l  76 

a1570 
a m i 2  
a1920 
SI398 
SI3 14 

51043 
117 14 

ai6 13 
ai6 77 
a n  33 
a14 72 
a17 38 
SI982 
S I 2  51 
11552 
11144  

S I 1  97 
IS 64 

ai7 II 

aiiw 
11946 

Y E  Book Earnings 
1999 in 

1998 
Sf Zacks 
G r M h  

aiouz 
a9 84 

a i 8 u  
a7 70 

118 20 

11605 
11665 
S2O 32 
a i 4 u  

SI333  
11101 

a1757 
11659 
117 74 

124 I 4  

SI497 

I20 lo 
11185 

SI3 16 

11161 
s4 20 

a1012 

a i 5 9 9  

a1762 

a13 cn 
a20 14 

Rehlin on 
E q W  

lo achieve 
Zach s 
G r M h  

I 3  75% 

13m 
1276% 
11MX 
1001% 
1246% 
1311% 
1333% 
1376% 
1274% 
18 55% 
881% 
1453% 
1414% 

1306% 
12 36% 
1375% 
12 1Du 
I 4  48% 

11 55% 
1107% 
8 88% 
1562% 
4 05% 
1 3 0 7 ~  
1602% 

1L.JY"h 

Projeded relurn on equily is oblained by encalaling both dividends and earnings per share by the 

slatcd gravlh We. and adding earnings and arblracling 
dividends in each year lo determine Ihe book value 



Occwat 

Summary of Risk Premium Equations 
Electric Industry Analysis Applied to  
Water. Companies 
Interest Rates on 10/31/95 

Equation based on 30 Year Treasury Rat8 

Cost of Equity = 1.331 X Interest Rate + 3 9  X Ext. Fin.Rate - 0.24% 

Interest Rate= 
Interest Rate X 

Ext. Fin. Rate = 
E d .  Fin. Rate X 

Constant 

5.96% 
1.331 

1.40% 
0.589 = 

7.93% 

0.82% 

-0.24% 

Equation based on 5 Y8ar Treasury Rate 

Cost of Equity = 0.657 X Interest Rate + ,5706 X Ext Fin.Rate + 5.58% 

Interest Rate= 
Interest Rate X 

5.39% 
0.657 = 

Ext. Fin. F:ate = 1.40% 
Ext. Fin. Rate X 0.5706 = 

Constant 

Sch. JAR 8, P. 1 

Indicated 
Cost of Equity 

3.54% 

0.80% 

5.58% 
9.92% 

Equation based on 1 Year Treasury Rate 

Cost of Equity = 0.3853 X Interest Rate + ,5730 X Ext. Fin.Rate + 8.05% 

Interest Rate= 
Interest Rate X 

5.20% 
0.3853 = 

Ext Fin. Kate = 1.40% 
Ext Fin. Kate X 0.573 = 

Constant 

8.52% 

2.00% 

0.80% 

8.05% 
10.86% 

Average of 3 

Source: Yields from 12/30/95 New York Times 
Regression analysis of cost of equity for all electric companies 
covered by Value Line vs interest rate and external financing rate. 

All equations have an F that is significant to at least 99.99% 

9.76% 



Occgas 

Sch. JAR 8, P. 2 
Summary of Risk Premium Equations 
Electric Industry Analysis Applied to 
Gas Dist. Companies 
Interest Rates on 10/31/95 

Equation based on 30-Year Treasury Rate 

Cost of Equity = 1.331 X Interest Rate + ,589 X Ext Fin.Rate - 0.24% 
6.63% 

Interest Rate= 5.96% 
Interest Rate X 1.331 5: 7.93% 

Ext Fin. Rate = 2.10% 
Ed. Fin. Rate X 0.589 = 1.24% 

Indicated 
cost of Equity 

Constant -0.24% 
8.93% 

Equation based on 5-Year Treasury Rate 

Cost of Equity = 0.657 X Interest Rate + ,5706 X Ext. Fin.Rate + 5.58% 

Interest Rate= 5.39% 
Interest Rate X 0.657 = 3.54% 

Ext. Fin. Kate = 2.10% 
Ext Fin. Rate X 0.5706 = 1.20% 

Constant 5.58% 
10.32% 

Equation based on I-Year Treasury Rate 

Cost of Equity = 0.3853 X Interest Rate + ,5730 X Ext Fin.Rate + 8.05% 

Interest Rate= 5.20% 
Interest Rate X 0.3853 = 2.00% 

Ext. Fin. Kate = 2.10% 
Ext. Fin. Rate X 0.573 = 1.20% 

Constant 8.05% 
11.26% 

Average of 3 

. Source: Yields from 7/1/95 New York Times 
Regression analysis of cost of equity for all electrlc companies 
covered by Value Line vs interest rate and external financing rate 

All equations have an F that is significant to at least 99.99% 

10.17% 



CAPM 

Sch. JAR 9. P. 1 

CAPITAL ASSET PRICING MODEL (CAPM) METHOD 
Water Utilities 

Amount Source 

Risk Premium: 

I Actual Earned Return on S&P Industrials 10.20% lbbotson Associates 
1926 through 1994 

4.80% lbbotson Associates 2 Actual Earned Return on 30-Year Treas. 
Bonds from 1926 through 1994 

3 Difference 5.40% Line 1 - Line 2 

4 Current Interest Rate on 30-year Treasury 5.96% 
Bonds 

11.36% Line 3 + Line 4 5 CAPM Indicated Cost of Equity on 
lndustrual Companies 

6 Indicated cost rate for water utilities 
a Beta of Water Utilities 

b Beta of 30-year treasuries 

c Beta of average company 

d Change in capital cost rate 
with change in beta from 
average company to treasury 
beta 

0.64 

0.40 Computed 

1.00 Definition of beta 

Value Line, average of water companies 

5.40% Line 3 

e Change in capital cost rate 0.0900% Line 6d/(Line c-Line b)/l00 

per .01 change in beta 

f Capital cost reduction concurrent 3.24% ((Line 6c-Line 6a) x Line 6e) x 100 

with change in beta from 
1.00 ttl 0.64 

g CAPM Risk Premium Indicated 2.16% Line 6d - Line 6f 
for Water Utilities 

h Cost of equity indicated by 
CAPM Method applied to 
water utilities 

8.12% Line 69 + Line 4 



CAPM 

Sch. JAR 9. P. 2 

CAPITAL ASSET PRICING MODEL (CAPM) METHOD 
Gas Utilities 

Amount Source 
Risk Premium: 

1 Actual Earned Return on sap Industrials io.zo% lbbotson ksoua tes  
1926 through 1994 

2 Actual Earned Return on 30-Year Treas 4 80% lbbotson Associates 
Bonds from 1926 through 1994 

3 Difference 5 40% Line 1 . Line 2 

A Current Interest Rate on 30-year Trea!;ury 5.96% 
Bonds 

5 CAPM indicated Cost of Equity on 11 36% Line 3 + Line 4 
lndustrual Companies 

6 Indicated cost rate for water utilities 
a Beta of Gas Utilities 

b Beta of 30-year treasuries 0.40 Computed 

c Beta of average company 1.00 Definition of beta 

d Change in capital cost rate 5.40% Line 3 

0.59 Value Line, average of gas dist. companies 

with change in beta from 
average company to treasury 
beta 

e Change In capital cost rate 0.0900% Line 6d/(Line c-Line b)1100 

per .01 change in beta 

f Capital cost reduction concurrent 3.69% ((Line 6c-Line 6a) x Line 6e) x 100 
with change in beta from 

1.00 to 0 59 

g CAPM Risk Premium Indicated 1.71% Line 6d - Line 61 
for Gas Utilities 

7.67% Line 69 + Line 4 
7 

h Cost of equity indicated by 
CAPM Method applied to 
gas utilities 



Source: 
Value Line 

L ,$at 

Sch. JAR 10, P. I 

VALUE LINE WATER COMPANIES 
EXTERNAL FINANCING RATE 
(Millions of Shares) 

Common Stock Outstanding 

American Water Works 
Aquarion Co. 
California Water Service 
Consumers Water 
Philadelphia Suburban Corp. 
United Water Resources 

1995 

33.50 E 
6.50 E 
6.25 E 
8.40 E 
12.00 E 
32.00 E 

16.44 
Average 
Round to 

Compound 
1998-2000 Annual 

Growth 
35.50 1.46% 
6.50 0.00% 
6.75 1.94% 
9.75 3.80% 
12.50 1.03% 
32.00 0.00% 

17.17 
1.37% [1.40”1 



Sch. JAR I O .  P. 2 

VALUE LINE GAS COMPANIES 
EXTERNAL FINANCING RATE 
(Millions of Shares) 

Common Stock Outstanding 

Atlanta Gas Light 
Atmos Energy Corp. 
Bay State Gas Co. 
Brooklyn Union Gas 
Cascade Natural Gas 
Connecticut Energy 
Connecticut Natural Gas 
Energen Corp. 
Indiana Energy, Inc. 
Laclede Gas Company 
MCN Corporation 
NU1 Corp. 
New Jersey Resources 
NICOR 
Northwest Nat. Gas Co. 
ONEOK. Inc. 
Pacific Enterprises Corl,. 
Peoples Energy Corp. 
Piedmont Natural Gas 
Providence Energy Corp. 
South Jersey Industries. Inc. 
Southwest Gas Corp. 
UGI 
Washington Energy 
Washington Gas 
WICOR. Inc. 

Source: 
Value Line, Sept. 29. 1995 

1995 

25.43 
15.75 E 
13.53 
48.70 E 

9.20 E 
8.87 
9.93 

10.92 
22.56 
17.45 E 
66.30 E 

9.20 E 
17.79 
50.00 E 
14.80 E 
27.02 
84.70 E 
34.90 E 
28.85 E 

5.65 E 
10.75 E 
24.50 E 
33.00 E 
24.20 E 
43.00 E 
18.25 E 

25.97 
Average 

Round to 

1998-00 

29.00 
17.50 
14.00 
52.00 
11.25 
10.50 
11 ,oo 
11 50 
21.65 
17.60 
76.00 
11 50 
19 00 
48.50 
15.75 
27.50 
87.05 
35.15 
32.50 
6.50 

12.25 
28.00 
37.00 
25.25 
46.00 
19.50 

Compound 
Annual 
Growth 

3.34% 
2.67% 
0.86% 
1.65% 
5.16% 
4.31% 
2.59% 
1.30% 

-1.02% 
0.21% 
3.47% 
5.74% 
1.66% 

-0.76% 
1 .5?% 
0.44% 
0.69% 
0.18% 
3.02% 
3.57% 
3.32% 
3.39% 
2.90% 
1.07% 
1.70% 
1.67% 

27.83 
2.10% 

1 1  



c ,wat 

Sch. JAR 11, P. I 
Water Companies 
Percentage of Common Equity in the Capital Structure 
Excluding Short-term Debt 

1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 
Value Line Water Companies Estimate Estimate 

American Water Works 38.30% 37.10% 38.10% 35.00% 36.60% 33.70% 34.20% 34.00% E 34.00% 
Aquarion Co. 55.50% 56.90% 47.50% 44.20% 48.00% 48.90% 50.80% 49.50% E 51.00% 
California Water Sewice 53.80% 55.10% 51.30% 52.40% 48.80% 48.20% 52.20% 50.00% E 52.00% 
Consumers Water Company 43.60% 41.40% 37.50% 43.90% 41.10% 43.70% 43.00% 42.00% E 45.50% 

United Watei Resources 37.80% 34.60% 36.10% 33.800’~ 35.40% 39.50% 36.10% 34.50% E 42.00X 
Philadelphia Suburban Corp. 37.10% 34.50% 32.70% 32.50% 39.50% 46.70% 47.40% 46.50% E 45.50% 

AVERAGE 44.35% 43.27% 40.53% 40.30% 41.57% 43.45% 44.00% 42.75% 45.00% 
i 

Source: Value Line 



Value Line Gas Companies 
Atlanta Gas Light 
Atmos Energy Corp. 
Bay State Gas Co. 
Brooklyn Union Gas 
Cascade Natural Gas 
Cnnnec!icci! Fnergy 
Connecticut Natural Gas 
Energen Corp. 
Indiana Energy, inc. 
Laclede Gas Company 
MCN Corporation 
NUI'Corp. 
New Jersey Resources 
NICOR 
Northwest Nat. Gas Co. 
ONEOK, Inc. 
Pacific Enterprises Corp. 
Peoples Energy Corp. 
Piedmont Natural Gas 
Providence Energy Corp. 
South Jersey Industries, Inc 
Southwest Gas Corp. 
UGI 
Washington Energy 
Washinglon Gas 
WICOR. inc. 

AVERAGE 
Source: Value Line 

Sch. JAR 11, P. 2 
Gas Companies 
Percentage of Common Equity in the Capital Structure - . .  
Excluding Short-term Debt 

1990 1991 1992 

47.80% 

53.70% 
46.80% 
46.30% 
44 6Ooh 
48.70% 

62.10% 
58.10% 
47.40% 
44.00"h 
42.70% 
60.30% 

48.30% 

58.70% 

47.00% 

44.40% 
51 .OO% 
53.00% 

51.70% 
40.30% 
32.20% 
46 10% 
56 40% 

52.30% 

64.30% 

48.80% 
47.70% 
48.00% 
45.40% 
46.70% 
50.10% 
49.50% 
60.60% 

52.50% 
50.60% 
41.30% 
37.80% 
59.40% 
43.20% 
51.00% 
36.70% 
52.10% 
52.00% 

53.30% 

53.20% 

50.70% 

38.10% 
44.90% 
52.20% 
56.90% 
58.30% 

58.10% 
50.30% 
57.00% 
47.80% 
45.60% 

48.70% 
58.40% 
55.50% 
55.30% 
52.70% 
44.60% 
44.80% 
62.10% 
43.90% 

23.10% 
55.10% 

49.40% 

53.40% 
44.10% 
52.10% 
35.20% 
50.70% 
47.50% 
57.30% 
59.00% 

1993 

53.10% 
56.70% 
51.90% 

47.30% 

49.50% 
62.00% 
61.10% 
53.10% 
48.40% 
44.20% 
42.60% 

50.80% 

45.20% 

59.70% 
45.00% 
49.00% 
35.70% 

50.60% 
51.10% 
48.90% 
35.00% 
49.30% 
46.60% 
54.90"h 

54.30% 

62.10% 

1994 1995 

45.80% 47.60% 
51.90% 53.00% E 

52.20% 53.00% E 
44.90% 45.50% E 
5!.20?/. 54.20% 
47.30% 49.80% 
58.50% 56.90% 
63.10% 61.40% 
55.50% 59.00% E 
39.30% 39.00% E 
45.20% 40.00% E 
42.00% 41.00% 
56.90% 54.50% E 
45.10% 47.00% E 

38.10% 41.50% E 
50.60% 55.00% E 
49.10% 49.50% E 
53.10% 48.00% E 
49.90% 46.50% E 

51.60% 30.50% E 
40.30% 34.00% E 
56.7i,X 59.00% E 
64.30% 65.00% E 

52.30% 51.90% 

50.00% 52.00% 

34.00% 33.00% E 

49.93% 49.27% 50.07% 50.31% 49.57% 48.76% 

Est. 
1998-2000 

50.00% 
56.00% 
54.00% 
51.50% 
45.00% 
52.50% 
50.50% 
60.00% 
64.00% 
55.50% 
39.00% 
47.00% 
42.00% 
57.00% 
48.00% 

51.00% 
52.00% 
49.50% 
53.50% 
49.50% 
36.00% 
40.50% 
34.50% 
57.50% 
66.00% 

50.48% 



G. lerComp 

5ch. JAR 12. P. 1 

COMPARISON OF STOCK PRICE VOLATILITY OF WATER COMPANIES VS GAS DISTRIBUTION COMPANIES 

1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 

Water Companies High as Percent of Low 137.27% 162.26% 149.18% 159.44% 134.74% 122.82% 152.47% 145.96% 130.59% 125.14% 125.86% 126.12% 

Gall Companies High as Percent of Low 

Gas HlghlLow Percent/Water High/Low Percent 

139.42% 

1.56% 

135.37% 

-16.57% 

140.01% 

-6.15% 

158.03% 

·0.88% 

130.71% 

-2.99% 

137.22% 

11.73% 

130.13% 

-14.65% 

135.49% 

-7.17% 

131.59% 

0.77% 

131.94% 

5.43% 

137.05% 

8.89% 

132.41% 

4.99% 



VALUE WATER UTILITY INDUSTRY HllLOW STOCK PRICES 
1984 TO 1995 

Sch. 12. P. 2 

HIGH STOCK PRICE FOR YEAR 

American Water Works 
Aquarion Co. 
California Water Svc. 
Consumers Water 
Philadelphia Suburban Corp. 
United Water Resources 

LOW STOCK PRICE FOR YEAR: 

1984 1985 1986 1987 I 988 1989 

$10.30 $16.50 $22.30 $25.90 $18.80 $21.50 
$15.50 $24.70 $29.80 $34.90 $36.00 $29.60 
$15.80 $24.60 $30.30 $32.00 $32.30 $28.80 
$12.30 $17.30 $22.50 $22.50 $21.30 $20.50 
$1330 $15.50 $19.30 $19.00 $16.90 $14.50 
$9.10 $12.10 518.10 $23.00 $20.50 $17.90 

1990 

$19.60 
$25.90 
$28.50 
$18.30 
$15.00 
$16.50 

1991 

$26.80 
$27.30 
$31.30 
$18.50 
$16.40 
$16.60 

1992 

$28.40 
$25.50 
$35.00 
$19.80 
$16.50 
$16.60 

$32.10 $32.30 
$29.30 $28.00 
$41.30 $41.00 
$21.50 $18.80 
$20.80 $19.60 
$15.90 $14.80 

1995 

$38 13 
$26 00 
$35 25 
$19 00 
$21 50 
$14 13 

American Water Works 
Aquarion Co. 
California Water Svc. 
Consumers Water 
Philadelphia Suburban Corp. 
United Water Resources 

$6.80 $9.00 $13.90 $13.90 $14.90 $16.80 $12.50 $15.50 $20.60 524.60 $25.30 $26 75 
$12.20 $14.80 $20.30 $22.00 $25.10 $24.40 $19.00 $19.90 $20.10 $24.60 $21.50 $21.63 
$13.30 $15.30 $21.90 $22.80 $24.00 $23.50 $22.30 $22.30 526.30 532.30 $29.40 $2963 
$8.00 $9.60 $15.90 $15.00 $15.80 $14.80 $10.00 $13.80 514.30 $17.00 $15.30 $14.50 
$10.20 $11.50 $12.70 $12.10 $12.10 512.80 $10.40 $11.80 $13.80 $15.60 $17.10 $17.38 
$6.40 $8.20 $11.60 $14.00 $15.80 $15.80 $9.90 $10.90 $13.00 $14.00 $12.30 $11 75 

High as Percent of Low 

American Water Works 151.47% 183.33% 160.43% 186.33% 126.17% 127.98% 156.80% 172.90% 137.86% 130.49% 127.67% 142.52% 
Aquarion Co. 127.05% 166.89% 146.80% 158.64% 143.43% 121.31% 136.32% ' 137.19% 126.87% 119.11% 130.23% 120 23% 
California Water Svc. 118.80% 160.78% 138.36% 140.35% 134.58% 122.55% 127.80% 140 36% 133.08% 127.86% 139.46% 118 99% 
Consumers Water 153.75% 180.21% 141.51% 150.OO0/o 134~81% 138.51% 183.00% 134 06% 138.46% 126.47% 122.88% 131 03% 
Philadelphia Suburban Corp 130.39% 134.78% 151.97"h 157.02% 139.67% 113.28% 144.23% 138.98% 119.57% 133.33% 114.62% 12374% 
United Water Resources 142.19% 147.56% 156.03% 164.29% 129.75% 113.29% 166.67% 152.29% 127.69% 113.57% 120.33% 120 21% 

Average 137.27% 162.26% 149.18% 159.44% 134.74% 122.82% 152.47% 145.96% 130.59% 125.14% 125.86% 126.12% 
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Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1400 

REPRESENTING THE FPSC: 

LILA JABER, ESQUIRE 
Division of Legal Services 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399 

REPRESENTING THE DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE: 
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WITNESS 

STEPHANIE SMITH 
Direct Examination by Mr. Beck 
Cross Examination by Mr. Twomey 
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1 FAX from Jeff Sharkey 
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PROCEEDINGS 

The following deposition of STEPHANIE SMITH was 

taken on oral examination, pursuant to notice, f o r  

purposes of discovery, and for use as evidence, and for 

other uses and purposes as may be permitted by the 

applicable and governing rules. Reading and signing is 

not waived. 

* * * 

Thereupon, 

STEPHANIE SMITH 

was called as a witness, having been first duly sworn, 

was examined and testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY 

th 

MR. BECK: 

Q Ms. Smith, my name is Charlie Beck. I ' m  with 

Office of Public Counsel, and I'll be starting off 

asking questions. There may be questions from others at 

the end, we'll see. Would you please state your full 

name. 

A Stephanie Anne Smith. 

Q Are you employed by the Florida Department of 

Commerce? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q What is your position with the department? 

A I'm an executive secretary. 

ACCURATE STENOTYPE REPORTERS, INC. 
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Q To whom do you report at the Commerce 

Department? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

him? 

A 

Q 

Secretary Charles Dusseau. 

Are you his executive secretary? 

Yes. 

How long have you held that position? 

Since September of 1995. 

Do you know a person named Jeff Sharkey? 

Not personally; no. 

Have you ever talked to him on the phone? 

Yes. 

Do you know about how often you have talked to 

Less than five times. 

Do you know Mr. Sharkey through any avenue 

other than work? 

A No. 

Q Do you recall when the last time was that you 

spoke with him? 

A I believe it was the 1st of January of this 

year. I'm -- around approximately the 1st of January. 
Q I'm going to hand you a document. It's two 

pages. 

MR. BECK: Let me hand you that, and ask that 

it be marked as an exhibit. 

ACCURATE STENOTYPE REPORTEIIS, INC. 
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(Deposition Exhibit 1 marked for 

identification.) 

Q Do you have the exhibit in front of you? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Do you recognize it? 

A Yes. 

Q What do you recognize it as? 

A I recognize it as a copy of a facsimile that we 

received in our office from Jeff Sharkey. 

Q Did you receive it on December 21st, 1995? 

A To my knowledge, that's the date on there. 

Q Did you speak to Mr. Sharkey about this FAX at 

all? 

A Once, I believe, I spoke with h 

communication I had was probably with his 

don't recall his secretary's name. 

m. Any other 

office, and I 

Q Could you tell me what you recall about your 

conversation with Mr. Sharkey, first of all? 

A I guess I spoke with him, I guess, it was 

during the Christmas holiday. Secretary Dusseau was in 

Argentina. I received this FAX, and this was not the 

first time we had received this FAX. It was a revision 

that he sent to me with a few changes. And so when I 

received it, I FAX'd it as I received it to 

Secretary Dusseau in Argentina for him to review. 

ACCURATE STENOTYPE REPORTERS, INC. 
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Secretary Dusseau called me back with a few changes, 

which I then made to the letter, and we signed it and 

mailed it. 

Q When you say signed it, is that a letter from 

Secretary Dusseau to Chairperson Clark at the Florida 

Public Service Commission? 

A Yes. 

Q If you would look, please, on the exhibit, 

which is the copy of the FAX. Toward the bottom left on 

the front there's some handwriting that says deadline is 

January 3rd. Do you see that? 

A Yes. 

Q Is that your handwriting? 

A Yes" 

Q Could you tell me what brought you about to 

write that there? 

A When I spoke with Mr. Sharkey's office, I 

believe, you know, I explained to them that 

Secretary Dusseau was in Argentina. I would have to FAX 

it to him to review. And, you know, they said, well, we 

need to have it by January 3rd. So, okay, no problem. 

That's just a note to myself, really, saying deadline is 

January 3rd. 

Q And this was speaking to somebody at 

Jeff Sharkey's office? 

ACCURATE STENOTYPE REPORTERS, INC. 
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A Yes. I did not speak to Mr. Sharkey at that 

time. 

Q And you don't recall the name of the person? 

A I don't recall her name; no. 

Q But it was a female? 

A It was a female. And I guess she's Jeff's 

assistant, but I don't remember her name. 

Q Did the person you talked to say why they had 

to have it by January 3rd? 

A (Witness shaking head.) 

MR. WILLINGBAM: You should talk so the court 

reporter can hear you. 

A Okay. 

Q Did anybody ask you about the January 3rd 

deadline that you wrote on this FAX? 

A NO. 

Q And nobody within the commerce department nor 

Secretary Dusseau asked you about the January 3rd 

deadline? 

A No. 

Q Your writing of the deadline as January 3rd, 

was that on the FAX as it was sent to Secretary Dusseau? 

A NO. 

Q That was just for your -- 
A Yes. This is just for my information. I just 

ACCURATE STENOTYPE REPORTERS, I N C .  
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wrote it on the FAX that we received from Mr. Sharkey. I 

used another FAX cover sheet to FAX the letter that you 

have behind here to Secretary Dusseau for his review. 

Q Now, if you recall, did you ask if there was a 

deadline, or did the person in Jeff Sharkey's volunteer 

there was a deadline? 

A I told her that he was in Argentina. He would 

have to review it. So maybe a day or two. She said, 

well, we need it here by January 3rd, so fine. 

Q Do you recall any mention at any time leading 

up to Secretary Dusseau's letter of an agenda conference 

being held at the Public Service Commission? 

A No. 

Q Did you hear about them, or did you hear 

anybody mention that they were going to make a decision 

affecting Southern States Utilities? 

A No. 

Q Was there any mention that you heard in the 

office of the fact that the Lieutenant Governor had 

already sent a letter to the Public Service Commission? 

A No. 

Q Do you know or have you ever talked with a 

person named Ida Roberts at Southern States Utilities? 

A No. 

Q Bow about a person named Tracy Smith; man? 

ACCURATE STENOTYPE REPORTERS, INC. 
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A NO. 

Q Brian Armstrong? 

A No. 

Q Carla Teasley? 

A NO. 

Q Was the last time -- and I just want to make 
sure I have that right -- the last time you spoke with 
Mr. Sharkey was at or about the time that 

Secretary Dusseau's letter went to Chairperson Clark? 

A Yes. I couldn't give you an exact date. 

Q Do you recall what that was about when you 

talked to him then? 

A No; I really don't. 

MR. BECK: I think that's all I have. Thank 

you, very much. There may be others. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. TWOMEY: 

Q I'll be very quick. Do you have any 

recollection of what the subject matter was with any of 

your conversations with Jeff Sharkey? 

A Not specifically; no. It was just -- you know 
just said, you know, did you receive the FAX. Yes, I 

received the FAX. Secretary Dusseau is in Argentina. I 

have to FAX it to him for his review, and it was along 

those lines. 

ACCURATE STENOTYPE REPORTERS, INC. 
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Q I see. When you mentioned that this document 

that Mr. Beck gave you wasn't the first FAX, that there 

had been an earlier one with a draft letter for 

Secretary Dusseau's signature -- 
A Right. 

Q -- when you received that facsimile, was there 
any discussion about what the purpose of the letter was 

for? 

A I didn't hear any discussion about it. 

MR. TWOMEY: Thank you very much. 

MS. JABER: I don't have any questions for you 

at this time. 

MR. WILLINGHAM: I don't have any questions. 

(Deposition concluded at 10:30 a.m.) 

~ 
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CERTIFICATE OF ADMINISTERING OATB 

STATE OF FLORIDA: 

COUNTY OF LEON: 

I, CAROLYN L. RANKINE, Registered Professional 

Reporter and Notary Public in and for the State of 

Florida at Large: 

DO HEREBY CERTIFY that on the date and place 

indicated on the title page of this transcript, an oath 

was duly administered by me to the designated witness 

before testimony was taken. 

,-- 
li 

DATED THIS 24, day of April, 1996. 

rf? 
CAROLYN g .  RANKINE 
Commission # :  CC 469816 
100 Salem Court 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
904/878-2221 

My commission expires: July 23, 1999 
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CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER 

STATE OF FLORIDA: 

COUNTY OF LEON: 

I, CAROLYN L. RANKINE, do hereby certify that 

the foregoing proceedings were taken before me at the 

time and place therein designated; that my shorthand 

notes were thereafter translated under my supervision; 

and the foregoing pages numbered 1 through 11 are a true 

and correct record of the aforesaid proceedings. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am not a relative, 

employee, attorney or counsel of any of the parties, nor 

relative ox employee of such attorney or counsel, or 

financially interested in the foregoing action. 

DATED THIS 

CAROLYN C. “RANKINE 
100 Salem Court 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
904/878-2221 

ACCURATE STENOTYPE REPORTERS, INC. 



Capital Strategies 
116 South Monroe Street Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

Phone: (904) 224-6789 F A X  (904) 222-5981 

To Secretary Charles Dusreau 

Depubnent  of Commerce 

922-9150 

Date December 21,1995 

@ For your d o r m a t i o n  ' 

For your signature 

For your response 

Urgent 

0 
-0 
0 

I M e s s a g e  1 
Charles: 

Here is the revised letter for Southern States Utilities as w e  
discussed. Let me know if this is ok. Have a good holida];. Thank& 

-Jeff 

121 Page(s) w/ cover 



Deccpbcr 1 E, I995 

Susan F. CImk. Chairperson 
Ronda Public Scnicc Comnission 
G u n a w  Building 
2540 Shunlard OrJl Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Ronda 52399-0855 

Dear CommLsioner Cluk 

I rccenlly r rcc ived a copy of a lcncr sent lo Govanor  Chiles by Mr. Arcad Sandbulle. 
Chairman and CEO of Minncsota Power in l?du!h, h h n c s o l a  As you arc aware. 
M i ~ e s o i r  Pouw OUTS Soulhem Stales Uutics,  a water and wastewater uliLity company 
baxd in A p o p k  Tlus lefler o u h c d  his corporation's concerns regarding the PSC'S 
r c a n t  uniform raic ruling pcnaininp I O  Minngota Power CPSC-95-1292-FOF-\~'Sj. 

Buincsscs fnqueotly contacl this DcpLmncnt wirh conccrn{a&yrcplaory dsisiom, and 
tbe PSC under yow leadership has been very supportive of oacrfions Io c n s m  a fab aod 
favorable s&g for ~ C O D O ~ ~ C  development in Flarida Your recent cooperation on che 
economic drvelopmcnt e x p d i r u r e s  issue and Lhc rclcpbone area code issue ere g w d  
examples .  Hoxever ,  s you can i m a g i n e ,  one of the basic elements for  
business sur r iva l  io any marketplace is a predicmble and  stable busiuess 
climate.Wjthoul i f  busiurss managers  are unable lo make informed 
decisions which can often m a k e  the 
and failure. A n  ~ ~ ~ p r e d i c t a b l e  e n v i r o m e n l ,  
put tremendous financial pressure on fim 
them I O  rethink their  investment in F l o r i d p  

lo dl is case. 1 havc asked a mcmber of our stzff, 
wj!h the Wakr Policy Ofiicc in tk Dcpamncn~ 
adLisc mc on rhc rcasoning bchind dit Commission's ordtr and on u*hat, i f  any, recourse 
might be avzilablc 10 Southern Stalcs Utililics. Nickcan be m h e d  al457-2568. 

(-4 

As always. 1 zpprrciatc the cooperation of the Commission and U~ank you for your 
aaennrion lo h s  issuc. 

Sinccrely. 

Charles Dusseau 
Sccretaly of C o m c r c e  

cc: Govcnior CWes 
Jcff Sharkcy 




